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REAUTHORIZATION OF THE JUVENILE JUSTICE
AND DELINQUENCY PREVENTION ACT

Runaway and Homeless Youth

FRIDAY, JANUARY 29, 1988

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
SU3COMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES,

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR,
Washington, DC.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to notice, at 10 a.m., in room
2261, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Dale E. Kildee (chair-
man of the subcommittee) presiding.

Members present: Representatives Kildee, Sawyer, and Tauke.
Staff present: Susan Wilhelm, staff director; Don Baker, chief

counsel; S. Jefferson McFarland, subcommittee legislative counsel;
Carol Behrer, legislative associate, minority; and Margaret Ka-
jeckas, clerk.

Mr. Knxon. In real life I was a school teacher, so I usually start
when the bell rings.

The Subcommittee on Human Resources convenes this morning
to continue hearings on H.R. 1801, to reauthorize the Juvenile Jus-
tice and Delinquency Prevention Act for an additional four years.

Testimony this morning will focus on Title III of the JJDPA, the
Runaway and Homeless Youth Act. Title III authorizes services to
runaway youth, and has been an integral part of the JJDPA since
its original enactment in 1974. In 1977, it was amended to include
services for homeless youth.

Over the years, the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act has made
possible the provision of services to countless youth and families in
crisis. In providing these services, we have learned a great deal
about why youth run away and how to best provide assistance.

For example, we know that youth are usually running away
from something. In fact, in some cases, running may be an act of
survival. We also know that troubled youth generally come from
troubled families. Experience has clearly demonstrated that we are
most helpful to the youth when we help the family as a unit.

Homeless youth, however, do not have a family to which to
return, so the goal of family reunification is inapplicable. Instead,
the goal for homeless youth is preparation to live independently.
Both runaway and homeless youth need the kinds of services au-
thorized by the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act.

Inevitably, this raises the question of how we best serve both
with a level of funding, which to date has been insufficient, and
one answer, of course, has been to advocate for more funding,
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which we continue to do, and we welcome your advocacy in that
area also. Another answer is to look closely at how we currently
spend the Federal dollars and how we order our priorities.

The testimony that we receive through these hearings is of great
importance in helping us understand the extent of the needs and
how the Act can be amended to better address those needs.

Those of you who know me know that I repeatedly say that the
role of government is to promote, protect, defend and enhance
human dignity. I try to examine every bill that comes before the
Congress with that in mind. A youth who appreciates his or her
own dignity is more likely to respect the dignity of others. Run-
away programs that promote, protect, defend and enhance humandignity must provide more than just physical shelter. They should
provide a nurturing environment in which youths are assisted and
encouraged to love and respect themselves.

I myself am blessed with three teen-aged children-15, 16 and 17.
The 17 year old will be 18 next Tuesday, as a matter of fact. So I
am familiar with young people. And having taught high school for
a number of years, I had that familiarity, too.

My youngest son, Paul, is 15 now. I can recall one evening when
he was about 9 years old. I was tucking him into bed, hearing his
prayers, and after he finished his formal prayers, he said, "I love
God, I love mommy, I love daddy, I love Laura, I love David and Ilove me." And that was very important, that he had love for him-
self.

Every human being has dignity and we should respect that, andit is a good place to start with our own dignity and respect that
dignity. These programs should help to build that self-esteem anddignity.

When I first got elected to the state legislature 23 years ago, I
was assigned to the prisons committee and I used to visit from time
to time the largest walled prison in the world, in Jackson, Michi-
gan. I concluded after visiting there that most of the people who
were there were there for one reason: they did not like themselves.They did not see their own dignity, didn't have good self-esteem.I think that is very important that all these programs look
beyond the physical needs, shelter needs, and look to the other
more important needs of a young person, to have that self-esteem.
Because when we help that person attain self-esteem and respectfor their own dignity, they are more likely to respect the dignity of
others, their life and property, and all society is safer when that
happens.

I always encourage that aspect, which I know you understand
very well, and those of you in the audience involved in this, havingvisited some of those shelters, recognize that very well. So I look
forward to these hearings this morning to see how we can improvethis.

Mr. Tauke, who is the Ranking Republican Member of the com-mittee, I am sure has a statement.
Mr. TAUKE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I want to join you in welcoming our witnesses this morning. In

particular, I want to thank Paget Hinch for being here today to
represent the Administration. As you know, Mr. Chairman, she is
the Associate Commissioner of the Family and Youth Services

. A "t
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Bureau, Administration for Youth and Families. We look forward
to your testimony and to working with you to reauthorize the Run-
away and Homeless Youth Act.

I was pleased to join Chairman Kildee in introducing legislation
reauthorizing this Act as well as the rest of the Juvenile Justice
Act of 1974. A four-year extension of this Act will demonstrate the
ongoing Federal commitment to assisting young people in crisis.
Through the :-...naway and homeless youth program, we are able to
help thousands of troubled, at-risk youth each year.

The majority of the young people served by runaway centers and
shelters which receive funding from this program have not run far
from home and need short-term assistance. These young people and
their families are going through some form of crisis.

In a majority of these cases, the shelter, counseling and after-
care services provided by runaway shelters result in the positive
placement of the child, either back home or in another appropriate
setting. It is important to note that these services to the family are
just as important, perhaps more, than services to the individual
child.

A smaller percentage of the runaway and homeless youth popu-
lation, but the group that perhaps has gained more public atten-
tion, are the children of the streets who cannot be returned home.
While comprising a smaller segment of the runaway population,
these children are in great danger of abuse and exploitation. These
are the children that make the headlines and that are the subject
of TV movies and drama shows.

It is critical that we serve both types of youth. Early intervention
to the first- or second-time runner could prevent repeated running
and possible exploitation on the streets in the future. More inten-
sive services are required for the homeless young people who are
existing any way that they can on the streets.

I would also like to use this opportunity to pay tribute to the
many providers of Runaway Youth Services across the country,
some of whom will appear before us today. With limited resources,
these individuals and organizations deal with these things daily
and confront problems ranging from drug abuse to sexual exploita-
tion of our nation's children.

While in Iowa this past December for a hearing on this subject,
Chairman Kildee and I had the opportunity to visit a runaway
shelter, a Youth Emergency Services and Shelter in Des Moines.
This opportunity to review a runaway program first-hand provided
us with valuable insights into the operation of the runaway and
homeless youth program. I am sure that the hearing this morning
will further improve our understanding of the program and the
issues involving runaway and homeless youth.

Again, thank you, Mr. Chairman. I look forward to the testimony
today and to the suggestions of our witnesses in how we can best
strengthen and improve this important Act.

Mr. KILDEE. Thank you very much, Tom.
Congressman Sawyer from Ohio.
Mr. SAWYER. Thank you very much, Chairman Kildee. It is a

pleasure to join with you and Congressman Tauke in this impor-
tant undertaking this morning.

-r-
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With a name like Tom Sawyer, I certainly have been reminded
almost on a daily basis throughout my life of the works of Mark
Twain. Certainly one of Twain's more colorful characters, in addi-
tion to Tom Sawyer, was Huckleberry Finn, whose story is in an-
other time and in another setting, but strikingly similar to the
kinds of problems that we seek to deal with today. Huck lived with
a father whose substance abuse led to his abuse of Huck.

Huck's life on the Mississippi River was full of adventure. But
with the fear and the violence that he experienced, he found him-
self in many of the same kinds of situations that face today's run-
aways. Huck's salvation, ulimately, was the support of his commu-nity.

Today's runaways are not always as fortunate, but because of the
Runaway and Homeless Youth Act, many children in crisis can
find safety and guidance in shelters across the country.

Appropriately enough, one of the oldest, widely respected shel-
ters in the country, located in my State of Ohio, is called Huckle-
berry House.

The shelters are strengthening family relationships and helping
youth in crisis to work through problems and decide upon a future
course of action. Over one million youths runaway each year and
80 percent are returned home to relatives or friends. That is an
amazing statistic and it shows the great value and success of both
the shelter program and the runaway hotlines.

Adolescents are one of the most neglected and misunderstood
segments of our population. At school and at home, children are
facing incredible pressure and problems too large for them, and
sometimes for their families, to tackle alone. The dedicated profes-
sionals who staff the runaway shelters and hotlines have helped
many children regain their self esteem and begin to take control oftheir lives.

I am sure that the testimony we will hear todaycertainly from
Mike Montoya, our young witness from Michiganwill attest to
the valuable services these shelters provide. Mike is a shining ex-
ample of what government and communities can do when they
work together, and we need to encourage public and private sector
support for these kinds of programs.

We also need to look at the need for increased funds for basic
shelter grants. Many existing shelters are operating on shoestring
budgets, a difficult task given the changing needs of their clients.
More shelters are desperately needed, but to do so requires the
draining of funds from existing shelters. That dilemma must be
corrected.

Independent living programs are needed to assist the growing
number of homeless youths, and programs are needed to deal with
the rising incidence of youth suicide. We need to find new ways to
help shelters find these needed programs.

Mr. Chairman, I look forward to discussing these issues with our
witnesses today, and to continuing in the dialogue when the Sub-
committee travels to Akron in March. Thank you.

Mr. KILDEE. Thank you, Tom. I look forward to that hearing in
Akron also.
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Our first witness is Paget Hinch, Associate Commissioner for
Family and Youth Services, Administration for Children, Youth,
and Families, Department of Health and Human Services.

We welcome you here this morning and send our greetings to
Dottie Borup. We have appreciated her cooperation with this com-
mittee. Your entire statement will be made part of the record. If
you wish to summarize, we would encourage that. Go ahead.

STATEMENT OF PAGET WILSON HINCH, ASSOCIATE COMMIS-
SIONER, FAMILY AND YOUTH SERVICES BUREAU, ADMINIS-
TRATION FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH AND FAMILIES

Ms. HINCH. I am, as you said, Paget Wilson Hinch, Associate
Commissioner for the Families and Youth Services Bureau in the
Administration for Children, Youth and Families. I appreciate the
opportunity to appear before this distinguished subcommittee to
discuss the reauthorization of the Runaway and Homeless Act,
Title III of the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act of
1974. I am well aware of the subcommittee's concern for children,
youth and families, and the programs which serve them, and let
me assure you that we share that concern. I am accompanied today
by Dominic Mastrapasqua, Deputy Associate Commissioner of the
Family and Youth Services Bureau.

In 1973, the Secretary of the Department of Health, Education
and Welfare established an Intra-Departmental Committee on Run-
away youth. This was in response to national concerns about run-
aways, escalating numbers of delinquency cases brought into juve-
nile courts throughout the country, and the determination of the
Senate Judiciary Committee to cl,welop an alternative to jail for
status offenders. The following year, Congress established the Run-
away Youth Program under Title III of the Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention Act of 1974. In 1977, the program was
broadened to include homeless youth. In 1980, the grant funding
process was statutorily changed to include a state allocation based
on youth population. The program was again reauthorized in 1984.

The Runaway and Homeless Act provides funds for community
based programs that primarily serve the immediate needs of run-
away and homeless youth and their families. The Act authorizes
grants for such services as temporary, short term shelter, counsel-
ing and aftercare in settings outside the law enforcement and juve-
nile justice systems. The progra. -. is administered by the Family
and Youth Services Bureau, a part of the Administration for Chil-
dren, Youth and Families, within the Office of Human Develop-
ment Services.

The authorization for the runaway and homeless youth program
expii es at the end of fiscal year 1988 and the Administration sup-
ports reauthorization of this program. We will be submitting a leg-
islative proposal, and see no reason to propose any major changes
in the program. We look forward to working with your committee
on this important legislation.

Now I will summarize some of the recent accomplishments of the
runaway and homeless youth program, highlighting services pro-
vided by the basic centers, the national runaway hotline, the net-
works, and the demonstration grantees.

9
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In fiscal year 1987, we awarded grants totaling nearly $20 mil-lion to 307 runaway and homeless youth centers in the 50 States,the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, Guam, Palau, and the Com-monwealth of the Northern Marianas.
Last year the runaway and homeless youth centers provided on-going crisis intervention and shelter services to approximately85,000 youth. Another 255,000 youth received one time counselingor referral services on a drop-in basis, for a total of approximately

340,000 youth served.
As part of our continuing effort to strengthen runaway andhomeless youth services to native American youth and their fami-lies, in FY 1987 we funded an additional four center grants withmoney provided by the Administration for Native Americans.These four grants are in addition to six other center grants tonative American organizations, funded with runaway and homelessyouth program funds.
In 1987, approximately 53 percent of the youth who receivedshelter services were reunited with their families. Thirty-seven per-cent were placed in other positive living arrangements such as thehomes of friends or relatives, foster care, independent living pro-grams, or boarding schools. An estimated five percent returned tothe streets. For the remaining five percent the centers had no in-formation on the final disposition of the youth.
While the youth served range in age from under 11 up to 18, theaverage age is 15. The centers serve slightly more families thanmales. Nationally, white predominated among the youth served,and 17 percent were black, eight percent Hispanic, and six percentAsian or native American. Nearly half of the youth served hadnever run away before, but 17 percent had run away more thanfive times.
Fully two-thirds of the youth seek services because of problemswith parental relationships. But other frequently given reasons forseeking services include poor self-image, depression, truancy, badgrades, juvenile justice problems, and drug or alcohol abuse. Mostof the youth served by the centers do not run very far. Fifty-twopercent remained within ten miles of home, but 12 percent ranmore than 50 miles.
Over the past.three years, the runaway and homeless youth pro-gram has provided services to hundreds of thousands of youth andtheir families through the toll free runaway switchboard (1 -800-621- 4000). This hotline, operated by Metro Help, Inc., in Chicago, isunique in the breadth of services it provides.
We supported the switchboard in fiscal year 1987 at a level of$350,000. This switchboard operates 24 hours a day, seven days aweek, with trained volunteers who provide almost all of the tele-phone services. Since fiscal year 1985, the switchboard has also op-erated as the national youth suicide hotline.
Networking Grants: Networks are associations of runaway youthprograms and other youth serving agencies, which are intended tostrengthen the coordination of resources and services to runawayand homeless youth and their families. The networks serve a train-ing and information distribution function as well, enabling theshelter grantees to better coordinate activities and assist one an-other. )

10
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The fiscal year 1987 we funded on networking grantee in each of
the ten HHS regions, with a total expenditure of approximately
$644,000.

The administering this program, we often use our demonstration
funds to address issues identified by shelter staff and directors at
the local level. In my written statement I have discussed a number
of these projects and how they support the basic centers.

In fiscal year 1987, we awarded 27 new discretionary grants in 20
states. Runaway youth shelters or coordinated networks were
either the grantee or an equal partner in 234 of them.

It has been our consistent practice in funding discretionary pro-
gram support activity to require that shelters or coordinated net-
works be the grantee or a partner.

The fiscal year 1988, with a total appropriation of over $26 mil-
lion, ACYF expects to award grants in support of an estimated 315
centers for runaway and homeless youth. We will continue funding
for the National Runaway Switchboard, and will work with the
switchboard to increase its volunteer capability to serve increased
numbers of youth and families.

Additional fiscal year 1988 funds will be devoted to the support
of networking grantees and a special effort to provide un site train-
ing to shelter staff and volunteers to equip them to address critical
hazards to street youth, including sexual exploitation, AIDS and
drugs.

As you know, a study of the causes of homelessness in adolescent
youth was mandated by the Congress. We are currently designing
this study and expect study outcomes to be available in about 18
months.

This concludes my prepared remarks. Thank you very much for
the opportunity to testify today and I will take any questions that
you may have.

Mr. KILDEE. Thank you, Paget, for your testimony.
[The prepared statement of Paget Wilson Hinch follows:]
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Mr. Chairman, I appreciate the opportunity to appear before this

distinguished subcommittee to discuss the reauthorization of the

Runaway and Homeless Youth Act, Title III of the Juvenile Justice

and Delinquency Prevention Act, of 1974. I am well aware of the

Subcommittee's concern for children, youth and families, and the

programs which serve them, and let me assure you that we share this

concern. I am accompanied today by Dominic Mastrapasqua, Deputy

Associate Commissioner of the Family and Youth Services Bureau.

In 1973, the Secretary of the then Department of Health, Education

and Welfare established an Intra-Departmental Committee on Runaway

Youth. This was in response to national concerns about runaways,

escalating numbers of delinquency cases brought into juvenile

courts throughout the country, and the determination of the Senate

Judiciary Committee to develop an alternative to jail for status

offenders. The following year, Congress established the Rin,way

Youth Program under Title III of the Juvenile Justice and

Delinquency Prevention Act of 1974. In 1977, the program was

broadened to include homeless youth. In 1980, the grant funding

process was statutorily changed to include a State allocation

based on youth population. The program was again reauthorized in

1984.

The Runaway and Homeless Youth Act provides funds for

community-based programs that primarily serve the immediate needs

of runaway and homeless youth and their families. The Act

authorizes grants for such services as temporary, short-term

shelter, counseling, and aftercare in settings outside the law

..,
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enforcement and juvenile justice systems. The program is

administered by the Family and Youth Services Bureau, a part of

the Administration for Children, Youth and Families (ACYF),

within the Office of Human Development Services.

PROPOFED REAUTHORIZATION

The authorization for the Runaway and Homeless Youth Program

expires at the end of FY 1988 and the Administration supports

reauthorization of this program. We will be submitting a

legislative proposal, and see no reason to propose any major

changes in the program. We look forward to working with your

committee on this important legislation.

MAJOR ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Now I will sumrarize some of the recent accomplishments of the

Runaway and Homeless Youth Program, highlighting services

provided by the basic centers, the national runaway hotline, the

networks, and the demonstration grantees.

BASIC CENTER GRANTS

In Fiscal Year 1987, we awarded grants totalling nearly $20

million to 307 runaway and homeless youth centers in the fifty

States, the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, Guam, Palau, and

the Commonwealth of the Northern Marianas.
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As you know, we have instituted a three year funding cycle for

center grant awards. Roughly two-thirds of the Fiscal Year 1987

grants were awarded on a non-competitive basis, i grantees which

had received multi-year awards in FY 1986. The other third of the

grants was awarded on the basis of competition.

Last year the runaway and homeless youth centers provided ongoing

crisis intervention and shelter services to approximately 85,000

youth. Another 255,000 youth received on: -time counseling or

referral services on a "drop-in" basis, for a total of

approximately 340,000 youth served.

As a part of our continuing effort to strengthen runaway and

homeless youth services to Native American youth and their

families, in FY 1987 we funded an additional four center grants

with money provided by the Administration for Native Americans

(ANA). These four grants are in addition to six other center

grants to Native American organizations, funded with Runaway and

'Homeless Youth Program funds.

In 1987, approximately 53 percent of the youth who received

shelter services were reunited with their families. Thirty-seven

percent were placed in other positive living arrangements such as

the homes of friends or relatives, foster care, independent living
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programs, or boarding schools. An estimated five percent returned

to the streets. For the remaining five percent the centers had no

information on the final disposition of the youth.

While the youth served range in age from under eleven up to

eighteen, the average age is fifteen. The centers serve slightly

more females (57%) than males. Nationally, whites predominated

among the youth served (59%), and 17 percent were black, 8 percent

Air-,anic, and 6 percent Asian or Native American. Nearly half of

the youth served had never run away before, but 16 percent had run

away more than five times.

Fully two-thirds of the youth seek services because of problems

with parental relationships. But other frequently-given reasons

for seeking services include poor self-image, depression, truancy,

bad grades, juvenile justice problems, and drug or alcohol abuse.

Most of the youth served by the centers do not run very far: 52

percent remained within ten miles of home; but 12 percent ran more

than 50 miles.

RUNAWAY HOTLINE SWITCHBOARD

Over the past three years, the Runaway and Homeless Youth Program

has provided services to hundreds of thousands of youth and their

families through the toll-free Runaway Switchboard

(1-800-621-4000). This hotline, operated by Metro Help, Inc., in

Chicago, is unique in the breadth of services it provides.

16 -..-
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We supported the Switchboard in Fiscal Year 1987 at a level of

$350,000. This Switchboard operates 24 hours a day, seven days a

week, with trained volunteers who provide almost all of the

telephone services. Since Fiscal Year 1985, the switchboard has

also operated as the national youth suicide hotline.

NETWORKING GRANTS

Networks are associations of runaway youth programs and other

youth-serving agencies, which are intended to strengthen the

coordination of resources and services to runaway and homeless

youth and their families. The networks serve a training and

information-distribution function as well, enabling the shelter

grantees to better coordinate activities and assist one another.

In Fiscal Year 1987 we funded one networking grantee in each of

the ten HHS regions, with a total expenditure of approximately

$644,000.

DEMONSTRATION PROJECTS

In administering this program, we often use our demonstration

funds to address issues identified by shelter staff and directors

at the local levz1. Some of these projects include the following:
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COMBATTING JUVENILE PROSTITUTION

Juvenile prostitution has been, and is, of major concern as it

impacts the youth at-risk population. Its linkages with drug

abuse and AIDS also make it a priority concern.

The culmination of several years of effort by the Runaway and

Homeless Youth Program is a major publication on combatting

juvenile prostitution, jointly published by the National

Association of Counties (WACO) and the National Resource Center

for Youth Services. First, we studied the causes of juvenile

prostitution. Second, we looked at various successful approaches

to address this problem. Finally, we tested and documented model

interventions. The results were translated into an action guide

for county officials and the reviews of the book have been good.

NACO has developed an excellent marketing effort, and the National

Resource Center for Youth Services, which is stocking and selling

the book, has done a major mailing promotion effort.

YOUTH SUICIDE PREVENTION

Runaway shelter staff expressed growing concern about handling

severely depressed youth who they feared were at risk of suicide.

They also cited the need for the development of models that would

produce more responsive service linkages. In response, the

Runaway and Homeless Youth Program funded a group of projects to

address this specific issue.

18-
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Several major products emerged from this cluster of projects. The

first was a computerized staff training curriculum. It was

successfully tested in training staff trainers from each of the

shelters in the Southeast Region (Region IV). National

demonstration workshops have been held at the National Resource

Center for Youth Services conference in 1986. Other national

demonstrations have been supplied to NACO, the National Sheriffs

Association, the Amer,ican Association of Suicidology, and each of

the services in the Department of Defense.

A project conducted by Columbia University produced a screen to

help determine if a youth is at-risk of suicide. Previous screens

have been in use but are highly error-prone. The Columbia screen

(ARIDS) is a breakthrough in the state-of-the-art. Currently,

validation testing is being completed on the screen and the

results are to be published in scientific journals. Acceptance by

the scientific community will trigger a greatly expanded national

use of the tool. Virtually all youth service organizations,

residential programs and educational programs will be able to

benefit from this material.

CORPORATE PARTNERSHIPS

For years shelters have struggled to discover effective means of

outreach to prevent runaway behavior.

4 ...

, 1 9
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Statistics on families in the workplace and other research data

suggest that, in addition to churches and school PTA's, one of the

major places to reach parents about prevention of runaway behavior

and address other pertinent adolescent issues is the workplace.

Consequently, in Fiscal Years 1986 and 1987, we funded a cluster

of projects referred to as corporate partnerships. In these

projects we funded shelters to experiment and design model

programs that can be made available in the work place through

corporate employee assistance programs. Currently shelters have

projects working with such corporate entities as Honeywell and

Bethlehem Steel, providing outreach, prevention information, and

referral assistance to employees.

AT RISK YOUTH AND EMPLOYMENT SERVICES

In 1987, as another link in the chain of meeting the needs of

older and homeless adolescents, we entered into a partnership with

the Department of Labor to effect greater use of Job Training

Partnership Act (JTPA) monies for our at risk populations.

The major thrust of this effort is not only in redirecting the use

of JTPA monies, but increasing the understanding and the

involvement of Private Industry Council (PIC) leadership in

meeting the needs of specific populations of at-risk youth - i.e.,

older adolescents in foster care and homeless youth in independent

living programs.

20
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Twelve projects were funded in Fiscal Year 1907 to provide youth

employment services to our target population. The total funding

was slightly over half a million dollars, of which the Title III

share was under $150t000. Each project had to be a documented

partnership between a P/C and a Runaway and Homeless Youth Center.

In Fiscal Year 1987, we awarded 27 new discretionary grants in 20

States. Runaway youth shelters or coordinated networks were

either the grantee or an equal partner in 24 of them.

It has been our consistent practice in funding discretionary

program support activity to require that shelters or coordinated

networks be the grantee or a partner.

NATIONAL RESOURCE CENTER FOR YOUTH SERVICES

Program descriptions, how-to-manuals, and identified expertise

from our shelters are currently housed in the National Resource

Center for Youth Services in Oklahoma. This Center is one of

several resource centers funded by ACYF.

The Runaway and Homeless Youth Program uses the National Center

for marketing and dissemination of information and products

developed under our model program efforts. The National Center

enhances and expands the Runaway and Homeless Youth Program's

capacity to provide information, training and technical assistance

to the service programs that address our target population.

, 21



18

-10 -

SAFEPLACE

Another recent significant etfort has been Project SAFEPLACE.

This is a community-wide volunteer model for increasing a local

community's capacity to meet needs of runaway and homeless youth.

Local businesses and other organizations are a-ke0 to display a

SAFEPLACE sign and serve as an immediate refuge and link to a

runaway youth center. The SAFEPLACES program is being implemmted

in nearly 100 communities in the country now. Local funding

sources for SAFEPLACE include such groups as Junior Leagues, the

Southland Corp., State Farm Bureaus, banks, United Ways, city

governments, local foundations, YMCA's, local department stores,

the Gannett Foundation, Kiwanis Clubs, and Rotary Clubs.

SAFEPLACE was developed by one of our shelters, Shelter House in

Louisville, Kentucky, and has been very successful. We have

provided special training on SAFEPLACE to our Regional networking

grantees, which in turn serve as a training and technical

assistance source for our shelters on a regional basis. In Fiscal

Year 1988, we will be setting goals by region and hope to more

than double the number of SAFEPLACES.

COORDINATION WITH DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

We participate in the work of the Justice Department's

Coordinating Council on Juvenile Justice and Delinquency.

Prevention, and coordinate activities of the Runaway and Homeless

Youth Program with the National Center on Missing and Exploited
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Children. In addition, we were also active in the Committee on

High Risk Youth of the National Drug Policy Board. Finally, we

cooperated in a number of activities with the National Institute

of Corrections.

PLANS FOR THE CURRENT FISCAL YEAR

In Fiscal Year 1988, with a total appropriation of over $26

million, AMP expects to award grants in support of an estimated

315 centers for runweay and homeless youth. We will continue

funding for the National Runaway Switchboard, and will work with

the Switchboard to increase its volunteer capability to serve

increased numbers of youth and fa lilies.

Additional Fiscal Year 1988 funds will be devoted to the support

of Networking grantees and a special effort to provide on-site

training to shelter staff and volunteers to equip them to address

critical hazards to street youth, including sexual exploitation,

AIDS and drugs.

2 exti
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In Fiscal Year 1988 there are several issues we will address

through our discretionary efforts. These priority areas are

discussed in the Office of Human Development Services FY 1988

Coordinated Discretionary rt:7.ds Program Announcement published in

the Federal Register December 30, 1987. These priority areas

include:

o Challenge Grants to Community Foundations:

Mainstreaming Troubled Youth

o Challenge Grants to Foundations: Independent

Living for Older Homeless Youth

o Improving Minority Participation in Runaway

and Homeless Youth Centers

o Developing An Urban Strategy for Prevention

of Youth Suicide

All of these priority areas require that a runaway and homeless

youth shelter or coordinated network be the applicant or be a

partner in the proposed endeavor.

In Fiscal Year 1988, we have in process an evaluation project

which is looking at the question of what happens to youth when

they leave our shelters. We expect the evaluation to be

completed by the end of 1989.

24
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As you know, a study of the causes of homelessness in adolescent

youth was mandated by the Congress. We are currently designing

this study and expect study outcomes to be available in about

eighteen months.

Tinally, we are planning several major dissemination efforts with

national organizations in 1988 and expect to make appropriate

materials and technical assistance available to the armed forces

Tinnily Resource Centers to enhance their ability to meet the

needs of adolescent youth in military families.

This concludes my prepared remarks. Thank you for the

opportunity to testify today. I will be pleased to answer any

question that you may have.
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Mr. KILDEE. Do you have any solid estimates on how many youngpeople run away, how many are homeless, and what percentage of
those are being served by the shelters?

Ms. HINCH. That is a very elusive figure. Right now we guessthat there are aboutand it is a very professional guessabout amillion runaways, runaway and homeless youth out there. There isa national incident study being conducted right now to determine
what that figure actually is.

Mr. KILDEE. Have you seen in remt years a leveling off or anincrease in the number of young people that run away?
Ms. Harm It has pretty much remained static, within a thou-sand, tens of thousands.
Mr. KILDEE. When we were in Iowa what we discovered was thatone of the centers had been funded one year and 0-en another

center received funding and they lost their funding, an the follow-ing year the other center lost its funding, and they got their fund-ing back. Can you describe some of the problems we have in trying
to increase the number of shelters, while at the same time not un-dercutting the financial situation for an existing shelter?

Ms. HINCH. In order to adhere to the principles of competition,
we need to take into consideration not only the need and the exist-
ence of a grantee, but how well they compete among the other ap-plicants from their state.

Mr. KILDEE. We have, though, another shelter being openedwhich we would encourage. Having been around the country a bit,I can see the need for shelters. Would it not be more appropriatefor the Congressand this is our job, and your job to guide ustorecognize the need for more shelters and increase both the authori-
zation level and the appropriations for those shelters.

Ms. HINCH. That could be a consideration within the scope of the
runaway and homeless youth rogram as it exists now. However,let me give an example in Micnigan, if I may. You had existing, Ibelieve 13 existing federally funded shelters when the competitioncame up this last year, and of the eight that competed, or of thenine that competed, eight were existing in the competition, the
new one that came in scam; actually higher than any of the otherapplicants.

Rather than no fund, one that had already been funded previous-ly, we gave it a lower grant, gave it what money we could, ratherthan not fund it at all.
Mr. KILDEE. S' the amount of authorization and appropriationdoes force upon you very difficult choices?
Ms. HINCH. It can.
Mr. KILDEE. From that I would conclude that, in setting prior-ities in the country, children should be a high priority, and Con-gress might then look at this terrible decision we force you into ofunderfunding one shelter in order toor funding less, let's saysoyou can fund another shelter. Congress might look at priorities and

say that we do have to then fund the priority children at a higherlevel.
Ms. HINCH. That is true, but we also have to consider the factthat these shelters are very industrious, and I am not saying they

don't need funding from us, but they have been very industrious in

2-61'
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their search for other forms of funding, such as the Office of Juve-
nile Justice, local foundations, fund raising activities.

Mr. KILDEE. Of course, the Pentagon is very industrious too. Per-
haps we can let them have a bake sale or something to run their
operation. There would be a change in this country. They are very
innovative over there across the river.

You do use some of your funding for discretionary programs?
Ms. HINCH. Yes.
Mr. KILDEE. Is there specific language in the law for that discre-

tionary funding, or should the Congress in reauthorization include
some specific language for discretionary funding?

Ms. HiricH. Well, Mr. Chairman, we feel that the legislation is
sufficiently broad right now for us to allow ourselves to address the
special needs and problems that face the shelters.

Mr. KILDEE. OK.
Mr. Tauke.
Mr. TAUKE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
First of all, thank you for your testimony. I think it was very

helpful.
How do you determine each year what areas or issues should be

targeted for demonstration funds?
Ms. HINCH. We listen to the shelter.i. They indicate to us what

the specific needs are, where the biggest problems are, and we have
a lot cf respect for what they tell us, and we do indeed take their
advice.

Mr. TAUKE. Is there some kind of formalized process you go
through, or informal?

Ms. HINCH. It is an informal decision process.
Mr. TAUKE. As the chairman indicated, there is concern about

spreading a constant appropriation over an expanding number of
shelters around the country. What is the average amount of a basic
center grant?

Ms. HINCH. The average is $65 to $70,000. We have a maximum
of $150,000 and some grants as little as $11 or $12,000.

Mr. TAUKE. The $11,000 or $12,000 is the minimum and $150,000
is the maximum?

Ms. HINCH. Sixty-five or $70,000 is the average.
Mr. TAUKE. Has this average amount been increasing?
Ms. HINCH. Slightly. The appropriations has increased, but the

proportion has pretty much remained-the same.
Mr. TAUKE. We have had some suggestions that we establish

some kind of minimum grant amount in order to prevent the dilu-
tion of these funds. Do you think that is a good idea?

Ms. HINCH. We would certainly entertain that. We have no offi-
cial stand on that at all. So if you think that would be useful- -

Mr. TAUKE. Do you have a particular figure in mind to what
would be a reasonable figure for a minimum grant?

Ms. HINCH. We have discussed that, and at this point Vermont
and the District of Columbia are a little under $50,000. So if you
were to say $50,000, it would hardly benefit those lower shelters.
Seventy-five thousand dollars might be realistic.

Mr. TAUKE. If you do set a minimum grant, what is the impact
on others? I mean, are wein an 'unjustified waytaking money
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from somebody to give it to somebody else, or what is the practical
impact of that?

Ms. HINCH. You are talkingare you talking about a state mini-
mum?

Mr. TAUKE. No, I am talking about an individual shelter mini-
mum grant, I believe.

Ms. HINCH. I am trying to explain
Mr. TAUKE. You were talking about a state?
Ms. HINCH. Well, I was talking aboutif you apply the formula

to the amount that is available for the shelters, are you suggesting
that we would be taking money from the total balance in order to
give a particular grant, a minimum? If, for instance

Mr. TAUKE. I am saying if you were giving a grant to a certain
shelter, there would be at least a certain amount available or you
would not have a grant, let's say $10,000 or more.

Ms. HINCH. That would have to come out of the original total
figure, I would imagine, before you apply the formula. Therefore,
you wouldn't be taking it, although you would if there is only so
much money.

Mr. TAUKE. OK. Well, if you have any recommendations in that
regard, I think we would appreciate those recommendations.

How many basic grant applications are denied each year?
Ms. HINCH. That varies from year to year, depending on the com-

petition in each state.
Mr. TAUKE. Are half of them denied, or
Ms. HINCH. In California we get many, many applications. You

might find a third of them can't be funded, not only because there
isn't enough money, because they just don't compete well. It is not
always a case of lack of funds. In some states there is no competi-
tion.

Mr. TAUKE. That raises, of course, the question about the state
allocation formula. Right now it is based on under age 18 popula-
tion, is that correct?

Ms. HINCH. Yes.
Mr. TAUKE. Some states have relatively stable, I suppose, under

age 18 populations, with relatively few runaways, and other states
would have a higher percentage of runaways. Is the allocation on
the basis of under age 18 population a wise decision, or should we
be looking for some other means to allocate funds?

Ms. HINCH. That is a difficult question, Mr. Tauke. It seems to
work as well as any formula does right now. We have no sugges-
tions for another formula.

Mr. TAUKE. If we were going to go look at some other factors to
take into consideration, what measurable factors might we look at?

Ms. HINCH. One mightI will tell you something you might not
look at. One might consider out of state runaways, for instance,
that one segment of the country attracts, or one state attracts more
runaways than another. But based on the data that we have, that
really isn't so. You would think in New York, Hollywood, most of
the runaways who run to Hollywood are from Southern California.
Most of the runaways who run away to Times Square are from
New York City. Surprisingly enough,.the greatest percentage of out
of state runaways exist in Utah and Kansas.
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Mr. TAUHE. Maybe they are a lot smarter than we give them
credit for. I would have known that for sure if you had said Iowa.
YOu indicated some states have very little competition. They use
their allotment but they have little competition. Is that because in
those states the money is simply sufficient to meet the need in
your view?

Ms. Hmicx. I would imagine that any state would not tell you
that.

Mr. TAUKE. I understand that- but I am asking you that.
Ms. Him'. I think that some of the states are very well orga-

nized and they have allocated among themselves where they would
like to see the money go, and we appreciate that in a sense, be-
cause they are so organized they can meet the needs of the youth.

Mr. TAUKE. Maybe let me ask the question another way then.
Under the current formula, do you think that we are meeting a
greater portion of the need in some states than we are in other
states?

Ms. HINCH. I don't think really any greater in one than another.
The population shifts from year to year, and in justI know what
you are getting at. I have to be definitive about it, because it is
the runaways are so elusive and just because the ones we count are
the ones we know about, doesn't mean that the need doesn't exist
everywhere.

Mr. TAUKE. I understand that is it very difficult to get a handle
on it. Is there any kind of national incident study that is

Ms. HiNett. That actually is being conducted right now.
Mr. TAUKE. When would we expect to get some results?
Ms. Hi ricx. I am not exactly sure. It is being done through the

Office of Juvenile Justice by the University of New Hampshire. I
imagine within the year.

Mr. TAUKE. Do you think it might be worthwhile to base our allo-
cation on something like the result of that study?

Ms. Hnicx. It might be. We are interested f .1 seeing what the re-
sults of that study are.

Mr. TAUKE. Thank you very much. We appreciate your testimo-
ny.

Mr. Mum. Mr. Sawyer.
Mr. SAWYER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
In your testimony you touched on a number of the research and

demonstration grants which you have made. Those all appear
worthwhile. How much of the appropriated money under the Act is
used for that kind of effort?

Ms. HINCH. In total or in the increase, or are you looking for
both?

Mr. SAWYER. I am looking for a percentage or dollars, either
way.

Ms. Hniox. Well, I meant the total appropriation or the increase.
In the increase, virtually I think two percent o' the increase will be
used for discretionary programs.

Mr. SAWYER. How much overall within the total funding.
Ms. HINCH. You know, I don't have that percentage exactly. I

can get it for you, but let me address it a different way. Eighty-two
percent, 83 percent of the overall budget goes directly to the basic
centers, while the remaining portions indirectly to the centers, not
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only in the shelter demonstration models, but in the networks for
which we are mandated, the communications system. The hotline
and the high impact grants, which are grants made directly to
shelters as well.

Mr. SAWYER. Those you don't consider demonstration?
Ms. HINCH. The high impact grant we don't, but there are dem-

onstration grants that we do.
Mr. SAWYER. You don't have a clear sense of how much within

that total appropriations does go to them?
Ms. HINCH. It is about seven percent.
Mr. SAWYER. What kind of results do you get from these projects,

and how do you put those results to work?
Ms. HINCH. The money is actually used to fund a demonstration

project. It must be a model that they are developing. First of all,
there must be a need and it must be developed so that it can be
replicated throughout the country. We do disseminate the success-
ful products, most of which are successful. Therefore, it bottoms
from time to time.

Mr. SAWYER. That is why they call them experiments?
Ms. HINCH. Right. They disseminate these throughout the coun-

try. This is a youth self-sufficiency model, for example, that was de-
veloped and disseminated and is being disseminated throughout are
National Youth Resource Centers throughout the country, and this
is combating juvenile prostitution, which is not only of interest to
the shelters, but to the National Sheriff's Associations.

This is a training manual on suicide prevention, which as you
probably well know, is a problem that faces shelter staff, and they
brought it to our attention, and we addressed that with a cluster of
demonstration grants facing youth suicide and this is one that we
are very proud of.

This is Project Safe Place, which is a community based program
that offersputs these symbols in all of the hangouts where the
kids might go, MacDonalds and truckstops and 7-11s. Southland
Corporation has been very active in this, and the community has to
get involved and become a safe place where the young person can
go into the 7-11, and say I need help. The proprietor calls the shel-
ter and the shelter sends a volunteer to pick up the young person
and bring them to the shelter and they are handled as any other
runaway or homeless youth who would enter the shelter.

Mr. SAWYER. From these research grants materials are developed
that ,:an be used other places?

Ms. HINCH. Absolutely.
Mr. SAWYER. Do you have any record of how they are applied

programmatically? How the results are applied practically, as op-
posed to the dissemination of information?

Ms. Harm. After we disseminate them
Mr. SAWYER. Do you track them, how they are used and what is

the success?
Ms. Holm. We try to track them and we know numbers, for in-

stance, of how many communities have initiated a Safe Place pro-
gram.

Mr. SAWYER. It is not fair to ask you that sort of thing in detail,
but I would be interested in how the results of that seven percent
of the money is used to expand in application elsewhere.

6
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Let me come at it from the other side, and touch on something
that both of the previous Congressmen asked about. There have
been proposals to require certain percentages of the total allocation
to be used for basic center grants. How do you react to those kinds
of promises. So that we are not getting about 82-83 percent, but
that there be a fixed percentage that would go to basic center
grants?

Ms. HINCH. Certainly we would abide by the regulations after
maximum or minimum amount that has been spent on shelters,
but I need to point out to you that the small percentage of the allo-
cation that is spent on demonstration grants buys a whole lot more
than it could if the amount were divided among the shelters, and
they had to develop these programs on their own.

Mr. SAWYER. If there were to be a minimum figure for basic
center grants, do you have any notion of where that ought to fall?

Ms. HINCH. Do you mean a minimum per grant?
Mr. SAWYER. Percentage of the total allocation?
Ms. HINCH. I don't have a position on that.
Mr. SAWYER. 82 or 83%, are you telling me that is about right, or

it may be appropriately higher or lower?
Ms. HINCH. I think we are very comfortable right where we are.
Mr. SAWYER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. KILDEE. Thank you, thank you, Mr. Sawyer. One final ques-

tion. In your discretionary funding, do you fund independent living
programs? I know you fund the shelters, but for those who need
independent living situations, are you funding some of those at the
present time?

Ms. HINCH. Our money goes directly to the shelter for crisis
intervention. There are some very fine independent living pro-
grams, but we actually, if you are talking about the $45 million ap-
propriation for independent living that is part of the Children s
Bureauyou are not. But some of the shelters, such as Oasis
House in Richmond, Virginia, do have independent living pro-
grams.

Mr. KILDEE. Would it be helpful if we were to have some setaside
if we increase the appropriation, of course, for independent living
grants for your agency?

Ms. HINCH. Yes.
Mr. KILDEE. OK. We will look into that. Because you do find a

need for independent living programs, particularly among those
whom we classify as homeless, and I know this is not always a
clear definition between who is a runaway and who is homeless. At
some point we can t ecognize that it is not possible for a child to go
home because the family doesn't exist or the family is in a situa-
tion that it wouldn't be right for the child.

We need to do mote in the independent living area. Perhaps that
is something we can look at as we go through the reauthorization
of this law. We certainly look forward to working with you on this.
I think we share the same concern for children, and I have always
viewed these hearings as that, not a competitive thing. Your coop-
eration this morning demonstrates that and we will be contacting
you in the future. If you would supply for the record the informa-
tion that Congressman Sawyer asked for, we would appreciate that
and make it a part of the record.
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[Information was not submitted.]
Ms. H1NCH. Thank you very much.
Mr. KILDEE Any further questions? Thank you very much for

your testimony this morning.
Our second panel consists of Beverly Edmonds, Executive Direc-

tor of Metro-Help, Chicago, Illinois, and James Walker, Chair,
Board of Directors, National Network of Runaway and Youth Serv-
ices, Tulsa, Oklahoma.

Beverly, if you want to start off.

STATEMENTS OF BEVERLY EDMONDS, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR,
METRO-HELP, CHICAGO, IL, AND JAMES H. WALKER, CHAIR,
BOARD OF DIRECTORS, NATIONAL NETWORK OF RUNAWAY
AND YOUTH SERVICES, TULSA, OK

Ms. EDMONDS. Mr. Chairman and Members of the Subcommittee,
my name is Beverly Edmonds and I am the Executive Director of
Metro-Help, Inc, which holds the federal grant from the Depart-
ment of Health and Human Services to be the National Runaway
Switchboard.

I want to thank you for the opportunity to testify. I have submit-
ted a statement and would like for it to be included in the record. I
am prepared to summarize my statement at this time.

In 1974 after a number of cases of multiple abuse and murders of
runaway youth came to light, the Runaway Youth Program was
authorized by Title HI of the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency
Prevention Act of 1974. Section 311 of the Act authorized the Na-
tioniil Communications System for the purpose of assisting youth
in communicating with their parents and with youth serving agen-
cies.

An eight-month demonstration grant was awarded to Metro-Help
and during that eight months, 11,000 calls were handled. So a deci-
sion was made to continue the service. Metro-Help applied for the
grant along with several other agencies and in 1975 we became the
National Runaway Switchboard.

The NRS is a toll-free telephone service for runaway youth
across the country. It is extension crisis intervention and resource
referral services and supplements these services with an additional
function. It serves as a neutral aid in restoring channels of commu-
nication between runaways and their families through its message
service and the ability to make three-party calls, conference calls
between parents and children or shelters and children.

The NRS has reunited children with their families and when
that is not possible, assured that children calling us have been
linked to the referral best suited to their needs. This is a unique
service. There are other national runaway switchboards not called
by that name, but other national hot lines, but we are the only one
that combines all of the forms of assistance, including crisis inter-
vention, information and referral, conference calling, message de-
livery, training which is available to the public and a telephone
teletypewriter for the deaf.

In 1965, the Department of Health and Human Services asked us
to expand on services to include suicide prevention. We were con-
cerned about that need, as well, and so we agreed to provide that
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service. We are now additionally called the Adolescent Suicide Hot
Line and we answer about as many suicide-related calls as we do
runaway calls.

We have seen the service become increasingly more critical. It is
now believed that as many as two-thirds of the children in shelters
are suicidal, much less the kids at home trying to decide whether
to run away or kill themielves or the kids who are still on the
streets. Suicide is second only to accidents in the most frequent
cause of death in adolescents.

To our knowledge, we are the only national toll free number for
adults or adolescents which does suicide prevention. In 1987 the
Office of Civil Rights asked us also to include a telephone teletype-
writer for the deaf and we do have that telephone teletypewriter
and we will be in service with it within two months.

Recently, we have become aware of the fact that we are possibly
the first or the only source for score of our callers on AIDS infor-
mation, and so we are right now in the process of getting the train-
ing that we need to address that issue. Runaway youth are at
double risk of AIDS because so many of them are involved in both
prostitution and I.V. drug use.

We also see ourselves as an appropriate source of data on run-
away youth. We collect information on all of our calls and we pro-
vide that information not only to this subcommittee, but to the
media and other interested parties. We see ourselves, also, as not
only being a crisis intervention and information and referral, but
as a caring, non judgmental problem-solving kind of service.

We teach the kids who call us how to do problem-solving. After
12 years of service, the National Runaway Switchboard has become
one of the few stable resources kids on the streets can count on
wherever they go. Someone who is willing to listen and provide a
caring, calming influence to a child who feels unwanted and alone
is often what makes the difference between that child's decision to
die or to live.

I would like to tell you a little bit about what it is like to work a
hot line, because if you have never done it before, it is very diffi-
cult to imagine what those calls are like. Imagine picking up the
telephone and hearing on the other end of the line a 13-year-old
girl calling, telling you that her father has been abusing her for
the last two years and has been telling her that if she reports it,
she will be the one who is arrested.

It turned out that when that call came in, the volunteer on thu
other end of the line was a lawyer and was able to say to her, "I
can tell you that that is not true." I have a personal belief that the
right volunteers are always on the end of the line for the right
caller. I have seen that happen time and time again, and that was
one of the cases.

Sometimes we get calls from runaways who are in medical emer-
gencies. For instance, a girl who has been supporting herself as a
prostitute and has been stabbed because someone wanted to be her
pimp and she refused, she is calling us from a phone booth while
she bleeds to death because she is tired of the struggle and she
doesn't want to live any longer. She just wants someone to be there
with her while she dies.
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On the other hand, the call could be from someone like the manthat we just worked with, the Center for Missing and ExploitedChildren, to get arrested because ha had been calling for over ayear, after having picked up young girls at truck stops. At leastthis is his storypicked them up in a truck stop and he called sev-eral toll free numbers, including ours, saying if we did not talk tohim while he forced the little girl to fondle him, he would hurt her.We were able to get that man arrested with cooperation of acouple of state police departments and the Center for Missing andExploited Children. On. the other hand, it could be a call from achild who his left 'home believing that his parents do not wanthim, but we have a message from his parents saying, "Please callhome. We want you to come home." And when we are able tomake him aware of that fact and conference call to the parents, hedecides to go home, we are able to get him home.
Our volunteers are tremendously dedicated. You can imagine ifthey are answering calls like that how dedicated they must be.They answer calls from kids in the middle of nowoere who need toget to a shelter that is maybe 60 miles away. And what do we do?Kids who need long-term shelter because their parents don't wantthem. More and more suicidal kids, kids who call us again andagain before they get their courage up to tell us their stories be-cause it is so hard for them to trust. They have been so ill-usedthat they have to build up the capacity to trust before they areable to tell their story.
It takes tremendous, not only patience, courage, commitmentand training, but creativity to find resources where there seems tobe none. We have done things like call' restaurants to get interpret-ers for callers speaking Vietnamese or Indian or French. We havecalled hospitals and churches in rural communities to take in kidswhere there is no shelter immediately available. We even coacheda young girl to deliver her own baby because she was alone and inneed of help.
Over and over, I am struck by the terrible loneliness that thesekids feel. They have so many losses to deal with. They have losttheir trust, their safety and security, sometimes their health. Theyhave seen their friends die and they suspect that they are dying,too, from the drugs they used to anesthetize themselves enough todo the things that they have to do to survive. Or, from AIDS. It is arare child who can come in from it after six months to r year andlive anything like a normal or productive life.
After 12 years of being the National Runaway Switchboard, wehave become one of the few stable resources for these children. It isa big responsibility, but it is one which the staff and volunteersand Bostrd of Metro-Help are committed to fulfilling. We not onlysupport reauthorization of the Juvenile Justice and Delinquencyand Prevention Acts, especially the Runaway and Homeless YouthAct, we applaud you of the subcommittee for the work you havedone in behalf of these youth, and we thank you for the opportuni-ty you have given us to work with you.
[The prepared statement of Beverly Edmonds follows:1
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TESTIMONY OF BEVERLY EDMONDS

NATIONAL RUNAWAY SWITCHBOARD

Mr. Chairman and members of the Subcommittee, my name is Beverly Edmonds, and I
am the Executive Director of Metro-Help, Inc. which holds the federal grant from thz
Department of Health and Human Services to be the National Runaway Switchboard. I have.
held this position for only six months, but I have worked incrisis intervention for fourteen
years. I want to thank you for the opportunity to testify. Iam eager to tell you about the ways
in which we have been serving youth since 1975.

The National Runaway Switchboard began as a demonstration grant to Metro-Help,
Inc. in 1974. Metro-Help is an agency in Chicago which was formed in 1971, to fill a need for
comprehensive counseling and crisis intervention services devoted to at-risk youth in the
Chicago area. A group of community-based agencies with expertise in the delivery of youth
services envisioned one centralized organization with three elements:

Round-the-clock availability. At its beginning, Metro-Help was the only
youth services agency in the Chicago metropolitan area accessible to troubled
youth any time light or day.
Expertise in all yolithrelated issues. Metro-Help has the capacity to deal
with the wide range of needs and problems experienced by at-risk youth.
This capacity has made Metro-Help unique among the other existing youth
services agencies.
Capacity to act as a clearinghouse of information on existing services. Youth
services did exist in 1971; however, they were underutilized becausetroubled
youth either did not know of their existence and/or had not defined their
problem clearly enough to know where to seek the solution. This was one of
the critical gaps in effective youth services delivery in Chicago that Metro-
Help was designed to overcome. Once the crisis is averted, the problem
defined and solutions evaluated, Metro-Help has the resource base necessary
to guide the caller to sources of concrete aid.

In order to fulfill this vision of increased effectiveness in the youth services delivery
system, Metro-Help began its work through the Metro-Help Regional Switchboard in 1971.
Through the hotline, all callers are connected with trained volunteers who assist them in
defining their problem, assessing their options and choosingappropriate referrals if necessary.

In 1974, after a number of cases of multiple abuse and murders of runaway youth came
to light, the Runaway Youth Program was authorized by Tide III of the Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention Act of 1974. Section 311 of the Act authorized the National
Communications System (NCS) for the purpose of assisting youth in communicating with their
parents and with youth-serving agencies. An eightmonth demonstration grant was awarded to
Metro-Help. During that eight months, 11,000 calls were handled, and a decision was made to
continue the service. Metro-Help applied for the grant along with several other agencies, and
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in 1975 we became the National Runaway Switchboard (NRS).

The NRS is a toll-free telephone service for runaway youth across the country. It

extends the same crisis intervention and resource referral services as the MetroHelp Region.'

Switchboard, and supplements these services with an additional function: it serves as a neutral

aid in restoring channels of communication between runaways and their families. Through its

message service and ability to conference calls, the NRS has reunited children with their
families arid, when that is not possible, assured that the children calling us have been linked to

the referral which is best suited to their needs.

The National Runaway Switchboard is unique in the United States. Although there are

other national runaway telephone hotlines, the NRS is the only one which combines all the

following forms of assistance: crisis intervention, information and referral services,
:onference calling, message delivery, training available to the public, and a telephone
teletypewriter for the deaf. The National Runaway Switchboard continues to set the standards

for other national hotlines.

In 1985, we were asked by the Department of Health and Human Services to expand

our services to inch.Je suicide prevention. Since we knew of the urgent need for this type of

hotline, we agreed, although no additional funding was available then, nor has it been made

available in the last two years. We are now additionally the Adolescent Suicide Hotline and

answer as many suicide related calls as runaway calls. We have seen this service become

increasingly more critical. It is now believed that as many as twothirds of the adolescents in

shelters are suicidal, not to mention the kids on the streets or at home in abusive situations.

Suicide is the second highest cause of death in adolescence. It is second only to accidents

which are frequently disguised suicides. To our knowledge we are the only national toll-free

suicide hotline for adolescents or adults.

In addition, in 1987, the Office of Civil Rights decided that we should provide a
telephone teletypewriter for the deaf to serve hearing-impaired runaways and/or parents. After

meeting with representative agencies for the hearing-impaired, we learned that there was indeed

a need for this service, and that they were enthusiastic about our providing it and, in fact,
would publicize the number for us. We obtained a TTY and began training on its use. We will

be instituting this service as soon as we have determined the procedures, recruited enough
volunteers to man the TTY and located the funding to pay for the anticipated increase in our

telephone bill.

Over the years the nature of Metro-Help's assistance capabilities has evolved from a

loosely structured hotline staffed by untrained, but concerned volunteers to a tightly focused

youth service program staffed by extensively trained volunteers with the ability to access
professional backup and a resource bank comprising over 7,000 shelters, medical facilities and

other services nationwide. The credibility of our hotline is reflected in the fact that over
400,000 calls were placed to our hotline in 1987.

It is our future that I am most eager to tell you about. We keep discovering needs
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which we am uniquely suited to fill. Besides the SuicideHotline and the TTY service, we are
an important front line defense in the fight spinal AIDS. For some of our callers, we are
frequently the first or only contact who oculd provide AIDS education and referrals. Runaway
youth are at double risk of AIDS because so many of them are involved in both prostitution and
N drug use. It is imperative that we are fully trained to handle these calls, and we are in the
process of obtaining that training.

Metro -Help is often used as a resource for others seeking to develop, revise or update
services for atlisk youth. To facilitate the sharing ofour information with other agencies or
public officials interested in youth issues, Metro-Help established the national Agency
Information and Referral Service hodine. In 1987 alone, we receive(' over 300 inquiries from
other organizations or public officials seeking information. Recently we, along with the
Department of Health and Human Services, were instrumental in getting all the national
adolescent hotline directors together in order to establish ways that all of us can work together.

We me ourselves as an source of data on runaways for this Subcommittee
as well as all other interested parties. Data is collected on each call and used to analyze
operational and programmatic needs. Met to-Help is therefore in a front-line position to identify
trends in problems experienced by at-risk youth and to educate the public about youth issues.
We are currently seeking funding to complete the computerizationnecessary to provide that,
data more accunnely and in a more timely fashion.

To my knowledge we are the only national runaway hotline which routinely
conferences calls between the referral given and the caller in ostler to determine the suitability of
the referral and the ability of the caller to physically get to the referral. At the heart of our work
is the belief that at-risk youth must confront, evaluate and ultimately make personal decisions.
Because of this service and our commitment to a caring, nonjudgmental, problem-solving
approach, our average call lasts longer than hotlines whosee themselves as primarily Wand
services. Our commitment is to quality service, however,so we spend the time that is needed
for each call. Suicide calls may run as longas five or six hours, but we consider saving a life
to be worth whatever we have to do.

Max twelve years of service, the National Runaway Switchboard has become one of
the few sable resources that kids on the street can count on wherever they go. Someone who
is willing to listen and provide a caring, calming influence to a child who feels unwanted and
alone is often what makes the difference between that child's decision to die or to live.

With each added responsibility comes a need for more volunteers, more st...f, more
telephones, more training, more publicity and more funds. We are in the process of expanding
to a goal of 250 active volunteers. With the ability to answer more calls comes an increase in
expenses. Within two years we expect our telephone bill alone to be between $500.000 and
S1,1:50,000. Our present federal grant is $350,000.

A hodine is a strange animal, not like anything else. Imaginepicking up the telephone
not knowing whether this call is going to be from a 13-year-old whose father is sexually
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abusing her and telling her that if she reports the abuse she will be the one to go to jail. Or
maybe the call will be from a runaway girl who has been on the streets for two years, has just
been stabbed by a man who wanted no be her pimp and rather than going to the hospital, she
just wane someone to talk with while she bleeds to death because she is tired of the struggle.
On the other band the all could be from SOMME like the man we just worked with the Center
for Missing and Exploited Children and several state police departments to locate so that be
could be arena He had been calling $OO numbers for at least a year saying that he had a
young girl with him, usually be had picked her up at a truck atop, and if we would not talk
with him while be forced the little girl to fondle him, be would hurt her badly. Still again,
maybe this all wilt be from a child who left home believing that his parents did not want him,
and we ere able to tell him that his mother has called and left a message for him and that she
loves him and wants him home.

These are some of the kinds of calls that are answered by our volunteers every' day.
These people donate their time to take calls from kids considering running away, kids in the
middle of nowhere who and to get to shelter or medical care, distraught parents, kids who
need long -term shelter because their parents do not want them, more and mom suicidal kids,
and kids who call us again and again trying to decide whether they can must us enough to tell
us their stay. They have been so ill-used and have been so long denied the safety and security
we all need, that they test us repeatedly before taking the chance to tell us about their anger,
their loss, their far.

It takes tremendous patience, courage, commitment and training to handle calls like
these. It also takes incredible creativity to find resources for callers where there scam to be
none. We have called ethnic restaurants when we needed a Vietnamese or Indian or French
interpreter. We have called hospitals and churches to shelter a child overnight who is 60 miles

from the nearest official shelter. We even coached a young girl through the delivery of her
baby over the phone.

Over and over I am struck by the terrible loneliness these ldds feel. They lave so many
losses to deal with. They have lost their trust, their safety and security, sometimes their health.
They have seen their friends die and suspect that they are dying, too, from the drugs they use
to anesthetize themselves enough to do the things they have to do to survive. Even without the

threat of AIDS, they know that they have lost their futures. It is a rare child who can come in
from the streets after six months so a year and live anything like a normal, productive life.

After twelve years of being the National Runaway Switchboard, we have become one
of the few stable resources in these children's lives. It is a big responsibility. One which the
staff, volunteers and board of Metro-Help are absolutely committed to fulfilling.

We not only support reauthorization of the Juvenile Justice and DeUnvency Prevention

Act, especially the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act, we applaud you of the Subcommittee
for the work you have done in behalf of these youth and thank you for the opportunity you
have afforded us tojoin in that work.

S
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Mr. KILDEE. Thank you very much.
Mr. WAucu. Thank you. I am James M. Walker, and I am Direc-tor of the National Resource Center for Youth Services with theUniversity of Oklahoma and here representing the National Net-

work of Runaway and Youth Services as their Chairman. I wouldlike to thank you, Congressman Kildee, and members of this com-mittee, for the opportunity to come before this group and to discussthis very real issue and important concern in our country today.I would also like to commend this committee for also schedulingtake Montoya as a witness this morning and your regular use ofyouth in your hearings, and this is an excellent example of youthinvolvement, which is very strongly supported by the National Net-work.
Currently, on our national board of 17, four are young people

who have taken a very active and leadership role within our orga-nization to help us remain on target, and your work here and yourdedication to youth involvement is a very good example that wehope other committees will follow.
The National Network of Runaway and Youth Services is an or-ganization of community based youth serving agencies. It has ap-proximately 1,000 affiliate or direct members across the country

representing every state. They provide shelter, counseling, educat-ing, youth employment, training and crisis intervention.
These agencies also provide referrals to health, mental health,

legal and other social services within the community. Historically,
these agencies have served as a community catalyst to advocate for
more and better services and opportunities for the young people intheir communities.

This dual role of both direct services and acting as a communitychange agent has been a key to the runaway and service programsbeing accepted by local communities at large.
The membership of the national network unanimously supports

a continuation and expansion of funding of the Runaway and
Homeless Youth Act. Since its inception, it has been successful in
the provision of crisis and shelter services. Through its grantees, it
has been successful in involving legal communities and state agen-cies to focus on the needs of these very vulnerable young peopleidentified as runaway end homeless youth.

Of the members responding to a recent national network surveywhich the total was 150 agencies, of the 150, 86 were currently
Runaway Youth Act grantees, but of those receiving RHWA fund-ing, that funding equaled 34 percent of their total funding of each
of their programs. bo by far, it is not the total support for the localagencies.

In the same survey, the agencies that were receiving United Way
Funding equaled 27 percent of the total funding of each individual
agency. The rest of the money comes from cities, counties, statesand I am very proud of the fact that in the State of Oklahoma, myhome state, that although there are only seven Runaway Youth
Act funded shelters in the State of Oklahoma, there are a total of31 programs operating in the state with state funding totaling 7.5
million fox these programs in the state appropriation.

Other states also have become involved in this. Some of th. m areTexas, Florida, Michigan, Wisconsin, that are combining with this
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federal funding to reach out to provide more and more comprehen-
sive services. An issue of great concern to the network membership
at this time, though, is the funding pattern that has already been
discussed here this morning.

That is with a relatively stable funding base, the funding of more
and more basic center grants, which is reducing the amount of
funding for those shelters or, as you have already pointed out in
some years, some shelters get money and in next year's other shel-
ters do.

We do support the competitive process, but we also support the
multiyear funding that has been implemented, and would like for
you to be cognizant of the fact that there is this federal money that
has been a very good tool for local communities to raise the sup-
port of both state and local and private entities to fund these pro-
grams. And there is a real balance, and if the federal money goes
and comes, it makes it very difficult for these agencies to retain all
their other funding, as well.

Not only is there a great deal of local funding support, there
these programs, as Ms. flinch, testified, are very innovative and
creative in how they are able to keep their allegations going. An-
other piece of information that came from our recent survey is that
out of 150 agencies that responded, that represented 36 states, at
any one time there are 1,165 volunteers on any given day, that
many volunteers involved in the programs, which is one reason
they are able to operate on such an inefficient amount of money.

With the total number of volunteer hours equaling 346,298, this
merely 150 agencies responded out of the 800 to 1,000 programs
providing runaway and youth services across the country. So you
can multiply those figures by a great deal.

Mr. WALKER. The Runaway and Homeless Youth Act continues
to influence service delivery and program standards across the
country, even with agencies that do not receive this money. In
many cases States have developed funding as the base line on
which to operate. The National Resource Center for Youth Services
is currently publishing a new manual for shelters, and once again
we have relied very heavily on the standards from this act to set a
criteria of operation for these programs.

The survey that I have already spoken of also indicates a signifi-
cant increase in youth identified as having been sexually and phys-
ically abused by a parent, this has come to 51 percent in this
survey, and another 10 percent by other family members that have
been abused either sexually or physically. This totaled 61 percent
for this particular survey.

What we are finding is the young people coming to the shelters
have a lot more problems than in the past. Many of the shelters in
the very early days of funding were serving the role almost of a
safe house, of young people traveling that did not seem to have
quite the problems that they have today. At this point they are op-
erating as short-term crises prevention facilities. Fifty-nine percent
of the youth we reported as having school problems, such as being
truant, suspended, expelled or having dropped out.

The young people that are coming to the shelters at this point
are multiple-problem, tong -term situations in which the shelters
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are needing to be much better trained and a much higher qualityof staff.
Another issue that is most difficult and most challenging for usto deal with is the issue of youth homelessness. We have troubleidentifying the number of youth that are actually homeless and notjust considered "runaway" because the studies that have been done

on homelessness have rarely included much information on home-less youth. One, homeless programs across the country generallywill not accept teenagers, especially teenage boys, because of theproblems that they feel arise from mixing the teenagers with theolder populations.
When the surveyors have gone past going to the shelters and

have gone to the hangouts where homeless people congregate, onceagain they have missed the number of homeless youth becausethose hangouts or places where they gather generally are also notfrequented by youth, and the youth are somewhere else. So we arecontinuing to have a problem in needing to know even the numberof homeless youth and also looking for creative programs to dealwith those.
There are several around the country that work with this intheir local communities. We ea_ Jarage the funding of transitional

living projects that will provide shelter and services to the home-less youth of America. Street kids face incredible dangers in theirevery-day existence, ranging from AIDS to drugs to alcohol depend-
ency, and we must develop methods to protect them.

Program findings have shown that youth are very willing toleave the street, that they are looking for a way out, that they arenot there because they necessarily want to be, and yet we must de-velop very creative answers to problems that can meet the kidswhere they are and work with them to bring them back to be pro-ductive.
The National Network of Runaway and Youth Services encour-ages the continuation and increase of funding for the Runaway

Homeless Youth Act. We also support that the majority of thismoney should gc, for the basic center grants. They are the key tothe services being provided. But, as I talked to that, the type ofyoung people coming to the shelter has changed dramatically. Wemust continue to have creative programming being developed toreach out to other populations and to serve the more difficultyouth.
The Network supports adequate funding of the regional coordi-nated networks and the discretionary grant programs. Our empha-sis is the basic centers, but we are asking for an adequate fundingin the other areas as well. Although the task is a very difficult one,with your continued interest and support our nation's very profes-sional and dedicated youth services providers can continue to strivefor successful solutions for troubled youths.
I would like to close with a quote from Julian Borg, Director of

the Nashville Youth Network, and a youth representative on ourNational Board. Julian stated at the Statewide Conference in Okla-homa City: "However complex the cultural lag from our increasingtechnology, however tragic our divorce rates, however overwhelm-ing our national deficit, we cannot afford to systematically force
children to bear the brunt of. these' larger societal problems. The
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resources of our nation are surely sufficient that we do not need to
triage our youth and throw away those victims of violence who
need us the most. We do not lack the know-how or the money to
care for these young peoplewe only lack the will to get on with
the task."

I appreciated each of your comments this morning about your
support and willingness to continue to work toward this endeavor
of serving this very vulnerable population.

Thank you.
[The prepared statement of James M. Walker follows:]
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I am James M. Walker, Director of the National Resource Center for
Youth Services at the University of Oklahoma in Tulsa, Oklahoma,
here representing the National Network of Runaway and Youth
Services, Inc. as their Chairperson. I would like to thank
Congressman Kildee and the members of the Subcommittee on Human
Resources for inviting me to discuss the Runaway Youth Act and our
efforts to serve our nation's population of runaway and homeless
youth. I would also like to commend this committee for encouraging
the involvement of young people such as Mike Montoya in this hearing
process. The National Network strongly supports youth participation
and demonstrates our commitment to the concept by having youth on
our Board of Directors. Currently, young people hold four of
seventeen seats and have taken a real leadership role within our
organization.

I would like to quote one of our youth representatives, Julian Borg,
of Nashville, Tennessee, from a speech he made at a statewide
conference in Oklahoma City in December, 1987:

"Youth participation is simply another means of
complementing the efforts of those serving youth. Youth
services are vital but at present are not the best they
could be. Youth need to be involved directly in policies
and programs which affect them. They need to join in the
process of creating, implementing, and establishing
decisions which directly or indirectly affect youth life
style, education, or legal rights. Who better can
identify with and understand the problems of youth than
another youth? Youth participation is meaningful
involvement of young people in those organizations, and
stitutions, that affect their lives. It is an avenue

for the unique youth perspective to be shared, considered,
and utilized. It is an effective way to insure that a
youth policy will work."

1
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Your regular involvement of youth in hearings is an excellent
example for other committees to follow.

The National Network of Runaway and Youth Services is an
organization of community based youth serving agencies. It
represents approximately 1,000 affiliate and direct member agencies
in every state providing services of shelter, counseling, education,
youth employment training, and crisis intervention. These agencies
also provide referrals to health, mental health, legal and other
social services within the community. Historically, these agencies
have served as a community catalyst to advocate for more and better
services and opportunities for its young people. This dual role of

both direct service provider and community change agent has been a

key to runaway and youth service programs being accepted by the

local community at large.

The membership of the National Network unanimously supports the

continuation and expansion of funding of the Runaway and Homeless
Youth Act. Since its inception, it has been successful in the

provision of crisis and shelter services. Through its grantees it

has also been successful involving local coi" 'tunities and state
agencies to focus on the needs of these very vulnerable young people
identified as runaway and homeless youth.

Of the members responding to a recent Network survey, the Runaway
and Homeless Youth Act provides approximately 34% of the funding for
programs who receive RHYA grants. This money leverages additional
funds to provide or expand these services. The survey also
indicated that for those agencies receiving United Way funding, it

accounted for approximately 27% of their total budgets. I am very
proud that in my home state of Oklahoma, there are seven RYHA funded

programs but a total of thirty-eight agencies operating on a state
appropriation of $7.5 million plus additional United Way, city,
county and private funding. This combination of funding has been a
key in the ability of the Oklahoma Association of Youth Servic,..4 to
have shelter and crisis services available to over 90% of the state

population.

An issue of great concern among the Network membership is a funding
pattern that has developed over the past few years to fund a larger

number of basic center grants without substantial increases in the

total funding amount. This has meant decreases in funding to most
shelters and significant decreases to many. Although we support the

need for expanded development of new programs and a competitive
grant process, successful, established community programs should be

protected from damaging, and sometimes fatal budget reductions. The

balance of multi-funding bases is a delicate balance and requires
careful scrutiny before successfully altering it. The base funding
provided by this act can be the key to leveraging the local public
and private dollars that facilitate quality services.

Not only are there other direct financial resources supporting the
community-based youth service providers, our survey indicated that
the 150 respondents representing 38 states have an estimated 1,165
volunteers at "one time" with a total 346,298 volunteer hours
contributed. At a minimal rate of five dollars per hour, that
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contribution for those 150 programs equals $1,731,490. These
programs also reported in-kind contributions of $1,083,200.

The Runaway and Homeless Y 'ith Act continues to influence service
delivery and program stanuards even when local programs are not
directly receiving this funding. States that have established
funding for runaway youth services such as Texas and Florida have
modeled their guidelines and standards after RHYA. The National
Resource Center is currently publishing a shelter resource manual
that relies heavily on the RHYA standards.

There is absolutely no doubt that the need for services for runaway
and homeless youth continues to grow. With an estimated one to one
and one-half million runaways, there are just not enough beds
available whether you look at the major metropolitan, suburban orrural areas. Our preliminary survey of 150 agencies show the numberof youth served:

A) on a residential basis
B) on a non-residential basis
C) on a one-time contact basis
D) on a telephone contact basis

FY86 FY87

31,047 30,510
30,742 35,457
42,945 58,283
79,211 88,804

The reduction in the number of youth sheltered could be caused by
several factors. Two of the most probable are the reduction in
individual RHYA grants or the difficulty in working with the more
difficult multi-problem youth. The centers responding to the survey
reported that 3,854 youth were denied shelter admission because they
were deemed as inappropriate (usually too disturbed) and another
3,352 were turned away due to no available beds.

The survey indicates a significant increase in youth identified as
having been sexually or physically abused by a parent (51%) and
sexually or physically abused by other family members (10%). This
total of 61% far exceeds our 1985 survey which indicated a rate of
approximately 18%. We believe that one of the reasons for this large
increase in identified cases is due' to the discretionary funding of
adolescent abuse programs that further educated the runaway
shelters on this issue. Fifty , percent of the youth were
reported as having school problems such as being truant, suspended,
expelled or having dropped out.

The issue of homeless youth remains one of our most challenging
problems. We must be able to develop innovative services to reach
these disaffected youth on whom we have so little data. Studies
done on the homeless rarely include information on homeless teens
because they generally cannot receive services at adult homeless
shelters nor do they congregate in the same locations with homeless
adults. we encourage the funding of transitional living projectsthat will provide shelter and services to the homeless youth ofAmerica. Street kids face incredible dangers in their every day
existence, ranging from AIDS to druc and alcohol dependency, and we
must develop meth,As to protect the.n. Program findings show strong
indications that youth will make very serious and repeated efforts
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to leave the streets. Quoting our Executive Director, "Young reople

turning away from the streets must develop trust in someone who
meets them where they are and does not confront them with
judgmental and rejecting opinions about their life. There must be
innovative programmatic efforts to reach out to these young people."

The funding and operation of these community-based youth service
programs have also assisted in relieving the pressure caused by the
deinctitutionalization of status offenders by the juvenile justice

system. The runaway centers have provided positive alternatives for

referral for young people who have been diverted from the more
traditional juvenile justice system.

Since the initial funding of runaway shelters, there have been
significant changes in the variety and quality of services being

provided. As has already been stated, the problems facing the youth

entering a runaway center today are much more complex than what they
appeared to be a few years ago. Shelter staff must be much more
sophisticated-and better trained to be able to adequately cope with

these young people. Communities arw becoming more aware of the
problems facing our teens and are looking to their community youth
service agency to respond to the identified needs. In many cases
the pilot projects to test/ demonstrate new concepts have been
funded through discretionary grants. Very often, these innovative
noncepts are being picked up through local funding sources and are
being replicated across the country. This limited source of funding

foir creative, and in many cases, unproven projects have assisted
programs to remain on the cutting edge of service delivery.

The National Network of Runaway and Youth Services encourages the
continuation of funding for the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act with

the majority of the funding for operations of basic center grants.
We also support adequate funding of the regional coordinated
networks and the discretionary grants program. Although the task is

a very difficult one, with your continued interest, concern and
support, our nation's very professional and dedicated youth service
providers can continue to strive for successful solutions for our
troubled youth. To quote Julian Borg once again, "However complex
the cultural lag from our increasing technology,n however tragic our
divorce rates, however overwhelming our national deficit, we cannot
afford to systematically force children to bear the brunt of these
larger societal problems. The resources of our nation are surely
sufficient that we do not need to triage our youth and throw away
those vi'tims of violence who need us the most. We do not lack the

know how or the coney to care for these young people-- we only lack

the will to get on with the task." I believe that the American
people are more than willing to do whatever is necessary to
literally LAve the young people currently being lost due to lack of

adequate allocation of our nation's resources to meet their needs.
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Mr. KILDEE. Thank you very much, Mr. Walker.
Ms. Edmonds, has the National Runaway Switchboard adequate-ly been able to handle the number of incoming calls? Are therepeak times of the day or year, do you have any statistics as to howmany times a person may call, a young person may call, and find abusy signal? Have you done any research on that?
Ms. EDMONDS. First let me tell you I have only been director for

six months, so I am going to be telling you some things I am in theprocess of changing once I become aware of the situation.
Peak times ,.re after report cards come out. That has been ourdiscovery. It is not around Christmas, it is not necessarily summer;it is report card times, and our phones are busiest in the evening

hours, like after four o'clock. The busy signal rate is alarming tome and to all of us at Metro-Help. We have been taking steps inthe last few months to really reduce that.
Let me tell you some of the things we are doing. Nrst, we arereally building up our volunteer corps. We are aiming 4. 250 vol-unteers, and we have an agreement with the Department of Healthand Human Services on a plan on how we are doing that. We haverecruited 60 volunteers in the last two months. We believe the vol-unteers are there in Chicago, it is just a matter of going out andgetting them, and we have been pretty successful so far in doingthat. As we get more volunteers and we are able to answer morecalls, the problem with that is that our phone bill comes up dra-matically, so we are also in the process of writing grants and look-ing for funding in order to pay for the phone bill to answer the ad-ditional calls.
We just put in additional telephone lines, but not equipment yet.We are still looking for the funding for that equipment to be therefor the new volunteers coming in, to have more people on at onetime to answer more calls.
We also are in the process a finishing our computerization, get-ting the rest of the hardware and programming so we can give youbetter statistics on the number of calls that we do answer. Rightnow the statistics that I have don't jibe with what AT&T tells us,so I really don't have a good idea to be able to tell you how manywe are actually answering. I can tell you, from what the telephone

company gives us, about 400,000 calls are placed to us each year.That is a lot of calls, and that is going to take an enormous budgetto be able to pay for it. The phone bill is going to cost us between$2 and $5 a call, and we are trying to figure out how muchthat- -
Mr. KILDEE. The budget is $350,000?
Ms. EDMONDS. We get $350,000 from the government, and ourbudget is $400,000.
Mr. KILDEE. I asked the question about the busy signal, becausehaving taught school for many years in an inner-city school, wehad a real cross-section of Flint, Michigan, in that school, I oftensaw young people frustrated because their parents were too busy,and I am just wondering what their reaction is when they call forhelp, and they get a busy signal again. It may be the system is toobusy for them, and it can be frustrating. Maybe they won't call thesecond time. I am concerned about the parents, or someone else,being too busy to listen to them.
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Ms. EDMONDS. We are concerned about that too, and we are
moving as quickly as we can to get the time it takes to get through
to us cut dramatically. One problem is we don't want to compro-
mise the quality of service especially because we are the adolescent
suicide hotline now. There is no way I want to put a limit on the
time we put on calla. A suicide call could take a volunteer five to
six hours sometimes on one particular call, and I don't want them
to feel like they have to get off the phone and possibly take
chances with someone's life just so we have more- -

Mr. KILDEE. If your budget were increased, could you both im-
prove the technical quality of your equipment and perhaps have a
better outreach program for volunteers to come into the program?

Ms. EDMONDS. Exactly, yes. I think what we have been doing, we
have done the best we could do with the existing resources, and we
have made the decision we just simply must get more resources in
order to be able to handle this volume.

Mr. KILDEE. I know there are a lot of people out there of every
age, a lot of retired people, who have experience as grandparents
and parents who often even are looking for something worthwhile
to do, and perhaps an outreach program would give you money to
reach out into the community, let them know what the need may
be, increase your number of volunteers. Couple that with upgraded
eqlepment and perhaps you could respond to the needs of more
yor ng people.

Ms. EDMONDS. Yes. Partly it has been a need for more staff as
well, not only to produce the kinds of materials we need to go out
and do the. outreach, which costs money, but the more people we
have on the phones at one time, the more likelihood there is if
there is a serious call coming in, they need supervision or help, to
trace the call or that sort of thing. So I need more staff people to
be there 24 hours with the volunteers. Obviously, every increase in
the number of calls increases the need for space, need for equip-
ment, need for staff, need for materials, everything.

Mr. KILDEE. I think your program fills a very important need, so
we will certainly look at this and see what we can do. I personally
feel this is a high priority, and we will compete in the budget proc-
ess with other areas. We will compete with sunflower subsidies. I
think kids can compete very well with sunflower subsidies.

Ms. EDMONDS. I appreciate that, Mr. Chairman. I am very excit-
ed about the things we do, especially in preventing kids from not
only just killing themselves but from running away or doing other
things that might be harmful to themselves. So I appreciate hear-
ing that you consider us a high priority.

Mr. KILDEE. Mr. Walker, from time to time I and my three teen-
agers go out to a place in Alexandria called Christ House where at
6:00 o'clock every evening they feed the homeless. I have noted an
increasing number of young people coming there for help.

What type of commitment is needed to address the needs of the
homeless child? Can an agency provide a shelter, short-term type
shelter for the runaway and, also have as one of its services, maybe
elsewhere, some means of independent living for those who are
homeless?

Mr. WALKER. Yes, definitely. There are programs around the
country that are providing services to the homeless. Many of these

....
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kids that are homeless have been part of the system, have receivedservices in the past and are very cautious about getting caughtback up into the system where they feel they have absolutely nocontrol. Some examples of some excellent programs that are run byshelter operations and other youth services is The Bridge in Bostonoperates a homeless program where kids can come in, get a mealand visit with the counselor. They also have free dental clinics inthe evening with volunteer dentists, where kids can have theirteeth worked on. They also have a medical van that goes through-out the community, goes to the kids, where the kids are living, andprovides medical services at night so that kids who need to havesome medical or dental help car, get some services.
The Los Angeles Network is doing a multi-agency thing of pro-viding food, medical services and counseling, and trying to providelontterm stabilization of these youth where they can move back into living in a what we consider normal environment.
The Street Works in Bridgeport, Connecticut, serves about 450homeless kids a year and are providing services once again to helpfocus them and move them back into society.
There are a variety of programs. Again, it takes a slightly differ-ent approach, many cases of going to them rather than expectingthem to come in. Again, as we deal with the homeless populationwe need to also protect the funding and the programmatic phasefor the runawargiillters.
Mr. Mum. you very much. Mr. Tauke.
Mr. TAME. Ms. Edmonds, I want to congratulate you for the out-standing work you do. It just appears as if the program that youoperate is one of the most successful and worthwhile programs thatwe have to deal with the problems that we are discussing thismorning, and I really appreciate what you are doing.
MS. EDMONDS. Thank you.
Mr. TAUXE. Car you tell me what the relationship is between therunaway switchboard and the Missing Childrens' Toll-Free Hotline,if there is any relationship?
Ms. EDMONDS. No formal relationship, but we do work well to-etlyz. In Lid, in December, DHHS invited all the national hotlinedirectors to get together to find ways we could work together, andthat was the fiuit, time I had met the director of the Missing Chil-drens' Line. And shortly after, we were able to work together onbeing able to find that particular caller I mentioned in my state-ment, and he has some procedures for being able to trace callsthroughout the United States, which V's* have not been able to do,and has worked with us on being able to find that in Chicago, to beable to do that as well. So we just have a vely good working rela-tionship.
Mr. TAUKE. How many hot lines are there nationally when all ofyou got together, the directors? How many were there?
Ms. EDMONDS. There was a Center for Missing and Exploited

Children, Covenant House, Hit Home, from San Diego, and there isanother one in Texas called Runaway Hotline, but they were notpresent.
Mr. TAUEE. So thereare four or five.
Ms. EDMONDS. Except the Center for Missing and Exploited Chil-dren is a different thing, so really there are four runaway hotlines.
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Mr. TAUKE. Do you have a practice of referring calls from one
hotline to another?

Ms. EDMONDS. Yes, we do. We refer several calls to the Center
for Missing and Exploited Children. We would really not have a
reason to refer them to one of the other hotlines.

Mr. TAUKE. Mr. Walker, there seems to be some kind of relative-
ly clear difference between the services needed by runaway youths
versus those needed by homeless youth, where we kind of lump
them together in the current Act. Do you think we should try to
differentiate between the two in the reauthorization of the Act?

Mr. WALKER. That is a very difficult question. The type of pro-
grams providing the runaway services, I feel, are probably the most
capable or able to deal also with the homeless population. These
agencies have been, have developed a track record of working with
kids. Of this recent network survey, 20 percent of the kids coming
to the programs were self - referrals, and, again, as I said, this is
what we are looking for with the homeless population. It is them
being willing to interact with an agency that they feel they can
trust and won't et caught up in.

So I' think it is a good match. Whether we are using the term
"runaway" or "homeless" more or less gets into a time line of how
long they are gone in many cases rather than just runaways have
left the happy home and can always return. So I think that it can

iwork together in the same bill. We need to find more resources and
creative ways to deal with the two populations.

Mr. TAUKE. From your experience, do the networks and individ-
ual centers utilize the National Resource Center for Youth Serv-
ices?

Mr. WALKER. Yes. We have a very close working relationship
with the national network, with the regional coordinated networks
and the local programs. We began our operationwe are in our
early part of our third year of operations as a resource center, and
the staff had basically come out of the runaway system. So we
started with very strong contacts there and are continuing to look
for ways to make linkages and disseminate information.

Mr. TAUKE. Is the Resource Center the best way to disseminate
information?

Mr. WALKER. I am somewhat biased on that point. Yes. Again,
when you start a national project from ground zero to develop, it
takes some time. But we are finding that we arewe feel we are
doing a good job, where we are at this point, in gathering creative
information on programs and helping to disseminate it, and we are
doing that both directly and then through linkages with the region-
al coordinated networks and the national network, so we feel we
are really linked in and agencies are aware of our existence and
ability to provide information.

Mr. TAUKE. You expressed some concern in your testimony about
the dissolution to the shelters, and I gather, you suggest we not
only have more money but perhaps we should have some kind of
minimum grant level for the shelters. Did I interpret that remark
correctly?

Mr. WALKER. That would be helpful. How do you give a certain
amount and continue to expand the number of shelters? There only
seems to be one answer, and that is more money. There is a need
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for more shelters throughout the country. The capacity of the shel-ters is in most cases running at full force and abovemost of thetime. But because of this balance of funding, many times the Fed-eral money is used to leverage other money, and if 20 to 30 percentof an agency's budget is gone or reduced significantly, it causestraumatic problems on an agency that may be operating from fiveor six funding sources already.
So, yes, a funding base would be wonderful.
Mr. TAUKE. There are some who argue that the more sheltersyou have, the more shelters you will need. In other wards, it makesopportunities more available to young people, and so, therefore,they will use the facilities. Do you think there is any merit at all tothat kind of argument?
Mr. WALKER. I don't find anything wrong with us providing bedsfor young people that need them rather than them sleeping on thestreets.
Mr. TAUKE. Well, that doesn't really address the argument. Theargument is that in a certain community, let's say if beds are read-ily available, more young people will choose to take advantage ofthat option and leave home if things get troublesome with the par-ents. Do you think there is any basis
Mr. WALKER. The huge majority of young people going to shelterprograms return home or return to a relative or another stablehome environment. It is not once they have gone to the shelterthey are then lost from the family. The emphasis of these agenciesis to maintain that family connection and to work with them in thecrisis situation to re-unite the family, so by having more sheltere, itdoes allow the kids to go to a place that is safe or safe places, oneof the projects that has been talked about, and more quickly returnhome rather than the youth going through the trauma of being onthe streets or without the counseling services and then havingmore difficulty re-entering the home environment.So the more shelters, the more quickly that they can return tothe home.

Mr. TAIIKE. Your indirect answers to the question almost makeme believe there is some merit to the argument. Generally wedon't hear that much from witnesses that come before the subcom-mittee, but you don't have to talk to too many people out there inthe street to hear the arguments. They say if we create anotherhundred beds in Des Moines, Iowa there is going to be more kidswhen they get their report cards who are going to say, "It is such aproblem at home, I will spend a couple nights at the shelter", and,therefore, the youth will create a demand to fill whatever sheltersare available. I, in the past, have dismissed it as an entirely falla-cious argument, but is there some merit to it?
Mr. WALKER. No, I don't believe so at all. There is a largenumber of young people turned away from shelters at this timedue to the fact there is no space for them that are already lookingfor beds, and that is the reason for the answers I have given before.Again, the shelters are not looking to bring more kids in, and inthe intake procedure generally we will identify if there is a trueneed for shelter or not. In many cases, with youth coming to a shel-ter or calling a shelter, it immediately calls in the parents and it is
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resolved at that point. I would say there are very few youth in
America there for a night or two because of report cards.

Mr. TAUKE. The last question for either one of you is: is there
any kind of coordination between the services you provide and
school districts across the nation? Do you hear much from school
officials? Do you have any kind of working relationship with them
either in communicating information about what services you offer
or working with them to help them do what they can to prevent
problems?

Mr. WAucza. One of the strongest points about these programs is
that they are community based, and, as I have already stated, they
are multiple-funded. I would say that the huge majority of the pro-
gr across the country are working directly with their schools.

ere are a variety of school outreach programs dealing with drop-
out prevention where the schools make direct referrals, and there
are working relationships and in many instances working agree-
ments between the school systems and local programs to assist
them in retaining kids in school and dealing with problem situa-
tions.

So, yes, there is a great deal of communications between school
districts and local shelter and youth service programs.

Mr. TAUKE. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. KILDEE. Mr. Sawyer.
Mr. SAWYER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Ms. Edmonds, when you go about the business of recruiting folks

to help, I assume from what you said that you look for people
whose backgrounds are compatible with the needs that you face.
When Mr. Walker mentioned the need for training you nodded,
and you talked about the kind of assistance and supervision that
sometimes is necessary in the course of a particular call. How
much formalized training are you able to bring up front? Where do
you get it? Does it need to be supplemented, and how much goes on
just after they have begun to work?

Ms. EDMONDS. I am very proud of our training, so I am delighted
you asked me about this.

We have 40 hours of formal training before the volunteer ever
gets on the lines, and that training is in areas like crisis interven-
tion and runaways, adolescence, suicide prevention, substance
abuse, incest and rape, very heavy into listening skillsthose are
most of the areas.

Now, I have been a trainer all over the United States, I used to
have a company where I provided training for people like IBM,
Data Point, Taco Bell, and all sorts of different people, and I do a
lot of training, but then I bring in experts from the community to
talk about their areas of expertise, like substance abuse, incest and
rape, suicide, those particular areas.

After the volunteersoh, and the training is only one-third di-
dactic, it is two-thirds practical in small groups, so they get a lot of
practice before they ever get on the lines.

After that 40 hours of training, they don't just get onto the lines,
they have a period of time where they listen in to calls and where
they are only on the phone being supervised and our supervisors
can listen to the calls, so they are closely supervised and screened
before we allow them on the lines.

i .
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Now, one way I have been able to recruit more volunteers is byopening the training to anyone. We feel like the training is a com-munity service and the more people we can turn out with these
kinds of skills, the better for the community. But it has been inter-acting that in each case when it has come down to the time to say,all right, how many of you are going to go on and be volunteersand how many want to stop now? Not one person has wanted tostop to this point. So, that has really increased the number ofpeople who have come into the training, and after they have gonethrough their initial period of training, we provide in-services asfrequently as we feel are needed or as we can.

Now, I have only been there six months, but we are looking forin-services at least about once a month. We are also going back andreevaluating all of the volunteers who were trained before I gotthere to find out whether they are up to the standards that I setand whether they need some additional training.
Mr. SAWYZR. Thank you. It sounds like a marvelous program. Itleads me directly to the question I wanted to ask Mr. Walker. Ireally buy into the idea that you shared about the importance ofthe kind of funding we provide being used to leverage State andlocal assistance. Certainly the kind of community participationthat Ms. Edmonds described is enormously important in that.When you were talking about the competitive process and themulti-year character of funding, it struck me, whether or not inthat competition for subsequent funding, it might not be wise tobuild in a weaning process, that is, a process by which onenot anelimination funding but one of the measures of competitiveness forfunding would be the capacity to reach out into a community, de-velop community support, both in terms of effort, in terms ofmoney, so that we are really providing an incentive to do what wewould all agree is important.

Mr. WALKZR. The funding currently from the recent survey isproviding 34 percent of the funding. With the programs that I amaware of in Oklahoma which are receiving funding, it comes closerto 10 to 20 percent. To me, that is a pretty good weaning. Weaningmuch past that, you get into elimination of support. These pro-grams are doing an excellent job of seeking out other sources offunding, of dealing with the private sector, the corporate sector,the United Ways, as well as State agencies.
One of the isse?s, as the amount of money has been reduced, isthat for programs to remain open, shelters have begun tonothave to, but chose te take on other responsibilities. As an example,as the runaway youth monies goes down, they may begin to con-tract a number of beds in the shelter for use by State agencies,which reduces the flexibility and the ability to serve possibly allthe runaways coming to tae program. So there is already, as in thelast few years, as the funding has fluctuated, agencies have had tochoose in some cases whether to close or to change their services,and in some cases again away from the runaway youth to a differ-ent type population.
So although it is happening, and I think it is probably one of thebest examples in the country, of finding k 31 support for socialservices, there is a loss as this money decreases.

. .
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Mr. SAWYER. Let me ask did I hear you say you don't believe it
would be wise to build that sort of thing in, or that it would be dif-
ficult, or that it is happening anyway and so it ought perhaps just
to be allowed to happen?

Mr. WALKER. Yes. It would be difficult. I don't know that it
would be wise, and I think that if there could be a stable funding
base of these programs where then they were able to go from that
point, as they have Identified other needs of youth expanding their
programsbut it is a juggling act, and these agencies spend a great
deal of time trying to keep the doors open and providing adequate
and quality services that to then add a weaning or reduction proc-
ess into it I don't think would be productive.

Mr. SAWYER. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. KILDEE. As a corollary to that, I do know there are agencies

who don't apply for the Federal funds because if they apply, an-
other agency will lose its Federal funding. It is a really difficult
choice.

I think one of the ways we could solve the problems all of us are
concerned with here is to raise both the authorization level and the
appropriations level, then maybe we could fine -tune some of these
things. I think all three of us have shown our concern because we
recognize that shelters are faced with some very difficult choices.
We will look at the prospects of increasing the authorization and
working through the budget process to see if we can get an in-
creased appropriation.

We really appreciate your testimony this morning, and we look
forward to continuing to work with both of you as we go through
this reauthorization. It is a very important bill. We will be in con-
tact with you. Thank you very much.

STATEMENTS OF DEBORAH SHORE, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR,
SASHA BRUCE YOUTHWORK; HID!. AVENv, EXECUTIVE DIREC-
TOR, STEPPING STONE; CAROL THOMAS-SMEDES, VICE PRESI-
DENT, MICHIGAN NETWORK OF RUNAWAY AND YOUTH SERV-
ICES; AND MIKE MONTOYA, A STEP FORWARD, THE SANCTU-
ARY

Mr. KILDEE. Our third panel will consist of Deborah Shore, Exec-
utive Director, Sasha Bruce Youthwork; Hida Avent, Executive Di-
rector, Stepping Stone; Carol Thomas-Smedes, Vise President,
Michigan network of Runaway and Youth Services; and Mike Mon-
toya, A Step Forward, The Sanctuary.

Deborah, do you wish to start?
Ms. SHORE. Chairman Kildee and members of the committee,

thank you for inviting me to join you this morning. I am delighted
to voice my support of the reauthorization of Title III of the Juve-
nile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act.

This morning, in addition to informing you of the ways the Act
makes a difference for youths and families in crisis, I hope to chal-
lenge you to become advocates for this population. Your thoughtful
consideration and active support of programs for families in need
of help truly strengthens our society and serves as an investment
in the future. Helping troubled families and runaway children
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today prevents delinquency, homelessness and increased strains onour society tomorrow.
I founded Sasha Bruce Youthwork (SBY) in 1974 and have been

serving runaway and homeless youth and their families ever since.This morning I would like to describe to you the four populationsof young people that require assistance and discuss how the actdoes or does not serve these young people.
The four populations I think beak down first into the group of.oubled young people who have resolvable family problems. Thisepresents about 75 percent of the young people that we see, andthey are greatly aided by the kinds of services we are able to pro-vide through the act. We believe and I think can show our ap-proach of working with families really help;; to stabilize the youngperson and move them back into their communities successfully. Infact, in our program 95 percent of the young people who run awayfrom home are able to successfully go back into a stable living situ-ation. For this population we address the needs of these families

and encourage the provisions of comprehensive family services.That is the good news.
The bad news is the need is far greater than the services wehave to offer. The basic center grant funding, I think, is targetedquite appropriately and is a truly ei.ective means, but we are inthe position even those families where the problems are resolvableand we know quite well what to do, we are not in a position toserve all of them. In fact, in the District we had a task force thatlooked at the problem specifically for our population and foundthat there were at least, at minimum, and this is what everybodywould agree to, at minimum 2,000 young people that were notbeing touched by any services who were known to be runaways.They had missing persons reports, 'they were away from home.
I strongly believe, and 1 know this is a reauthorization hearing,and 'I am not as knowledgeable about the distinctions perhaps, thatthe grants for the basic centers and this program in general have astrong basis to argue for a great increase. Wa are doing a tremen-dous amount of work with a -.ery small aril:4ra of funding overall,and it is a very successful amount of work that we are doing. Ithink that the allocation n N.,,ds to be increased totally, which will I

think allow for the allocation,. to individual programs and to Statesto also be dramatically incree.ced. If there is a drop-off of a third inCalifornia, the States that perhaps don't have the resources or so-phistication to encourage grantees, there has to be at least thatmuch. If we had t, -o-thirds more funding, think of the things wecould do. We certainly in the District could probably reach 2,000additional children a year.
The second population that I think that we serve is young peoplewho are essentially homeless. These are young persons a lot lessvisible than the adult persons who sleep on the streets. We don'tsee them in the food lines or shelters, but they are there.There are many very successful programs around the countrythat are providing services to these young people and helping themto make the transition to independent living. However, in order forthose services to work, they are culling a group of young people

who have the motivation, skills and resources to move to independ-ent living. Not all 16-year-olds are ready for that, and yet we have.
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a tremendous population of 16-, 17- and 18-year. olds too who are
not ready for independent living but also don't have families, and
that brings me to the third population.

The third population are young people that we see who have
who do not have resolvable family problems or in most cases don't
have families at all and are not ready for independence. At this
point, I think, that we have to say that the act, and no other struc-
ture either, is not responding to that group of young people, or at
least not well enough. These are young people who would most
likely be seen if they were not teenagers as be;ng neglected or
abandoned and go into the formal structures, but that is not hap-
pening in most places, so we are often in the position we are put-
ting together a system of support for that young person that we
know is not the best or the most stable circumstance for those
youth.

The fourth are the young people who live on the streets, and
they are the ones that we all see most often, because the media fo-
cuses so much attention on the young prostitutes and young people
who have to make their lives on the street. In terms of the young
people, I want to say I don't think there is a mandate in our socie-
ty to do much about those youth, but if there were, we would have
to recognize very specialized services would be needed in order to
really make a difference.

That is one of the other points that I want to make. In terms of
these various populations, I think our kinds of services provide
very well for the two populations, the young people have resolvable
family problems and the independent-living youngsters, provided
there is specialized services fir those young people. It is not the
same thing to help a young person move in the transition to adult-
hood in a crisis mode. It doesn't fit, it de in't work. There has to be
the capability developed to help them through that transition,
which is often a yeas or 18 months. Certainly we know how to do
those things, but without resources in many places they are plainly
not going on.

I just want to say I think one of the things that we have to recog-
nize about it is without this kind of system, there is an insidious
allowance really of these young people to move into the other sys-
tems that exist, the juvenile justice system, the mental health
system, the homelessness system. and that certainly does happen.
The fallout from us creates problems elsewhere.

However, I want to say that what is wonderful about the Run-
away and Homeless Youth Aet, is we have developed some tremen-
dous successes. and we know how to do things, and we are tremen-
dously able, if we get a young person at an early enough point, to
make a real difference following that course of self destruction and
family destruction, and s;, 7 think more than anything else that is
what mandates or should guide the kind of active support that this
kind of a bill really needs and to recognize, because we are provid-
ing such a tremendous service and successfially in preventing other
kinds of societal problems that are much more troubling, we really
need to enhance the system that 'we have, the capability that we
have to provide those services.
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We can do the work, but we can only do the work to a limitedextent if we are not in a position to make the kind of outreach onthe young people we know we are not touching yet.I think the act has made, and this is kind of a compilation, atleast three contributions: The positive pl-icement rate of 94 or 95percent :nears an overwhelming majority of young persons arehelped to reconcile with their families or find another stable livingsituation. I think that alone argues for us not only to be able tocontinue but to be really able to develop the capacity to do thethings we know how to do.
Again, less obviously, I think all the youth, when they are helpedin this way, in this much less e-rpensive , won't enter some ofthe other very costly and very destructive systems. We know thesesystems are not doing a good job of helping young people to movetoward productive adulthood. Reconciling troubled families savestaxpayers' dollars and helps assure our children are a more productive adult.
Additionally, and in a broader sense, I really believe that familfocused services really help to strengthen our communities. I twe work with families because that is the basic social unit. But tostrengthen families means you are touching the lives of a lot morepeople in a community. Whatever the problems are, however weanalyze the problems, I think everybody agrees we need to havecc umunities and families able to help their young people to grow,ant much of what is not going well for people is that very break-down.
I just want to say that most of my prepared testimony began toget into the issues of the formulation of the current pie that exists.And I feel inspired by hearing some of the questions, particularlytoday, to say that I really think that we would be having a verydifferent conversation if there were in the broader sense the realcommitment to this way of trying to reach trouble people beforethe problems got too terribly bad that they had to enter the otherformal systems.
You know, the issue there are 2,000 young people in the District,that is not at all unique, I don't think the District has anythingunique about it except being a city-state perhaps. We have a 12-year old in the District who just held up a store to be able to getcocaine. That, too, is perhaps something that we are seeing in acity that has an extreme amount of poverty. But that means thatwe are moving in that direction after all.And I just feel very strongly that I want to use the opportunityto say, to whatever extent I can be convincing to you, this is a pro-gram that really does work, that we do make a difference ix. thelives of young people and families and, therefore, convince you inyour role, becoming a true advocate for the program is of value toyou; then I feel like I have at least done something here today. Be-cause I really do feel, I do have some ideas about what shouldhappen in terms of the formulation, but it would be wonderful tobe talking about three times the amount of money, and then wecould be looking at what we are doing for kids.

However, in the formulations I do believe the basic center grantsshould be getting the highest priority.,1 think that the provision ofbasic services should be expanded and should be at minimum about
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85 percent of the total amount of money that is there. I think
many of the current funding levels are much too low to allow new
service prov Iders to offer services or to asst. quality program-
ming.

Sasha Bruce Youthwork currently receives all the basic center
funds allocated to the District of Columbia under this act. The allo-
cation, which is the lower limit, is $39,000. It represents 11 percer
of the costs to maintain the shelter. The shelter itself serves over
300 people a year. In our outreach program we serve an additional
200. Many shelters need to contract out bed space to existing gov-
ernment services in order to make ends meet. This is not the intent
of the Runaway and Homeless Act. The act is meant to provide
emergency help to young people and families need who come by
self-referral.

A basic center grantee, it seems to me, should not need to sell its
beds to another government system for its existence. Similarly,
since funds are allocated by States, new programs in the States
which have great need but already have several good problems are
discriminated against because of the high level of services in their
State.

Additionally, the legislation should allow sufficient flexibility
that allocations could be made o States based on a formulation of
perhaps 75 to 125 percent of the State allocation, the minimum
being 75 percent, but the allocation could go up to at least 125. So
there could he a flexibility to spread between States where the
needs were.

Additionally, I would propose that there be a five percent pot of
'al money for programs which can argue special circumstances.

ere are programs in this country serving a tremendous number
of young people, for instance, programs that have an especially
great problem in finding other funding. Sc that there could
again, some flexibility to target funds.

Additionally, current State allocations are made based on the
youth population of under 18-year-olds. I think the allocations
should be based on ten to 17-year-olds or ten to 18-year-olds, de-
pending on how you do it, so it is targeted to the population of
teenagers who are much more likely to be young people who would
be running away.

Another point I want to make is I don't believe any State or Ter-
ritory should get less than $75,000 as a lower limit for a State. I
think that it is problematic for some of the smaller places to be
able to raise all the additional funds that they would need, and
$75,000 would still continue to be seed money.

Finally, the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act can be strength-
ened by more effectively using funds set aside for more coordinated
networks. What I am suggesting here is to.allow the natural group-
ings within a particular region to come together and compete
equally for coordinated networks. It would not be hard to do this, I
don't think. It would just he a change in the wi.ly things are done.

I want to say something b.aout the research and demonstration
grants. j think that many of the research and demonstration
grants have been tremendously helpful, have really helped to bring
some knowledge in looking /how we are doing the work that we
are doing. I do think given the current circumstance, and perhaps
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continuing circumstance, of there being a limited pot, that theR&D money should be limited and that the emphasis should be onbasic centers; certainly not eliminated, but limited perhaps to fivepercent of the total, and that the preference should be given inthose programs to programs that are going to contribute directly todircct practice.
Thank you again for the opportunity to join you this morning. Ihope it will be helpful.
[The prepared statement of Deborah A. Shore follows:]

a
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Chairman Kildee and members of the committee, thank you for
inviting me to join you this morning. I am delighted to voice my
support of the reauthorization of Title III of the Juvenile Justice

and Delinquency Prevention Act.

This morning, in addition to informing you of the ways the
Runaway and Homeless Youth Act makes a difference for youths and
families in crisis, I hope to challenge you to become advocates for
this population. Your thoughtful consideration and active support
of programs for families in nee. of help strengthens our society and
serves as an investment in the future. Helping troubled families and
runaway children today prevents delinquency. homelessness am.
increased strains GA our society tomorrow.

I founded Sasha Bruce Youthwork (SBY) in 1974 and have seen
serving runaway and homeless young people and their families ever
since. I have attached information about our agency to this

testimony. Therefore I will briefly describe our work and the general
problems facing troubled families in Washington, D.C. Then I will
specifically describe the four populatonr of young people requiring
assistance from the runaway and Homeless Youth Act and discuss how the
Act does or does not serve these young people.

I. Youths in Crisis in Washington, D.C. and Sasha Bruce Youthwork

Washington, D.C. is a city with a high incidence of runaways,
homeless teens, youth at risk and drug involved youth. It is a amity

of contrasts. We are surrounded by a wealthy large metropolitan area
that includes parts of two other populous states. While the suburbs

are mostly white, the city has a large minority (70 % black residents,

95% black enrollment in public schools) population. While the
Congress establishes policy and grapples with national social issues,

so-1: of the most intransigent social problems flourish in the shadow

of the Capitol. Among these social ills: li4 of all live births in

the District are to teenagers, 53% of all youth between 14 and 18 a-e

on public assistance, black youth unemployment hovers at 40.5%, D.C.
has the highest crime rate index in the South Atlantic Geographic
Division, the senior high achool dropout rate is 32%, and PCP and
cocaine use are at epidemic proportions among teenagers and young
adults (D.C. is considered a PCP capital of t'i country).

Divorce and single parent households dominate f lily life in the
city and large numbers of teenagers who have grown t. with family,
school and economic problems, are turning at younger ages to running
away, drugs and early disaffection (for instance, an eleven year old

was recently arrested for drug sales).
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Runaway programs have special knowledge about Cle homelesspopulation. Independent living programs need not be run by Basic
Center grantees or other runaway service providers. However,
independent living grantees should be required to show a strong
relationship with a runaway services provider. At a minimum this
should be a referral relationship.

Despite the need and proven success working with homeless youths,
money for this program should not be taken from Basic Center Grants.
At a minimum the Act should mandate services for the homeless youth
population. States ar.d the Federal Government should be challenged to
Allocate portions of their funds for homelessness toward the future:our teenagers.

C. Yount! People Who Do Not Have Resolvable Family Problems And
Are Not Ready For Independence

This population is growing and we have few solutions for them.
They are young people who were abandoned or abuses. or whose families,
for some other reason, are unable to care for them. However, they arenot yet old enough or mature enough to begin self-sufficiency.

This year 15% of the young people who came to the Sasha Bruce
House were in this group. These youths need long term planning and
support. The Runaway and Homeless Youth Act should challenge the
states and thn District of Columbia to provide for these young people.
Documentation of need could certainly be established by gathering
information from Basic Center grantees. We need more information
about what is happening to these young people and new positive
strategies to serve them.

D. Youths Who Are Living on The Streets

This is the most visible, population of young people out of the
home, yet our society is not definitive about its commitment to helpthem. Helping these youths is possible, but not easy. They require
special long term efforts -- a crisis intervention model is not
sufficient.

A special Federal effort, not possible under the Runaway and
Homeless Youth Act, should mandate services to this population.
Successful strategies to help young people off the street should
incorporate close cooperation between service providers and law
enforcement agents. Simply contacting these youths is not eufficient.They need to develop relationships with service providers who canoffer support when they experience a crisis and decide to leave the
streets. Law enforcement agents and service providers should becomeallies to insure that such services are made available.

III. Support for Reauthorization of the Act and Suggested Funding
Priorities and Amendments

This act has eurned reauthorization. The success of the program
is evident through its positive placement rate and effectiveness at a
means et returning youths in crisis to stable living situations. I
do not know of anywhere in the country that the formal social service

e 4
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Funding for Basic Center grants should be increased. This is the
most significant area of Runaway and Homeless Youth Act funding and it
effectively serves the majority of those youths in need. Va must
increase allocations so new providers can become grantees and current
grantees can better respond to the needs.

B. Older Homeless Adolescents Who Cvn_lsenefitirompendent
Livine Services

This second population is another that we know how to help.
Although it is lest visible than the population of adult homeless who
sleep on the streets, America has a large population of homeless
adolescents who need more than crisis intervIntion services. Given a
specialised program which includes employment and life skills training
and support, they are able to become self sufficient adults.

This population of young people is between 16 and 19 years of
age. They are to old for moat available social services, but not yet
ready to be independent. They have not been able to reconcile with
family or find other nature: resources. Their family has died, they
have been abandoned, or they cannot return home due 10 abuse or severe
family dysfunction. They know how to survive, but n't how to mkke it

on their own.

Through a discretionary grant, Sasha Bruce Youthwork has
established an Independent Living Program for this populaton here in
Washington, D.C.

The Sasha Bruce Independent Living Program

The Independent Living Program (ILP) is the newest Sasha Bruce
Youthwork effort for Washington's '.omeless youths., Through the :LP,

qualified teens (16 and older) locate suitable foster homes, receive
employeen. counseling and help with finding a job, and work toward the
goal of becoming financially independent. The ILP also provides
counseling, helps the youths find apartments and roommates, and offers
start-up financial assistance when they are -eady to strike out on

their own.

Once a young perscn is stabilized in a job and home, the

Independent Living Program continues ,o help, identifying basic rkills

and training needs. In addition, the program provides aftercare
followup to assure that each youth has the support needed to succeed
in living independently.

Since, the program's beginning, in 1986, 88% of t%e homeless

youths who have entered the program have conquered homelessness. Ovor
two-thirds have successfully established complete indeponds tte.

The Runaway and Homeless Youth Act has taken a firrt step towards
providing for this population by recognizing its need or s.rvices.
Now, the Act should mandate services for this population and call
upon agencies addressing issues of homelessness to recognize and

respond to the needs of older homeless adolescents.

Il
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A. Young People Whose Family Ppblems Can Be Resolved

The vast majority (probably 75%) of young people who runaway or
are in crisis, are in difficult family situations

which, with the
proper support, can be suc,:essfully resolved.

To help the majority of runaway teenagers we must help theirentire family. We must see them not as problem children, but asmembers of a family system which has broken down and become
dysfunctional. As service providers, we help family members stopblaming each other for problems in the home and start working together
to create a successful family structure.

By the time a young person runs away or a parent throws a young
person out of the home, both the child and the parents feel likefailures. Neither feels the other pay attention or understands. Thefamily is often experiencing typical tension between adolescents and
parents, but the family lacks the skills or proper supports to workout its problems. Eventually, either the parents or the child or many
times both parties decide that this will be better if the child is nolonger in the house.

Ninety-five verse-It of missing children are runaways. They arc
young people who left home to make things better. Their leaving homeis a cry for help and for support for themselves and for their
families. They don't run far, typically not more than two milesawa:,. from home. But they run far enough that someone will payattention.

The Runaway and Homeless Youth Act suc=essfully begins to addressthe needs of these families because it encourages the provision of
comprehensive, family focused services. Basic Center grants support
outreach to families in crisis, adequate assessment of needs,
emergency shelter, individual, group and family counseling andaftercare.

The most successful runaway programs around the country have
comprehensive programs which combine all of those components. OurSasha Bruce House, for example, had a 95% positive placement rate for
young people who stayed at the t-elter last year. That means wehelped 95% of the young people return to a stable living situation --75% of the residents reconciled with their families found a new way toget along with their families and successfully returned home. Ourstaff receive two hours of training each week in structural family
therapy and we provide multiple family support groups after youngpeople return home.

That's the good news. The bad news is: the need is far greaterthan the service providers capacity to respond. Basic Center funding
is targeted appropriately and is the most effective means of serving
the majority of troubled families. However, the funds are
insufficient. Typically, preventive outreach services and supportive
follow-up aftercare are the first things to be eliminated when fundingis tight.
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Rulasays in Washington, D.C.

SBY served over 500 youth last year in our runaway and homeless
youth programs. Of the youth we served in the Sasha Bruce House
residence, 95% were positiely placed into stable living situations
and family counseling eery ces are provided to almost 90% of all
families. But our efforts stand out as a lonely example of quality
alte.native for families in need and outr4ach is all too often
limited t, the youth or families who happen to hear of our agency. In

fact, we know that there are many thousands of District and
out-of-state youths who have runaway from home but for whom no
intervention services are made available.

Over two years ago and with a grant from HHS, SBY and the Child
Advocacy center organized the D.C. Task Force on Runaway and Homeless
Youth whose final report elucidates the problems with the "system* for
runaway and homeless youths in the District and makes recommendations
for change. Through a careful analysis of the available data, it was
determined that 2,300 D.C. youth were known to have run away in the
last year and were provided no services. The committee agreed that,
at minimum, each year 2,000 of these youth would likely avail
themselves of services if they were offered. A major gap in the
service system for many of these youth is when they are returned home
by police and not referred for services. The D.C. police are now
restricted by internal regulation from referring to private agencies
but based on the Task Force'n strong recommendations, we hope this; can
be changed. Additionally, the report noted the serious lack of
information for youth and families who are at risk about Community
services and the great need for preventive home based family services.

Profile of a Typical Client

SBY serves Washington area youths in crisis (ages 8 to 19) and
their families. Most of these young people are members of
single-parent families and are experiencing problems such as lack of
family structure, poverty, overcrowded homes, or family involvement
with drug or alcohol abuse. Typically, SBY clients are having
probleme at home, in eThool, and in the community. Many of them
suffer from low self - esteem, and have become street-wise and
distrustful rather than auccesaful and happy in.their relationships
with others.

II. Four Populations of Youth Needing Assistance from the Runaway and
Homeless Youth Act

There are generally tour populations of troubled young people for
whom we must provide services. Each troubled young person and family
has a unique set of circumstances and problems which must be

addressed. I suggest the following categories, not to over simplify

those problems, but to give us a context in which to discuss
solutions. The solutions for these populations are not always the
same.

I
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Sasha Bruce Youthwork, Inc.

Sasha Bruce Youthwork, Inc. (SBY) is a private, non-profit
organization that serves over 1,000 youths in crisis and theirfamilies each year.

Agency Nistor

Sasha Bruce Youthwork, Inc. began as a stieetwork counseling
agency (Zocalo Outreach) in 1974 to help the large number of runaway
youths on the streets find the services available to them. Zocalocontinues to seek out and work with young people in their natural
settings (at school, home or community). It provides crisis
intervention and runaway prevention and links youths and families whowould not otherwise self-refer with a helping network of services.

We opened am ) Bruce House in 1977 as a temporary home forrunaway and homel. a teens. The house is open 24 hours a day and
provides shelter for 350 youths each year. Our work with young people
and their families helps most youths return home. In 95% of all
cases, we help youths return to a stable living situation which meansthey do not continue to ron or become institutionalized.

In April 1979, we began Community Advocates for Youth (CAI) to
allow juveniles awaiting court proceedings to remain in the community
under careful supervision rather than be incarcerated. In June of thesame year our Consortium for Youth Alternatives

was formed to providean alternative to court processing for alleged offenders. It isjointly administered by four youth agencies. These programs for courtreferred youths have an average of a 19% ro-arrest rata for youth
which compares to the rate of 65% to 70% for youths who go through
normal court processing.

The Roes Parks Shelter Nome, for youth deemed to be beyond
parental control, began in Juno of 1981. It now servos eight (8-14
year old) boys in a short term residence which improves damaged family
relationships, assists youths in their schooling and develops better
interpersonal skills. Then, in November 1903, the Sasha Bruce Nousemoved to its present location at 1022 Maryland Avenue, NE and in 1984,the former building became the home of our new Teen Mothers Program, aresidential program for neglected an abused teenagers and theirbabies. The first of its kind in the District, this long term
residence improves parenting skills and de/elops life management
skills that enable independence.

In 1986, Sasha Bruce Youthwork, Inc. officially began an
jndenendent Living Program to help older homeless adolescents makethe transition t, seli sufficiency. We teach the young people lifeand employment and support them as they move out on their Own.

Each of the programs started by Sasha Bruce has survived and
grown and enjoys an excellent reputation for its services andmanagement. In 1988, we will again help between 800 and 1000 youthsand their families. These clients will receive individual, family andgroup counseling as well as education and legal assistance,
recreation, job placement and advocacy.

66



63

system doesn't rely upon the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act to keep
"young people out of unnecesuary systems by reconciling families.

Three contributions of the Act should be especially noted. Moat
notably, the positive placement rate of 94% for all youths served
in 1987 means that the overwhelming majority of young people
served were helped to reconcile with their families or to find another
stable living situation. That alone is a significant accomplishment.
But, less obviously, all of the youths helped were also prevented frou
entering other systems -- most notably the juvenile justice system.
Reconciling troubled families eaves taxpayers dollars and helps assure
our children a more productive adulthood. Finally, family focused
services strengthen the health of our communities. Empowering young
people and their familiars to resolve their probluma strengthens the
family unit which is at the root of our society.

It is because of the proven success of this Act as it is Written
that I challenge you to critically consider any amendment which might
weaken the Act's effectiveness.

As I described earlier, Basic Center 'rants provide the cora of
this Act's effectiveness. They should be given highest priority and
no amendment should bo accepted which could diminish these grants.
Rather, the Act's provision of services through Basic Center grantees
should be expanded. The total funding for Basic Center grants] should
be increased and should not comprise lean than 85% of the total funds
allocated under this Act.

Another way in which the Basic Center grants could be
strengthened in by eatablishing minimum amount for grant awards. Many
current funding levels are too low to allow new service providers to
offer services and too low to insure quality programming for youths in
crisis.

Sasha Bruce Youthwork currently receives all'of the Basic Center
funds allocated for the District of Columbia under this Act. However,
the city's total allocation, 839,759, represents only 11% of the
cost to maintain the Sash& Bruce House, the only emergency shelter in
the District of Columbia which houses over 300 young people each year,
We have been ....)le to piece together supplemental funding, but other
small states with high incidences of runaway behavior ahare our
dilemma. Many shelters need to contract out bed apace to existing
government social aystems in order to make ends meet. This is not
the intent of the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act. The Act is meant
to provide emergen-y help to any young person or family in need at
anytime. A Basic Center Grantee should not need to depend upon
another government system for it existence. There is not enough
money available! because moneys are allocated Imlay on the basis of
the number of youtng under age 18 in a given state.

Similarly, since funds are allocated by states, new programs in
states which have groat need, but already have several good p..ograms,
are discriminated against because of the high level of service in
their state. The allocation ii fixed by the legislation and cannot be
expanded to include more flexibility insuring that good programs get
developed and funds are not loft unused. The legislation should allow
sufficient flexibility that allocationo could be made to the stator

- -: t
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based upon not less than 75% or more than 125% of teeir youth
population.

Alternately, I would propose that the Act set aside 5% of its
funds as a supplemartary pot of money for programs which can argue
that theirs aro npecial circumntancen. This money could be
distributed through a special allocation process after the regular
grants allocation process.

Currently, state allocations are made Wined upon the number of
youths under 18 years of age. In fact, allocations should be belied
upon the number of youths in the state who are 10-17 yearn of age
because those youths are the moot liable to run away or need
supportive An:vices. No atate or territory's allocation should be
less than *75,000.

Finally. the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act can be strengthened
by more effectively using funds net aside for coordinated networks.
Currently, these funds aro distributed to the Regions, but a Region
is often not a natural network. Natural groupings of providern,
whether local, statewide or regional, should be encouraged to form
networks and allowed to compete for coordinated networking funds.

Again. I heartily support reauthorization of the Runaway and
Homeless Youth Act. The changes I nuggent are meant to further
strengthen the Act's use of Basic Cantor Grantees for the continued
provision of ennential services to Runaway and Homeless young people
and their families. We have established effective methods to help
troubled families; we must now aspire to help all of those in need.

Thank you again for the opportunity to join you thin morning.
I beg ;our thoughtful consideration. I welcome your guentiona and I
thank you on behalf of the runaway and homeless young people we serve.
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Ms. AVENT. I am H. M. Avent, project director for Stepping Stone
Youth Crisis Shelter and also project director for the Middle House
Youth Transitional Living Project, located in Santa Monica.

Stepping Stone is a short-term crisis shelter, 14-day limit, provid-
ing the usual counseling, advocacy, peer staff counseling, family re-
unification services. The Middle House Project is an independent
living program serving adc'escents 16 to 17.

Stepping Stone is supported partially by a basic center grant and
the Middle House Project is partially supported by a discretionary
grant.

I am very pleased to be here. It is not often that a service provid-
er has the opportunity to input directly relative to our own exist-
ence money-wise to the people who actually make these kinds of
decisions, so it really is a pleasure. i feel that the reauthorization
of this bill is critical, particularly in the Los Angeles area or the
State of California. Many of the youth we serve would otherwise go
unserved.

Unfortunately, the State of California has no ongoing State-spon-
sored programs directly affecting our runaway and homeless youth.
There is a pilot program authorized by the State under a special
act. However, funding for that will discontinue as of June.

On the local level, the only public entity providing comprehen-
sive services to runaway and homeless youth is a pilot project oper-
ated by the Department of Chi likens' Services.

Now, we are talking about Los Angeles County. Los Angeles has
a reputation for being a mecca for runaway youth. We have the
greater of Hollywood, we have 35 miles of public beaches, and until
December we had great weather. In Los Angeles County, there are
70 beds, 70 crisis beds. Forty-two of those beds are operated by pri-
vate, nonprofit agencies. four of those agencies are partially sup-
ported by basic center grants, and the fifth will be applying for a
grant this cycle. The remaining beds are operatedare foster beds
operated under contract with the Probation Department, which ba-
sically means of that 70 beds, only 42 of them are accessible to
youth without having to go through the system or Probation De-
partment.

As a result of this, we are finding in LA County we are turning
away a tremendous amount of youth. The data I am going to give
you was culled from a system of care reports operated by the Chil-
drens Hospital, Los Angeles High Risk Youth Project. We are a
member of that data collection system, and our data varies little.
There are some differences.

From October 1 of 1986 through September 30 of 1987, the five
shelters turned away almost 3500 kids. Stepping Stone, in a month,
may turn away 80 or more kids in a day, depending on how cold it
is, how wet it is and what other services are available. We may get
calls from 20 or 30 kids, so there is definitely a need to be ad-
dressed here.

We lcok to the numbers of youth, particularly those youths who
migrate from out of state. Our data indicate one out of five are
from out of state. Thirty-seven states were represented, so we are
getting a fairly broad range of kids. However, the bulk of the kids
that we serve do come from LA County. The next greater number
comes from out of state.

,.. 89
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The system care shelters provided services to 1600 youth duringthat period, the SODA system ended up serving 1300 youth. There
are also fol.. r drop-in centers in the system, and they provided serv-ices to 7,000 youth in the area. Most of their youth, however, arefrom out of town, and the differences, shelters require consent anda lot of kids don't want parents contacted at this point, and theyknow that and ultimately don't come into the system.

In terms of socioeconomic data, about 42 percent were homeless,and Stepping Stone data indicates 34 percent of our population ishomeless. I mean homeless in the same way you see homelessadults. However, these are not people who you can identify because
they don't have their shopping carts and don't live in cardboard
boxes. However, they don't have the parent or legal guardian avail-able or willing to provide them the basic necessities. Forty percentof them indicate a history of abuse, Stepping Stone data is a bithigher than that. We find almost half our kids come in indicatingeither sexual or physical abuse in the family.

We find that about 47 percent were white, 27 percent were black,
17 percent hispanic. It should be noted within the hispanic popula-tion we are seeing, probably because of our location, we are seeingan increasing number of Central American families. So that esti-mate is on the rise for sure. We are seeing about four percent Pa-
cific Asian families and two percent Native American. The remain-der are unknown at this point.

Because of the changes in the population, I think when the Run-
away ane Homeless Youth Act was enacted in 1974, probably mostof the agencies were seeing what we consider the classic runaway,those youth whose problems were acute but could be resolved. We
are now seeing an increasing number of what we are calling throw-
away youth, those youth who have been invited to leave theirhomes as opposed to doing that on their own.

Because of this, I think we really do need to look at re-ordering
our priorities and increasing the services that are necessary to sup-port this population. We don't want to eliminate services to theclassic runaway because they are there. I think we do need to lookat independent living programs as a means or method of eliminat-ing some of the problems we are seeing on the streets in Los Ange-les. I think we need to be probably looking at an increased familysupport system, because we are finding, of course, most of ouryouth are coming out of very dysfunctional families, and perhaps if
we could intervene two or three steps earlier, we might be able toeliminate some of that in the long run.

And because of the changes our outcome data has drifted a lotmore to a much greater percent of the youth we see returning tothe streets. At last survey, 23 percent of our youth are returnedhome, three percent went to live with other relatives, 16 percentwent into foster and group home care. In Los Angeles, while thedemand for those particular services are increasing, the supply isdecreasing rapidly.
Seven-and-a-half percent went into independent living programs.Thirteen percent went to other run-away shelters. It is an interest-ing phenomenon because most of the shelters are seeing some ofthe same kids.

* at
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We have a revolving door syndrome. And 31 percent of the youth
provided services return home. I tend to be a fairly pragmatic
person, and I think that if we look at the cost of what it takes to
support a youth in, let's say, a juvenile hall in L.A. which at last
count cost the county about $29,000 a year per kid. When you look
at the cost for most of us which probably averages $75 to maybe
$150 a night in service, I think we need to look more at inter7en-
tion, diversion and short-term care programs. It would eliminate a
greater percentage of our youth missing that correction sy5;em,
thereby eliminating some of the costs. It is hard to believe tnat a
country with this kind of wealth can't provide the support for its
future generations.

We look to you to make a public policy statement about your
commitment relative to the value of our generations, and as a
result of that, feel that reauthorization of this particular bill will
go a long vn.y to make a very clear statement about our responsi-
bility on a national level.

Thank you.
[The prepared statement of Hida M. Avent follows:]
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Committee on Education and Labor
Subcommittee on Hunan Resources

Hy name is Bide M. Avent and I an the Project Director of Stepping StoneYouth Crisis Shelter and The Middle House Youth Transitional Living Pro-Jet, located in Santa Konica, California.
Stepping Stone is a six bed shelter providing

services to runaway andboneless youth (ages 7-17) and their families. It is licensed by the Stateof California and the County of Lns Angeles. The program was implementedin 1979 and is a project of the Ccean
Park Community Center. SteppingStone has been partially funded through The Runaway and Homeless YouthAct Basic Center Crant since 1981.

The Middle House Project is a nine (9) nonth transitional living programserving homeless youth, ages 16 and 17. This program is partially sup-ported by a Runaway and
Boneless Tout" Act Discretionary Grant. -While, as a youth

service provider, I an interested in all aspects of thejuvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act of 1974. I will confineny '-estimony to Title III - The Runaway and
Boneless Youth Act.As a service

provider in Los Angeles County, I strongly urge that theJJDPA of 1974 be
reauthorized through 1992. Very simply put, in ny opinion.this act was and
remains one of the most

comprehensive and visionarypieces of youth related
legislation enacted. First, the act acknowledgedthat there were

substantial existing
problems relative to the juvenilepopulation and that

those problems had tne potential to escalate drama,tically. Secondly, the act recognized,
from a public policy

perspective.a clear responsibility
to seek resolutions.

Reauthorization of the JJDPA is critical - it provides for the contivationof services to thousands of youth, who
otherwise would go unserved, dueto non-existent and/or

fragmented state and local
service delivery. Thereappears to be very few states or local governments with specific

budgetsfor services to runaway and honeless youth.
In California. which nay havean estimated 25% of the homeless and runaway youth population, there areno on-going state

sponsored prograns for thim population. In 1986, theState passed a Boneless Youth Act
(AB1596), under which two pilot pro-grams to provide services

to homeless youth were funded. However, fundsallocated through this act are scheduled
to expire June 30. 1928. On thelocal level, The Los Angeles County Department of Childrens services cre-ated the Runaway

Adolescent Pilot Project (RAPP) to provide services torunaway and homeless
youth, who other night

remain unserved. This projectalso implemented
in 1986, is the only public program offering comprehensiveservices to runaway and homeless youth.

.
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It Los Angeles Ccunty most of the comprehensive services targeted for
runaway and homeless youth are provided by private non-profit agencies.
The majority of those are partially supported through the Runaway and
Homeless Youth Act of 1974.

Los Angeles, with its reputation for being a "mecca for runawaya and
homeless youth, has only 70 crisis beds for runaway and homeless youth.
Forty-two (42) of tnese beds are operated by five (5) non-profit shel-
ters. The remaining beds are foster care beds operated under contract
with the Los Angeles County Probation Depertmentts Status offender De-
tention Alternative (SODA) program. SODA was created in 1977 to meet
the alternative placement needs of adolescents resulting from the de-
institutionalization of status offenders.

The following data will provide a quick overview of the status of service
delivery to runaway and homeless youth in Los Angeles. This data was ob-
tained from The Childrens Hospital of Los Angeles High Risk Youth Pro-
grants System of Care Reports. Stepping Stone is a participant in this
data collection system and our program data, generally, varies little
from the ovorall system's data.

From October 1, 1986 through September 30,1987, 3494 youth requesting
shelter services were turned away due to lack of space. The 5 previously
mentioned shelters provided services to 1600 runaway and homeless youth.
Stepping Stone data indicates that in fiscal 1985/86, 180 youth were
sheltered; during 1986/87, 230 youth were served; and for the first six
months of 1987/88, 137 youth have been provided shelter. SODA facilities
sheltered 1302 and four (4) outreach programs, located in Hollywood, pro-
vided drop-in services to 7,613 runaway and homeless youth.

Geographic data indicates that 1 in 5 runaway and homeless youth pro-
vided services were from out of state - 37 states were represented.
Other data reveals that 27% served were from Los Angeles city and 37%
from the county. Shelters report that 40% of the runaway and homeless
youth served, indicate histories of abuse and neglect. Thirty-two (32%)
percent were homeless and 45% were 15 years of age and younger ( 'he
youngest was 9). Forty-seven (47%) percent were Caucasion; 27% Haack;
17% Hispanic; 4% Pacific Asian; 2% Native American; and 3% unknown.

Non-traditional methods of connecting are 9ften *accessary to bring
runaway and homeless youth to service programs and few public agencies
have the flexibility to use the same techniques employed by successful
non-profit programs. The Runaway and Homeless Youth Act of 1974 has
afforded the opportunity and funds required to develop these techniques.
Otherwise, services to runaway and homeless youth would be stagnant.

While, the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act remains in the vanguard, it
should be noted that the runaway and c:Imeless /oath population has
changed since the act was implementeL in 1974. Shelter programs report
providing services to fever classic" or situational runaway - tnose
youth who have run due to acute/resolvable crisises. Increasing numbers
of the current population consists of throwaways, j1 tifiable runaw s
(away from home because of abuse or neglect) and h. Bless youth.

Services must be reordered and honed to meet the needs of this new popu-
lation. Services offered to homeless youth must be significantly dif-
ferent than for runaways. Homeless youth generally require a wider range
of services, including shelter, food, counseling, advocacy, mental
health care, education, job training and employment services.

J3
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This change in population points to a need to look to independent living/
emancipation as a more realistic goal than, perhaps permanent family re-
unification. This goal can be accomplished with independent living pro-
grams, coupled with other comprehensive services. However, few such
programs are available-to runaway and homeless youth and this scarcity
may be a factor in the number of youth returning to the streets.

Outcome data from the System of Care Report indicates the following:
- 23% of youth served returned home
- 3% went to live with other relatives
- 16% went to foster or group homes
- 7.5% went into independent living programs
- 13% went to other runaway shelters
- 31% returned to the streets.

At this junczure a pr.igmatic look needs to be taken relative to home-
less youth's potential fcr involvement in criminal activities and the cost
of administering juvenile and adult corrections systems. Currently in
Los Angeles county, it cost $29,000 per year to keep a youth in juvenile
hall. Intervention and comprehensive support services are a lower cost
alternative to having runaway and homeless youth end up in the corrections
system. For e.zample, services at Stepping Stone cost approximately $76
per night.

One last point, we must decide if our youth are torth the energy, effort
and money nebessaS, to resolve some very obvious problems. Reauthorization
of the JiDP-Act makes a clear statement on the national policy level that
we do value these youth. Thank you.
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Mr. KILDEE. Thank you very much.
Carol.
Ms. THOMAS-SMEDES. Mr. Chairman, and members of the commit-

tee, my name is Carol Thomas-Smedes and I am the Executive Di-
rector of the Advisory Center for Teens in Grand Rapids, Michigan.
The Advisory Center is comprised of several .youth-se- ving pro-
gre..as including a residential runaway program called the Bridge,_
for which I served as Executive DL lctor between 1985 and 1987:

The Bridge, along with 26 other ru.iaway programs in Michigan,
make up the Michigan Network of Runaway and Youth Services, a
statewide association for which I currently serve as Vice-President.
I am pleased to speak to you today on behalf of the runaway and
homeless youth of Michigan, and the various people and agencies
struggling to meet their needs.

In your deliberations over the reauthorization of the Runaway
and Homeless Youth Act, I believe it will be instructive for you to
look at Michigan for several reasons.

Given the State's diverse demographics, runaway programs in
Michigan serve the full spectrum of urban, suburban, and rural
communities. While it may be said that there are commonalities
shared by all runaways and their families, the environment of
inner city Detroit is vastly different from that of a small town in
Michigan's Upper Peninsula.

These differences greatly impact the types of problems presented,
and the treatment strategies in counseling. Consequently, member
agencies of the Michigan Network include both residential shelter-
care facilities and foster care programs. which place runaways in
State-licensed foster homes for up to 14 days while family problems
are worked out. Population density and size of service area also ac-
count for a wide divergence in the ability of programs in Michigan
to diversify funding and secure community support for their serv-
ices.

Michigan runaway programs also enjoy strong financial support
from the State, stemming from our State government's decision in
1974 to invest in a statewide system of service delivery to runaway
youth and their families. This initiative was clearly a result of the
passage of the Runway and Homeless Youth Act that year.

In addition to program dollars, it entailed the creation of our
networking association. Throughout its existence, the Michigan
Network has made it possible for us to coordinate the search for
new funding sources, and to alleviate the financial stress of pro-
gram competition for Federal grants. It has provided extensive
training for members in grantsmanship and fund raising, enlisted
major corporations in statewide outreach and public relations, and
promoted the participation of youth as mandated by the Runaway
and Homeless Youth Act.

And what has the State received in return for its investment? In
a moment I will share some answers to that question in specific,
human terms, drawn from my own agency's recent experience.

Last year our Michigan runaway programs provided direct service
to over 8,000 runaway and homeless youth clients, eighty-five per-
cent of whcm ,ere re-integrated with their families or placed in an
alternative setting agreeable to both the youth and his or her
parents.
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Given that, only roughly one-third of all runaways seek help at a
shelter or counseling agencyand the limited capacity of such pro-
grams to serve those who do seek helpthis figure should be taken
as a marker rather than as a full measure of the runaway problem
in our State. Indeed, in the same year, runaway programs received
well over 40,000 contacts from people regarding runaway incidents.

I would refer you to the top of my testimony on page 3. There is
a chart showing that the increase from 1983 to 1986 in the number
of contacts made to programs in Michigan for help and information
has gone from 27,000 to over 41,000 in just these few years.

In addition to high demand, Michigan Runaway programs are
burdened by increased costs. On top of inflationary increases in the
food, shelter, medicare and utilities, in recent years, some runaway
programs have been hit so hard by increases in liability insurance
that they can no longer afford to carry it.

This decreases program viability as community members refuse
to serve on program boards for fear of potential lawsuits. It also
undermines the search for alternative funding as private founda-
tions withdraw their support from agencies unable to protect them-
selves from liability claims. Those programs which do continue to
carry liability insurance at three or four times the previous rate
are forced to compromise services accordingly.

Oth 3r rising expenses similarly tie our hands, stricter demand,
in State licensure requirements have increased costs for staff train-
ing. Many of the buildings occupied by shelters and program offices
are old and require structural work, major maintenance and re-
pairs.

The new requirement in 1984 that non-profit agencies participate
in the Federal Social Security Act meant an equivalent of a budget
cut of seven percent of staff salaries for many of the programs.

Staff turnover has become a critical problem at almost every
Michigan runaway program. The stress is high in those program
jobs and the salary is very low.

As one director reported to the network office last year, with
turnover there is confusion, morale problems, and uncertainty, all
of which has an impact on client services. We can't compete even
with fast food places for what we expect from a staff person awl
what we offer in compensation.

Many excellent young counselors find their first employment at
a runaway program where they are able to acquire the experience
and training they need in order tc move on to a position that will
pay them a decent living wage. The resulting turnover rate makes
effective staff development nearly impossible to achieve.

In spite of the State-wide service delivery system we have in
Michigan, there remain geographic areas where youth in need of
services are unable to get them. Ironically, this is as true for our
rural programs as it is for those in urban dir`ricts although for
very different reasons. A survey conducteu in 1986 revealed that in
that year alone ru_iaway programs in metropolitan Detroit were
forced to turn away 202 youths seel ing shelter bece.use all the beds
were full.

While the exister,ce of several programs within the greater met-
ropolitan Detroit 'area often makes it possible to place runaways in
another program, this requires complicated and time-consumhig
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transportation arrangements, which at the very least impede the
counseling process.

Transportation programs take on an entirely different dimension
when we look at the rural northern half of our State. The service
area for Rainbow, the runaway program in Alpena, Michigan, con-
sists of 14 counties and is larger than the size of the State of Con-
necticut and, by the way, one person serves that area.

In the upper peninsula, some runaways would have to travel 200
miles to reach the nearest program in Escanaba, Michigan. The
counselors for the Youth Attention Center in Big Rapids, Michigan,
another rural program, travel over 2,000 miles a month to meet
with clients and in a two county service area.

Despite their obvious geographic handicap, the success rates of
these programs are as high as those in urban and suburban pro-
grams. The youth they see get the help they need, but we know for
certain that not all the youth who need help in rural areas are
finding their way to a program.

To appreciate the relationship of Runaway and Homeless Youth
Act funds to the problems that I have described, it is necessary to
examine the way in which those funds have been parceled out over
the past several years to programs in Michigan. Again, I refer you
to a chart in my testimony.

The first important point to note is that more than half of the
programs in the Michigan network have never received or applied
for RHYA funding. Currently only 13 programs receive a portion of

Michigan's $723,000.
That figure has remained constant for the last four years, but

unfortunately, the number of programs sharing it has not. The last
time Michigan's appropriation increased significantly was in 1983,
and it was mainly to fund three new programs, bringing the total
number of federally funded centers to nine.

The following year, the number of funded programs remained
constant, with the total appropriation reduced slightly. It was a
manageable lose manageable at least when compared t,.) 1985

whet; HHS chose to fund 20 additional programs for the same
amount of money. This meant a cut in funding to seven programs
including a $24,000 cut to my agency, the Bridge.

Each year since, one additional program has been funded with no
commensurate increase in the total appropriation resulting in a
loss of some of the previously funded basic centers.

I am aware that added dollars are appropriated for 1988. I hope
the philosophy will be to supplement existing programs with these
dollars because Michigan's program gains have always meant a
loss to others, a loss coinciding with increased demand for services,
increased insurance and program.cost, rampant staff turnover and
a continuing segment of our State receiving inadequate ccverage.

Not only does this exacerbate these existing problems, it under-
mines the cooperative networking relationship that we in Michigan
worked 'o hard to ci,Thieve. If additional centers 're to be funded,
additional money must be spent to fund them.

I would like to talk to you about some of the young people that
we have seen, the human lives that I have been privileged to see
my agency touch. The only other common olements of their story
are a remarkable will to survive in the face of overwhelming
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trauma and the strong possibility that if the Bridge had not beenthere to help them, no one else would.
Thee was Sheri, a 13-year-old girl in the eighth grade, who cameto the Bridge with a former client who was her friend. Sheri hadrun away from her middle class home because she was being sexu-ally abused by her stepfather. It had begun when she was nine, butshe had never told anyone about it until she came to the Bridgefour years later.
Our counselors helped her to tell her mother and Ltontinuedfamily counseling through the confrontation with her stepfatherand his ultimate confession, his arrest and his removal from thehome by Protective Services.
Sheri's nine days at the Bridge surely brought about one of themost important changes in her life. She and her mother were re-ferred for additional mental health support, to continue healingthe wounds of her trauma.
There was Malcolm, a young man referred to us by anotheragency when he was in the ninth grade. Like many of our clients,Malcolm came to us after a fight with his parents. In this case, thefight was over his mother's lifestyle, which included allowing Mal-colm's 13-year-old sister to have her 19-year-old boyfriend alwaysspend the night. Usually the mother was absent from the homeherself every night.
It soon became clear that the only rules that existed in this cha-otic household were the responsibility of and were enforced by Mal-colm himself, who at the age of 14 was the only responsible personin that family.
Malcolm's mother, who was unemployed, divorced and alcoholic,had been the subject of an active Protective Services case for manyyears. In fact, Malcolm himself had been removed from her homewhen he was a pre-schooler for two years, only to be returned toher at the age of five.
Coordinating services with the Protective Services caseworkerand the Grand Rapids police, the Bridge offered support and safetyto Malcolm as he tried to bring about a stable living environmentfor himself and two younger sisters. With that goal in mind, Pro-tective Services worked toward the termination of his mother's pa-rental rights.
There was nie, a 15-year-old whose circumstances were simi-lar to many lay's children of divorce. After disagreemertswith her mot' .lannie was sent to live with her alcoholic fatherin another ci Here other conflicts developed between Jeannie,her father ana the three step-siblings who came to live with him.When her father brought her to us, it soon became clear that thegirl had never in her life experienced a stable home environment.Having been emotionally shuffled back and iorth between two par-ents for most of her life and trying now to live with

alcoholic, her anger and low self image motivated a crisi.,. TheBridge offered counseling to Jeannie and her parents and after tendays at the shelter arranged for ongoing counseling and her suc-cessful re-integration into her mother's home.
And there are those whose needs are so great they threaten tooverwhelm us as well as the child, like Shawn. At age 16, Shawncame to us several times over the,course of one year. She was ini-

7.8



75

tially referred to us by her school's principal, who had found her in
the school's dumpster after hours.

Her mother who lived in a tent in a campground was unem-
ployed, alcoholic and mentally ill. Her father was dead. She lived
with two siblings, including a brother who sexually abused ben
Throughout her times at the Bridge, Shawn was suicidal, extreme-
ly depressed and exhibited behaviors of her own mental illness.

Ultimately our role in working with her family was to advocate
for Shawn's needs, counseling her, providing emotional support and
assistance when she was called to testify at a hearing which in'res-
tigated her allegation of sexual abuse. And seeing to it that she has
found the mental health care that she needs.

I wish I could tell you that every story was reasonably happy or
at least health in its ending, but the sad truth is that sometimes

we just don't know.
There was Daniel, a 15-year-old Hispanic youth adopted at birth

by a white middle-class couple who had already adopted several
other special needs children. They brought Daniel to the Bridge

after his release from detention for shoplifting. Due primarily to

intense conflict between Daniel and his father, the parents refused
to take him back home and wanted him placed in a mental health
residential treatment setting.

This was difficult to achieve because no one except the parents
thought that such a placement was appropriate. Through special
arrangements with the Department of Social Services, Daniel spent
three weeks at the Bridges, during which time we saw him change
from an angry and hostile young man into a cooperative, happy,
peer group leader.

He opened up to counseling and recognized the need to continue
working in therapy with his parents on their problems. Unfortu-
nately, his father was unreleating in his insistence that he be
placed in a residential care facility and would not take him back

home. I don't know where Daniel is today.
Wherevcr he is, I and the staff who watched him work and

watch him grow wish him well.
These are not remarkable stories. Last year I was able to say,

yes, I will help you to 340 youth, no more or less remarkable than
these, who came to my program seeking shelter and counseling.

By empowering me to do this to the Runaway and Homeless
Youth Act, you gave these young people what may have been the
last chance they will get to turn their lives around and to take re-
sponsibility for themselves and move on toward a healthy and pro-
ductive adulthood.

I thank you and I applaud you for that gift and I urge you to

confirm it with a continued commitment to meeting the needs of
runaway and homeless youth.

I must say a few final words about the second half of that popu-
lation, homeless youth. Although we are constantly mentioning
them in the same breath with runaways, it is important to remem-
ber that the needs or homeless youth are very different from those

of runaways.
Obviously, the basic treatment goal of returning a runaway into

his or her home is rendered meaningless when there is no home to

9



return to. Still, homeless youth are showing up in increasing num-bers at runaway programs in Michigan.
In my shelter alone, last year there were 90 requests for helpfrom homeless youth. Up until now we have done what we could tohelp them but with only fourteen days of shelter to offer, thatclearly isn't much.
The treatment goal with homeless youth must be to providethem the independent livings skills we expect children to derivefrom their parents. A longer intervention is required, as well asnew approaches and counseling. Unfortunately, very little Eaten .tion from the public is garnered by the issue of homelessness inrecent years. It has not been focused on young people.
Funds have been allocated but homeless youth have been largelyignored as a target population. No special funding has been desig-nated for basic services to homeless youth in the Stuart McKinneyAct and even the language of the Runaway and Homeless YouthAct pays little attention to the special needs of these youth. Home-less youth who sought shelter in Michigan runaway programs inrecent years were usually 15 through 17, emancipated under exist-ing Michigan statutes by their parents or guardian, high schooldropouts, unskilled, unemployed, without resources of any type, im-mature and h need of mental health services and without any sup-port system.
They came from all races and all socio-economic backgrounds.Statistically over 80 percent of the case histories examined by theMichigan network included incidents of sexual abuse. When physi-cal abuse is added as a variable, nearly 100 percent of these youthmay be considered victims of parental abuse. Stories of emotionalneglect also abound among this population.
Recently my agency succeede2 in securing start-up funding foran independent living program to meet the needs of at least someof the homeless youth, coming to our runaway shelter for help. Ican best portray the goals of that program to you by telling youabout Daenen.
Daenen entered the home Youth Program November 2, 1987, theday the program began operation. He is 17, not legally emancipat-ed, a high school dropout, former substance abuser. He has re-ceived mental health counseling in the past along with his motherwho is unstable and unpredictable. His father was a drug user andcommitted suicide ten years ago.
His 16-year-old brother ':$3 also living out of the home. Daenenhas no other family and his friends are people his age whom heknows through his part-time job at a local restaurant.
Daenen had been living with his mother until their rocky rela-tionship fell apart last October and she kicked him out. He initiallycame to the Bridge for services as a runaway, returned home brieflyand was kicked out once again.
The second time he was asked to leave home he withdrew hissavings of $140 and rented a room in a local budget motel. Whenhe contacted our homeless youth program he had no money left, noplace to stay and he had not eaten in four days.Our case manager had him return to the Bridge. She helped himfind a room to rent through a newspaper which he now pays forfrom his earnings from his part-time job. She helped him apply for
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medicaid which was extremely important because Daenen is asth-
matic and requires daily medication. He declined food stamps al-
though he was eligible because he believed he could feed himself in
other ways and doesn't wish to be seen as dependent.

He has now checked out his educational options and inter is to
take his GED exam in the spring. The room he rents is in the
home of a family whose parent is a school teacher and this influ-
ence and environment has been extremely beneficial. At this time
Daenen is looking for a second job to help pay for his remaining
expenses.

He is learning living skills with an emphasis on budgeting. He
has a savings account. He pays his rent on time and he has learned
how to conduct himself in job interviews. The six goals he estab-
lished for himself in early November to be able to support himself
to finish high school, to find a job, to learn budgeting, to add to his
independent living skills and to have his basic needs addressed are
close to being accomplished.

The homeless youth program has had 50 contacts since it opened
in November and is presently serving nine active cases in Grand
Rapids, 60 days into operation, of a one-year grant of $20,000 from
our local United Way. The implementation of our independent
living program was the fulfillment of a dream for us, at last allow-
ing us options for the truly homeless clients, who could not really
get what they needed from our runaway shelter alone. Homeless
youth are a discrete and severely at risk service clientele.

If their needs are truly to be met as indicated in a existing lan-
guage of the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act, dditional re-
sources must be provided towards that end.

In conclusion, on behalf of the network I would like to make the
following five or six recommendations to this committee to consider
in the reauthorization of this important act.

First, we recommend that Congress consider placing a first prior-
ity on strengthening current grantees who are successfully carry-
ing out their missions.

Second, the wording of the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act
should be changed to more accurately reflect all runaway pro-
grams, including rural agencies.

Third, the committee should explore and give serious consider-
ation to changing the formula for distribution of Runaway and
Homeless Youth Act funds. Perhaps a special indicator such as
State unemployment levels could be used to supplement State allo-
cations.

Such a formula change would enable the Department of Health
and Human Services to put funds into States that are suffering
economic hardships, such as farm belt and industrial States, where
the Census data does not function as an accurate predictor of
family problems.

Four, the authorization of the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act
should continue to support its runaway networks.

Fifth, we also recommend that Congress appropriate additional
monies for independent living programs, to help alleviate Le grow-
ing homeless you:n crisis our country faces.

And, last, we recommend that Congress increase the appropria-
tion for funding to the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act, more

0

81



78

money Ss needed to help strengthen existing runaway programs, aswell as to create independent living programs and additional run-away programs.
I am very aware of the Federal deficit problems and gl-Bve eco-nomic problems that this country faces. In fact, our programs dealon a daily basis with people who are directly affected by `hoseproblems.
However, in your deliberations of how best to spend

er's money, you must remember that runaway prograk:pendent living programs are a bargain. In Michigan, for approxi-
mately $50 a day, runaway receives shelter, food, individual andfamily counseling.

I am sure you are familiar with the expression "you can pay forit now or you can pay for it later".
In this instance, later means having to pay for increased welfare

rolls, construction of more prisons and more drug abuse programs.A few million dollars invested in runaway and homeless youth nowwill save hundreds of millions to the taxpayers later.
While throwing money at a problem rarely solves it, runawayprograms are a proven success. We know how to help these youthand families and we need the resources to do it. I urge you tostrongly consider investing now in the future of some of our na-tion's most promising citizens.
Thank you.
[The prepared statement of Carol Thomas-Smedes follows:)

4.

r 82



79

Prepared Statement of

Carol Thomas - Swedes, Executive Director
The Advisory Center for Teens

Grand Rapids, Michigan

HEARING ON THE REAUTHORIZATION OF
THE RUNAWAY AND HOMELESS YOUTH ACT

HOUSE SUBCOMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES

COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION AND LABOR

January 29, 1987

83



80

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, my name is Carol
Thomas-Smedes and I the Executive Director of the AdvisoryCenter for Teens in Grand Rapids, Michigan. The Advisory Centeris comprised of several youth-serving agencies, includ.ng aresidential runaway program called The Bridge, for which I servedas Executive Director between 1985 and 1987. The Bridge, alongwith 26 other runaway programs in Michigan, make up the MichiganNetwork of Ftnaway and Youth Se:ices, a statewide association
for which I c:1rrently serve as Vice-President. I am pleased tospeak to you today on behalf of the runaway and homeless youth ofMichigan, and the various people and agencies strugglk j to meettheir needs.

In your deliberations
over the reauthorization of the Runaway andHomeless Youth Act, I believe it will be instructive for you tolook at Michigan for several reasons.

Given the state's diverse
demographics, runaway programs in

Michigan serve the full spectrum of urban, suburban, and ruralcommunities. While it may be said that there are commonalitiesshared by all runaways and their families, the environment ofinner city Detroit is vastly different from that of a small townin Michigan's Upper Peninsula. These differences greatly impactthe types of problems presented, and the treatment strategiesin counseling. Consequently, member agencies of the MichiganNetwork include both residential shelter-care facilities andfoster care programs, which place runaways in state-licensed
foster homes for up to 14 days while family problems are workedout. Population density and size of service area also accountfor a wide divergence in the ability of programs in Michiganto diversify funding anl secure community support for theirservices.

Michigan runaway programs also enjoy strong financial aupport
from the state, stemming from our state guvernment's decision
in 1974 to invest in a statewide system of service delivery to
runaway youth and their families. This initiative was clearly aresult of the passage of the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act thatyear. In addition to program dollars, it entailed the creationof our networking association.

Throughout its existence, the
Michigan Network has made it possible for us to coordinate thesearch for new funding sources, and to alleviate the financialstress of program competition for federal grants. It hasprovided extensive training for members in grantsmanship andfundraising, enlisted major corporations in statewide outreach
and public relations, and promoted the participation of youth asmandated by the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act.

And what has the state received in return for its investment? na moment I will share some answers to that question in specific,human turms, drawn from my own agency's recent experience. For

r
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now let me just say that last year, our runaway i:rograms provided

direct service to over 8,000 runawa, and homeless youth clients,

85% of whom were reintegrated with their families or placed in

an alte_hative setting agreeable to both the youth and his or her

parents. Given that only roughly one-third of all runaways seek

help at a shelter or counseling agency--and the limited capacity

of such prograaa to serve those whu do seek help--this figure

should be taken as a marker rather than a full measure of the

runawP., problem in the state. Indeed, in the same year runaway

programs received well over 40,000 contacts from people regarding

runaway incidents.

Before I create in your minds the impression that runaway

services in Michigan are an unconditional success story, let me

reiterate that I am glad to have you look at Michigan in your

deliberations. I am glad, because in Michigan we are doing what

needs to be done. We are serving urban, suburban, and rural

families in ways that are appropriate to their needs and

environment. We are reaching out to our communities and to our

state as a whole for support. We cooperate with each other, have

formed strong linkages, and shave resources to meet training and

service needs. Most importantly, the youth and families'we serve

are learning to become self-reliant iiy making positive changes in

their lives.

We are networking, we e e diversifying, we are succeeding--and in

spite of all this we are struggling every year just to keep our

agencies solvent. For she reasons that I. am about to present,

our demonstrated success has not alleviated our continuing need

for program dollars to maintain an acceptable level of service

delivery by existing programs.

Incr..ased T]emand

First of all, the increased availability of services to runaway

and homeless youth has led to an ever increasing demand for those

serviaea. This is not surprising. When you begin to help a

population in crisis--especially if you're good at it--it is not

unusual to discover that the size of that population is larger

than you thought. When a rescue ship starts throwing out life

preservers, other drowning people are likely to start swimming

toward the ship.

Such has been our experience. Every year since its inception,

the number of people contacting Michigan Netr.ork agencies for

assistance has increased. The following chart shows contact

totals for the past four years.

2
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DEMAND FOR SERVICES AT MICHIGAN RUNAWAY PROGRAMS
YEAR

NUMBER OF CONTACTS MADE TO
PROGRAMS FOR HELP/INFO

1983
27.0001984
30,0001985
39,3621986
41,531

That's 41,5L1 hands waving for a life preserver in 1986. Andat the same time, unfortunately, the life preservers are gettingmore expensive.

Increased Cojts

On top of inflationary
increases in the cost of food, shelter,medical care, and utilities, in recent years some runawayprograms have been hit so hard by increases in

liabilityinsurance that they can no longer afford to carry it. Thisdecreases program viability, as community members refuse toserve on program boards for fear of potential lawsuits. Italso undermines the search for alternative funding, as privatefoundations withdraw t'-eir support from agencieo unable toprotect themselves from liability claims. Those programs whichdo continue to carry liability insurance at three or four timesthe previous rate are forced to compromise ser.JcesJackson County Diversion, the program in Jackson. Michigan,discontinued its hone visits for exactly this reason.
Other rising expenses similarly tie our hands. Stricter demandsin state licensure

requirements have increased costs for stafftraining. Many of the buildings
occupied by shelters and programoffices are old and

iequire structural work, major maintenance,and repairs. The new requirement in 1984 that nonprofit
agencies participate in the federal Social Security Act meantthe equivalent of a budget cut of 7X of staff salaries for manyprograms.

Each additional blow to a program's budget forces a difficultchoice between eliminating services or reducing the quality ofservice delivery. As you can see, each time we must make such achoice, we lose both program effectiveness and credibility withinour communities, making it that much harder to seek supportelsewhere.

An important part of our work with young people
is teaching themto recognize the consequences of their actions. Similarly, Imust speak to you today about the consequences

which increasinvcosts and increasing demand are hding on our programs and the
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youth we serve.

Inadequate Salaries/Staff Turnover

Staff turnover has become a critical problem at almost every

Michigan runaway progran, and every program director knows why.

You would be hard pressed to find a job where the stress is so

high and the salary so low. As one director reported to the

Network office last year, "With turnover there is confusion,

morale problems, and uncertainty, all of which has an impact on

client services. We cannot compete, oven with fast food places.

for what we expect from a staff person and what we offer in

coidpensation."

Granted, it is immensely satisfying to help teenagers in crisis

turn their lives around. But the process, let me tell you. is

no picnic. And we owe our counselors and youth care workers

far more for their efforts than a warm inner glow and the same

standard of living afforded the average McDonald's employee.

Many excellent young counselors find their first employment at

a runaway program, where they are able to acquire the experience

and training they need in order to move on to a position that

will pay them a decent living wage. Tne resulting turnover rate

makes effective staff development
nearly impossible to achieve.

Unserved Youth

In spite of tce statewide service delivery system we have in

Michigan, there remain geographic
areas where youth in need of

services are unable to get them. Ironically, this is as true for

our rural programs as it is for those in urban Detroit, although

for very different reasons.

A survey conducted in 1986 revealed that in that year alone

runaway programs in Metropolitan Detroit were forced to turn away

202 youth seeking shelter because all the beds were full at the

time. And while the existence of several slograms within the

greater Metropolitan Detroit area often mak s it possible to

place runaways in another program, this reqt,ves complicated

and time-consuming transportation
arrangements which at the very

least impede the counseling process.

Transportation problems take on at. entirely different dimension

when we look at the the rural northern half of the state.

The service area for Rainbow, the runaway program in Alpena,

consists of 14 counties and is larger in size than the state of

Connecticut. In the Upper Peninsula, some
runaways would have to

travel 200 miles to reach the nearest program, in Escanaba. The

counselors for the Youth Attention Center in Big Rapids. another

rural program, travel over 2,000 miles a month to meet with

clients la a two-county service area.

4
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Despite their obvious
ti ,ographic handicap, the success ratesof these programs
as high as those of urban and suburbannrograms. The youth they see get the help they need. But weknow for certain that not all of the youth who need help in ruralareas are finding their way to a program.

A true achievement of the objectives of the nunaw.y and HomelessYouth Ac* must entail attention to the client needs at both theovercrowded urban shelter and the overentended
rural foster careprogram. The consequences for an unserved suicidal youth ineither setting are equally dire.

Annortionmmt of Federal RHYA Funds

To apprec'ate the relationship of RHYA funds to the problemsI have euscribed,
.1.t is necessary to examine the way in whichthose funds have been parceled out over the past several years toprograms in Michigan. (The chart on the following page shows theamount and distribution

! RHYA finds in Michigan since 1982.)
The first Important

point to note is that more than half of theprograms in the Michigan Network have never received nor evenapplied for RHYA funding. This As attributable once again to thecooperative spirit of our state network. We all face the sameeconomic crunch, and therefore feel the same temptation to seekfunding wherever it is available. We recognize, however, thatto further subdivide
Michigan's share of the federal pie wouldultimately dilute the quality of services for everyone. For thisreason we have generally (though not entirely) managed to avoidcompeting with each other for RHYA money.

Currently 13 programs receive a fportion of Michigan's $723,648.That figure has remained constan. for the last four years.Unfortunately, the number of programs sharing it has not.
The last time Michigan's

appropriation increased significantly,in 1983, it was mainly to fund three new
programs, bringing thetotal number of federally

funded centers to 9. The followingyear, the number of funded
programs remained constant, with thetotal appropriation reduced slightly. It was a manageable loss.

Manageable, at least, when compared to 1985, when HHS chose tofund two additional
programs for the same amount of money. Thismeant a cut in funding to seven programs, including a 524,000loss for my own agency, The Bridge. Each year since, oneadditional program has been funded with no commensurate inc saein the total

appropriation, resulting in a loss to at least someof the previously funded basic centers.

In other words, one Michtgen program's gain %as always meant aloss to several
others--a loss coinciding

with increased d sandfor services, increased
insurance and program costs, ramp .tstaff turnover, and a continuing segment of our state receivinginadequate coverage. Not only does this exacerbate these

5
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FEDERAL RUYA F liDING IN MICHIGAN

NUMBER OF RUNAWAY PROGRAMS

6

YEAR STATE TOTAL

1982 $ 434,543

1983 $ 725,900

1984 $ 723,648

1985 $ 723,648

1986 $ 723,648

1987 $723,648

84-707 - 88, - 4

6

9, Two of the 6 programs
receive inck'eases. 3 new
programs funded

9 programs funded

11 programs funded, 7 programs

cut the following amounts:
$32,928, $24,000, $21,409,
$12,479 $..0,000, 3,000, 3,000

12 programs funded, 4 programs
cut the following amounts:
$27,840, $7,000, $5,000,
$5,000. One program increased
$5,000.

13 programs funded, 1 program
cut
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existing problems, it also undermines the cooperative networkingrelationship we in Michigan have worked so hard to achieve. Ifadditional centers are to be funded, additional money must .espent to fund them.

Furthermore, the formula used to determine Michigan's shareof RHVA funds, if strictly applied, will mean a significantreduction in the state's
total appropriation in the years ahead.This is because the formula

uses population as the sole indicatorof the need for runaway services. A closer look at Michigan'ssituation will show you that this is erroneous. Michigan'spopulation has been on the decline for several yearn now; theneed for our services has markedly riser.. I would like tosuggest that at least some consideration be given to economicIndicators when determining a state's need for runaway services.Certainly sufficient research exists to justify economic hardshipas a more likely predictor
of family breakdown than populationincrease.

Client_Profiles

As the difficulties in maintaining effective service deliveryhave increased in recent years, ao have the problems presentedby our clients. There may have been a time wnen it was possibleto list "running away" .e one youth problem among the litany ofproblems presented by the current generation of teenagers. ThatIs no longer appropriate.
In ceder to talk comprehensively aboutthe youth served by runaway programs today, we must talk boutvirtually every social problem affecting youth, to wit: teenpregnancy, subs'ance abuse, poverty, single parent households,unemployment, mental Illness, domestic violence, sexual abuse,neglect, and homelessness.
Each of these, and often severalof them in combination, is now a motivating force in causingthousands of youth to leave home each year.

Rather than talking about such problems in the abstract,however, I'd like to tell you about some of the young peoplewho experienced these problems--the human lives I have beenprivileged to see my agency touch. The only other commonelements of their stories
are a remarkable will to survive in theface of overwhelming

trauma, and the strong possibility that ifthe Bridge had not been there to help them, no one else wouldhave.

There was Sheri, a 13-year-old girl in the eighth grade, who nameto the Bridge with
a former elle."' who was her friend. Sherihad run away from her middle class home because she was beingsexually abused by her stepfather. The abuse had Begun when shewas nine, but she had never told anyone about it until she cameto the Bridge, four years later. Our counselors helped hertell her mother, and continued family counseling through theconfrontation witl t)'e stepfather, and his ultimate confes3ion,arrest, and removal rrom the home by Protective Services.Sheri's nine days at the Bridge surely brought about one of the
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most important changes in her life. She and her mother
referred for additional mental health support to continue healing

the wounds of her trauma.

There was Malt:olm, a young man referred to ut by another agency

when he was 4n ninth grade. L'ce many of our clients, Malcolm
came to us after a fight with his parent. /n this case, the

fight was over his r..her's lifestyle, which ir.cludeo allowing

Malcolm's 13-year-o.d sister to have her 19-year-old boyfriend

spend the night, and usually being absent from the home herself

at night. It soon became clear that the only rules that existed

in this chaotic household were those enforced by Malcolm himself,

who at age 14 was the only responsible person in the family.

Malcolm's mother, who was unemployed, divorced, and alcoholic,

had been the subject of an active Protective Services case for

many years. In fact Ma'colm himself had been removed from her

home when he was a pre- :hooler, only to be returned to her at

age five. Coordinating services with the P.S. caseworker and
the Grand Rapids police, the Bridge offered support and safety

to Malcolm as he tried to bring about a stable living environment

for himself and his two sisters. With that same goal in mind,

Protective Services continued to work toward the termination of

his mother's parental rights.

There was Maya, a thirteen-year-cld from a small town north of

Grand Rapids, whose comAlcated family dynamic might easily have

left her homeless, had our agency not been there to help. Very

early in her adolescence, Maya discovered that the 62-year-old

woman she had always called her mother was really her

grandmother, and that her real parents were 1,eth dead. The

conflict which escalated from this basic family lie caused Maya

to develop premature sexual behaviors which further angered her

grandmother. House rules became more strict, and Maya became all

the more adamant in breaking them. Protective Services became

involved with the case after the grandmother refused to allow

Maya to return home. Maya stayed at the Bridge for 13 days,
after which she was successfully placed in foster Pare.

There was Jeannie, a 15-year-old whose circumstances were similar

to many of today's children of divorce. After disagreements with
her mother, Jeannie was sent to live with her alcoholic father in

another city. Here, other conflicts developed between Jeannie,

her father, and the three step-siblings who lived with him. When

her father brought her to us, it soon became clear that this

girl had never in her life experienced a stable home environment.

Having been emotionally shuffled back and forth between two

parents most of her life, and trying now to live with an
unpredictable alcoholic, her anger and low self-Image motivated

a crisis. The Bridge offered counseling to Jeannie and both her

parents, and after ten days is the shelter arranged for ongoing

counseling and her successful reintegration into her mother's

home.
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And there are those whose needs are so graat,,they threaten tooverwhelm us as well as the child, like Shawn. At age 16, Shawncame to us several times over the course of a #,Iar. She wasinitially referred to us by her school's assistant principal, whohad found her in the school's dumpster after hours. Her mother,who lived in a tent in a campground, was unemployed, alcoholic,
and mentally ill. Her father was dead. She lived with
two siblings, including a brother who sexually abused her.
Throughput her times at the Bridge, Shawn was suicidal, extremely
depressed, and exhibited behaviors with evidenced her own mentalillness. Ultir.tely, our role in working with her family was toadvocate for Shayn's needs, counseling her, providing emotional
support and assistance as she was called to testify at the
hearing which investigates her allegations of sexual abuse, and
seeing to it that she found the mental health care she needed.

I wish I could tell you that every story has a reasonably happy--or at lean` healthy--ending, but the sad truth is that sometimeswe just can't know. There was Daniel, a fifteen year old
Hispanic youth adopted at birth by a white middle class couple
who had adopted several other special needs children. Theybought Daniel to the Bridge after his release from detention forshoplifting. Due primarily to Intense conflict between Danieland his father, the parents refused to take him back home,
and wanted him placed in a mental health residential treatment
setting. This was difficult to achieve because no one except the
pareats thought such a placement appropriate. Through special
arrangement with the Department of Social Serviced. Daniel spent
three wee'es at the Bridge, during which time we saw him change
from an aigry and hostile young man Into a roenerative, happy,
peer group leader. He opened up to counselAny, and recognizedthe need to continue working in therapy with his parents ontheir problems. Unfortunately, hla father was unrelenting in hts
insistence that he be placed in a residential care facility, and
world not take him back home.

I don't know where Daniel is today. Wherever he is, I and all
the other staff who watched his work and his growth wish himwell.

These are not remarkable stories. Last year I was able to say
"Yes, I will help you" to 3%0 youth, no more or less remarkable
than these, who came to my program seeking shelter and
counseling. By empowering me to do this through the Runaway and
Homeless Youth Act, you gave these young people what may have
been the last chance they will get to turn their lives around,
take responsibility for themselves, and move on toward a stealthy
and productive adu.thood. I .,hank you and I applaud you for thatgift, and I urge you to confirm it with a continued commitment to
meeting the needs of runaway and homeless youth.

9
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Homeless youth

I must nay a few final words about the second half of that
populationhomeless youth. :,!though we are constantly
mentioning them in the same breath with runaways, it's important
to remember that the needs of homeless youth are very different

from those of runaways. Obviously, the basic treatment goal of
returning a runaway to his or her home is rendered meaningless
when there is no home to return to.

Still, homeless youth are showing up in increasing numbers at

runaway programs in Michigan. In my shelter alone last year,
'..sere were 90 requests for help from homeless youth. Up until
now, we have done what we can to help them, but with only 14
days of shelter to offer, that clearly isn't much. The treatment
goal with homeless youth must be to provide them the independent
living skills we expect children to derive from parents. A
longer intervention is required, as well as new approaches In
counseling.

Unfortunately, very little of the public attention garnered by
the issue of homelessness in recent years has focused on young
people. Funds have been allocated, but homeless youth have
been largely ignored as a target population. No special funding
has been designated for basic services to homeless youth in the

Stuart McKinney Act, and even the language of the Rm,away and
Homelecs Youth Act pays little attention to the spe-Aal needs of

these youth.

Homeless youth who sought shelter at Michigan runaway programs
in recent years were usually 15 - 17, emanOpated under existing
Michigan statutes by their parent or guardian, high school
dropouts, unskilled, unemployed, without resources of any type,
immature, in need of mental health services, and without any
support systems. They came from all races and all socio-economic
backgrounds.

Preliminary research done on homeless youth by the Michigan
Network of Runaway and Youth Services indicates that when
the homeless youth population is separated from the runaway
population and classified as "throwatcays" or "pushouts," rates
of all types of abuse increase dramatically. Case histories
of homeless adolescents gathered throughout the state chronicle
their legacy of trauma. FecAings of powerlessness, betrayal,
and stigmatization are frequently found among this group.
Statistically over 80% of the sae histories examined by the
Michigan Network included incid-nts of sexual abuse. When
physical abuse is added as a variable, nearly 100% of these
y.uth may be considered victims of parental abuse. Stories of
emotional neglect also abound among this population.

As a family disintegrates, the person in his or her mid to
late teen fears can find himself or herself alone and homeless.
Because they are so close to 17, in Michigan support services are
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few. Eighteen is the age of majority, when the complexities ofemancipation for minors disappear.

Recently my agency succeeded
in securing start-up funding foran independent living program to meet the needs of at least someof the homeless youth coming to our runaway shelter for help. Ican best portray the goals of that program to you by telling youabout Daenen.

Daenen entered :h.- Homeless "outh Program on November 2, 1987,the day the progre-fs began operation. He is 17, not legallyemancipated, a high school dropout, and former substance abuser.He has received mental health
counseling in the past along withhis mother, who is unstable and unpredictable. His father wasa poly-drug abuser and committed suicide ten years ago; his16-year-old brother is also living away from home. Daenen hasno other family, and his friends are people his age whom he knowsthrough his part-time job at a local restaurarst.

Daen .jn had been living with his mother until their rockyrelationship fell art in October'ond she kicked him out. Hecame to the Bridge for services as o runaway, returned homebriefly. and t. crisis once again erupted.

The second time he was asked to leave home he withdrew hissavings of $140 and rented a room at a local budget motel. Whenhe contacted the Homaless Youth Program, he had no money left, noplace to stay, and hadn't eaten in four day.

The case manager had him return to the Bridge. She helped himfind a room to rent through
the newspaper, which he pays for withhis earnings from the part-time job. She helped him apply forMedicaid, which was extremely
important since Daonen is asthmaticand requires daily medicine. He declined food stamps, althoughhe was eligible, because he believed he could feed himself inother ways and he does not want to be seen as dependent. He hasnow checked out his educational
options and intends to take hisGED exam in the spring. The room he rents is in the home ofa family whose parent ie a school teacher, and this influenceand environment has beer. extremely beneficial. At this timeDaenen is looking for another job to help pay for his remainingexpenses. He is learning living skills, with an emphasis onbudgeting. He has a savi.ngs account,

pays his rent on time, andhas learned how to conduct himself on job interviews. The sixgoals he established
in early November--to be able to supporthimself, to finish high school, to find a job, to learnbudgeting, to add to his independent living skills, and to havehis basic needs addressed, are close to being accomplishea.

The Homeless Youth Program has had 50 contacts since it openedin November, and is presently serving nine active cases in GrandRapids 60 days into operation
of a one-year grant from our localUnited Way.

,
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The implementation of our independent living program was the
fulfillment of a dream for us, at last allowing us some options

for the truly homeless clients who could not really get what they

`needed from our runaway shelter alone. Statewide in Michigan, a

handful of such programs have begun similar operations. Clearly,

we have just scratched the surface of the population in need, and

already I feel confident in telling you that If runaway programs

are indeed to continue their work with homeless youth, it cannot

be done with existing funds, or the existing services deeigned

for runaways. Homeless youth are a discrete and severely

at-risk service cllontele. If their needs are truly to be met

as indicatad In the existing language of the Runaway and Homeless
Youth Act, additional refs ;rtes must be provided toward that end.

Recommendations

In conclusion, on behalf of the Network I would like to make

the following recommendations to this committee to consider in

the reauthorization of this important act:

1) We recommend that Congress consider placing a first priority

on strengthening current grantee;, who are succesefully

carrying out their miseione.

Since the last tour years have been spent expanding the number

of progres, and since programs nationwide have faced increased

expenses and inflationary costs, but have never rece'ved

increases to help offset these expenses, the time has come to put

an emphasis back on ensuring that existing programs have enough

resources to operate succesefull; and continue to provide

services.

2) The wording of the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act should
be changed to more accurately reflect all runaway programs,

including rural agencies.

The current wording i.e geared primarily to suburban and urban

runaway houses. Specifically, it talks about centers being
locatld in areas that are accessible to many runaway youth, and

it discusses client/staff ratios. This wording does not fit

with rural runaway programs, particularly programs that utilize

"host homes" or tooter are instead of a shelter. The Network

recommends that this wcAling be changed to reflect the more rural

or foster care type programs.

'1) The Committee ehould explore and give serious consideration

to changing the formula for distribution of Runaway and

Homeless Youth Act funds.

Perhaps a special indicator, such as st..,to unemployment levels

could be used to supplement state allocations. Such a formula

change would enable the Department of Health and Human Services

to put funds in the states that are Buffering economic hardships,
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such as farmbelt and industrial states, where the census data
does not function as an accurate predictor of incidence of family
problems.

4) The reauthorization cg the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act
should continue its support of runaway networks.

The Michigan Network also recommends that one emphasis of
discretionary grants should be to improve transportation needs so
that young people will have eaoier access to runaway programs.

5) We also recommend that Congress appropriate additional monies
for independent living programs to he:p alleviate the growing
homeleas youth crisis that our country faces.

New dollars are needed for programs specifically designed to help
youth learn how to live independently, because unless some form
of intervention is set up to help these young people learn how
to be productive adults, they will grow up dependent on public
assistance oe resorting to illegal activities to survive. These
young people 11Fle the same hopes and dreams as our children and
deserve the eke, e to live out their dreams. Money earmarked
now for independent living programs will be more than compensated
by the liberation c! tomorrow's adults from dependency on public
assistance.

5) We recommend that Congress increase the appropriation for
funding the RunaWay and Homeless Youth Act.

More money is needed to help strengthen existing runaway
programs, as well as to create independent living programs and
additional runaway programs. I am very aware of the federal
deficit problems and grave economic problems that this country
faces. In fact, our programs deal on a daily basis with the
people who are directly affected by these problems. However
In your deliberations In how best to spend the taxpayers' money
you must remember that runaway programs and independent living
programs are a bargain. In Michigan, for approximately $50 a
day, a runaway receives shelter, food and individual and family
counseling. I'm aure you're familiar with the expression "you
can pay foe it now or pay for it later". In this instance,
"later" means having to pay for increased welfare rolls,
construction of more prisons, and more drug abuse programs. A
few million dollars invested in runaway and homeless youth now
will save hundreds of millions to the taxpayers later. While
throwing money at a problem rarely solves it, runaway programs
are a proven success. We know how to help those youth and
families, but we need the resources to do it. I urge you to
strongly consider investing now in the future of some of our
nation's loot promising citizens. Thank you.
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Mr. KILDEE. Thank you very much. The final witness this after-
noon is Mike Mcntoya. We appreciate your patience. We look for-
ward to you sharing your knowledge and experience with us.

Mr. MorrroYA. My name is Michael Miguel Daniel Montoya. You
can call me Mike, though.

I am a little bit nervous as you can tell.
Generally, I guess I am here to tell my side of the story. I grew

up until I was nine in a small town of Lafeyette in Colorado. At
that time I moved with my father to Phoenix, Arizona, and that is
where the trouble, you could say, began. There I started getting
intc gangs, into small time drugs, just generally searching around,
because I felt that my home life was very unsatisfactory.

After bouncing back and forth between Colorado and Arizona
three or four times between my mother, grandmother and my
father, my father ended up moving to Michigan and my mother
kicked me out of my house in Colorado and I moved to Michigan
with my father.

There I went to a school which is called Laser and everything
started going all right and I thought, well, I will try it the right
way.

And I got back into the drugs. I quit fighting at this time because
it was beginning to hurt too much. And I got really heavily into
drugs, using alcohol and drugs, you name it. Around November of
1987 or 1986, I am sorry, me and my father started having prob-
lems, real bad problems.

They had been there but they started increasing. I ended up
moving into a friend's house for approximately eight months at
which time I got kicked out of there for the same reasons, drugs
and alcohol. I had tried going back to my father's previous to the
eight months and we would come up to an agreement that he
couldn't handle me and I couldn't handle living with him.

At that moment I was out on the streets for approximately three
or four weeks. The whole time that I was in Arizona and Colorado,
I spent most of my time on the streets. You know, I had a home,
but I didn't like home.

Home wasn't for me. After being kicked out of my friend's house,
they gave me $40 and a "good luck". I was on the streets for three
to four weeks sleeping in gutters, abandoned houses, houses that
weren't fully built yet, parks, bumming food from friends, picking
up cans for cigarettes, and still partying at that time.

A friend of mine took me into her house and said I could stay
there until I get into a program, A Step Forward. I stayed there
approximately two weeks and at that time I would ride a bike for
six miles one way to get to the Step Forward.

I had to go three times for interviews and stuff like that. And
when I got there I was, like, okay, this place is all right. I thought I
can get away with a lot of stuff and I did get away with a lot of
stuff.

I used regularly when I first got into the program. When I say
"used", I mean I got high, I got drunk.

One day I came in and they had caught on, and they gave me the
choice of going to AA or being removed from the house and, of
course, I took AA.
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I have been sober for four, almost five months. The fifth of next
month is my fifth anniversary.

I can say from the time I have been in this prow:am, I have beenin it for six months, my life is completely turned around. At first it
was a little rocky and after I started sobering up and started think-ing about it, they gave me support.

When I went into the program, I had absolutely no moral values
and it didn't matter what I did. I didn't care.

Now I can look back and say, hey, I care now. I had for myselfI
didn't like myself. I didn't like myself at all and I am learning to
like myself with their help.

They give me a lot of support day-by-day. When I am having
problems at work or if I am having problems with anybody, I cango sit and talk with one of the staff.

I guess we have a certain quota to make, I guess. I can say frommy personal experience in that program is that it does work. but a
lot of people expect it to work every time. For it to work, the kid
has to want it. And my bottom came up on me when I first came tothe program.

It was like do it now or don't do it. If that program wouldn't
have been there, I wouldn't be around. You know, I wouldn't behere in Washington.

I would be back out on the streets or in Colorado or maybe evenLos Angeles. And all I can say is that it works and it ,s a good
place to put money, because there are a lot of people out there thatneed the help.

I have just last night I ran into one down by my hotel. He was, I
figure, about 28, mentally ill and he was sleeping in a sleeping bag
on the streets. I stopped and talked to him. And you really begin towonder, this United States can be such a wonderful place, why
there are so many people out on the streets and the programs
open, they help a lot, whether people realize it or not, they reallydo. And I would like to thank you for having me here in Washing-ton.

This is phenomenal. I love this place. It is great. I never have
seen a bathroom like yours. Thank you.

Mr. KILDEE. Thank you, Mike. I appreciate your honesty, candor,
and openness.

You mention, Mike, that had it not been for this program this
would be quite different for you right now. What do you think you
would be doing had you not come in contact with this program?
What might be happening to you?

Mr. MONTOYA. In July of last year I was dealing drugs. The
thought of prostitution had crossed my mind Not to guys, mostly
married females, hopefully. More than likely, I would be dealing
drugs, probably into crack by now and you name it.

In Arizona I had gotten into a breaking and entering to gain
and gang warfare and I am sure I would be into that.

Mr. KILDEE. Can you tell us how you came into contact with the
program?

Mr. MONTOYA. In February of 1987, I was staying at my friend's
house and they wanted me to become more independent and at
that moment it was like I was still fresh in the house and they still
liked me and, you know, they wanted me to become independent.
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That just sort of blew by and we talked to Step Forward and it
sort of sank in and when I was out in the streets I remembered the
place. I didn't know where it was.

I had no idea but I knew it was by the Detroit zoo. I went into
my friend's house and they helped me locate and not get to, but get
in contact with the staff at the Step Forward.

Mr. KILDEE. Do you think there are many kids, young persons
like yourself still out there on the street because they did not come
into contact with a program like this?

Mr. MONTOYA. In my travels across the country I have ran into a
lot more kids than I do adults because kids feel that nobody under-
stands them and that is why you get the problems with the drugs
and the problems with car theft, because a lot of times people get
the kids because they are younger and they are quicker.

And that is, you know, it is generally that. The runaway youth
are usually brought into homelessness because they don't think
that they have anywhere to go back to. Those are the ones that
they talk about that don't get in contact with the programs and
they become the homeless.

Mr. KILDEE. If the program, A Step Forward, had more funds for
outreach trying to reach the young people out there, what would be
some of the best ways that they could contact and reach these
young people?

Mr. MONTOYA. A lot of people that have come intonot come
into the program but applied to the program, I have outreach at
work, T.V. would be a good one, radio broadcasting. Just general
signs in the area. You know, I didn'tbefore I had even heard of A
Step Forward, I hadn't even heard of runaway programs or any-
thing, you know.

To me it- was all new. They really have these things where run-
aways go. I had heard of group homes and stuff where they sent
the bad kids or what they called the bad kids, because I believe
that there is no such thing as a bad kid.

A mis-led kid, yes. But not bad.
Mr. KILDEE. You mentioned the use of drugs, Mike. How common

is the use of drugs on the street among young people and where do
they usually get them from, other young people or from adults?

Mr. MONTOYA. I can say that 90 percent, if not more, of the
homeless in general use drugs. And a lot of timesit doesn't really
matter who you go to, you can get drugs. There are a lot of people
out there that have them, a lot more than anybody really realizes.

Mr. KILDEE. I will defer to Mr. Sawyer and I will come back for
another round of questions.

Tom.
Mr. SAWYER. Mike, can you tell us what a day on the street is

like?
Mr. MONTOYA. A lot of wandering, not knowing where to go,

looking for pop cans, looking for just about anything to do, looking
for friends that I had known, trying to get in contact with drugs or
alcohol, somewhere to get money so I can go out and party.

Around the evening it is time to find a place to stay. Usually, I
look for or I looked for places likehouses that hadn't fully been
built, where they had four walls and a roof but no doors or win-
dows, so that you can lay down and sleep, and I would say in the
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three to four weeks I was out on the streets, I didn't sleep. I sort ofwandered.
Mr. SAWYER. When you are out there and you are looking for aplace to say, why didn t you go to a shelter? You just didn't know

about it?
Mr. MONTOYA. I had heard about the Sanctuary, but at thatpoint, I mean, I did not want any contact with my father whatso-

ever. We did not get along at that moment, and also, I didn't knowwhat they were all about. So mostly I was afraid.
Mr. SAWYER. What specifically were you afraid of, what was thedeterrent, was it parental contact?
Mr. MONTOYA. Parental contact and not knowing what the pro-

gram was about. I didn't know what they did there. I was like, youknow, these people are strangers and I am going to go talk to these
people, and even at Step Forward, first three, four weeks, I walked
around and didn't say much to anybody. They weren't sure if I wasgoing to get up and disappear all of a sudden or what was going tohappen, if I was going to commit suicide because I didn't talk to
anybody because that fear of not having anybody to trust.

Now that I have been there for a while, I am realizing that you
can trust them. They are willingthey put out their hand for help.Mr. SAWYER. It was finally desperation, though, rather than any-thing that overcame that fear that brought you here.

Mr. MONTOYA. Yes.
Mr. SAWYER. What are you doing now?
Mr. MONTOYA. Work?

SAWYER. How do you spend your days?
Mr. MONTOYA. Generally I work. I work at a restaurant bussingtables right now. I am waiting reply on a resume from an electron-ics company. Currently I am looking into getting into a GED pro-

gram, possibly getting my high school diploma. I own a car nowthat I have been in the program. It is not much, it is just a littleVW, but it moves. I am in the process of getting insurance. I got
my permit last month. When T get hack, I am going for my drivingtest.

Generally, you know, 1 go to AA meetings quite a bit. In fact, I
have looked into a few in the area. I go to dances on Saturday
night, I shoot pool, just generally that is ic.

Mr. SAWYER. Where do you want to be a year from now?
Mr. MONTOYA. One of my mottos, or one of the mottos in AA is

one step at a time, and at this point I don't know what I will bedoing in c. year. I would like to be either working full time andliving in zay own place or going to school, working full-time.
Mr. KILDEE. A couple more questions of you, Mike. We have a

National Runaway Hotline. How knowledgeable are young peoplein the street of the existence of that hotline?
Mr. MONTOYA. To tell you the truth, I hadn't heard about it untiltoday. Even in school, I had talked to a social worker, she is a realgood friend of mine now, and I hadn't heard anything about it. If I

am not mistaken, there is a sticker in our window that has hotlines
on it. I didn't know what it was for until the hearing.Mr. KILDEE. So it is not generally known out in the street fromyour experience?

Mr. MONTOYA. Not that I know.
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Mr. KILDEE. That is something we will want to look into in the
reauthorization, because it needs to be known, and it does provide
an important service for those who do use it. We need more people
to be really aware of that.

You mentioned you are involved in AA, which is a tremendous
program. I have many friends in that program. It has done a good
deal for them. How many young people are you finding in that pro-
gram?

Mr. MoryroYA. I have quite a few friends, we all jump in the car
and go to AA meetings. The night before I flew down here, we had
eight people in a Grenada. I was driving a Cadillac convertible; it
was dragging the ground. There is quite a few children in the pro-
gram. Five months ago, when I went in, it was a bunch of older
people telling war stories, and I said "What am I doing here?" I
find there is a lot of kids out there who have the same problems I
do. That is something E lot of people don't realize. If you get togeth-
er, you will have somebody to talk to. You have to have mutual
trust and understanding.

Mr. KILDEE. You obviously have developed some good inter-per-
sonal skills. Has the Step Forward been helpful to you in develop-
ing these skills?

Mr. MONTOYA. When I came into Step Forward, I used a lot of
slang, street talk generally. My father, one thing I learned about
from him was command of the English language, and I had never
understood it until Step Forward, and I understood then that with
the English language you can get what you want or what you need.
They gave me something I never comprehended and still don't,
selfI don't know, it is hard to explain it. I have a problem of
being real quiet when people start walking toward me or over me,
and they have given me like, they have taught us how to stand up
for our rights and how to say, "Hey, no, I don't want to do that.'
Before usually people would usually walk right over me. I don't do
much about it, just sort of whatever, kept going my own way. Now
I can stop and say, "Hey, that ain't for me."

Mr. KILDEE. I have more questions for you. Will you join me for
lunch today?

Mr. MONTOYA. Yes.
Mr. KILDEE. I will ask you more questions over lunch, too.
Let me ask some questions of the other panelists for a moment

here. I will ask Ms. Avent, and others can join in, there are those
who would argue local police agencies should have authority to
detain runaways until their parents come and get them. Would you
care to comment on that?

Ms. AVENT. It is an interesting theory. There are a couple things.
One, what happens to a youth who doesn't have a parent willing or
able to come to them? Two, why detain a youth who may be a
victim, as opposed to a perpetrator of some kind of crime? And,
three, for Los Angeles County, where are you going to put them?
So, in theory, it may sound great. In practicality, I don't think it is
going to work well. I think we need to look at some other types of
strategies rather than simple lock-up.

Ms. SHORE. I would like to add, I think it would be a great step
forward, in terms of the total system, if there were more coopera-
tion with police who were out there potentially touching young
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people who are on the street and encouraging them to come toservices, but it doesn't seem to me quite the right focus either tohave a young person detained for their own protection. It seems tome what we know about young people is that they are leaving be-cause they are needing to express some needs, they are wantingsomething they don't have, and if they can get connected to serv-ices that can begin right then to respond to them, they will alsorespond. We won't continue to have them out on the street.So better we should have a system where police can, if theyhappen to find a person, bring them to a shelter or to have servicesbrought to the young person.
Ms. THOMAS-SMEDES. We have recently been asked, to put togeth-er a new model for the State of Michigan. We were approached lastweek, in fact, by a representative of the Justice Department to puttogether some type of model that would call us to one of the localpolice departments when a runaway or homeless youth was pickedup so that a staff from a runaway shelter would come and take re-sponsibility for that young person and then continue with the serv-ices rather than detaining the young person. We now have a newlaw in Michigan which does not allow a runaway or homelessyouth to be held in any type of a lock-up setting.
Mr. KILDEE. As you well know, I share your views on that, asdoes the law. We get .pressure from time to time, put them in aslammer for a time as if that might solve the problem.
Mike, when you were on the street, did you have any contactwith the police? Did you find it helpful if you did or can you com-ment on that?
Mr. MONTOYA. Let's hope this is not too incriminating.Mr. ICILDEE. No, you may respond in a most casual way.Mr. MONTOYA. Along the lines of the cops, mostly they tried tocatch me. Like I say, tried. Ninety percent of the time I wouldn'teven think about it, and I would be out of their way. Sometimes meand my friends would purposely go out and find cops just to raisehell with thempardon my French. Sorry about that. A lot oftimescops are amazing, they really are. They don't like chasingkids around because, like I said earlier, kids are fast and young. Ifyou get eight cop cars chasing one kid, there are other crimes being

committed in other parts of town, so they don't put upit wouldn'twork as well. In certain circumstances, such as robbery or breakingand entering, the cops are, you knowwhen they are chasingsomebody around for curfew, they are wasting their time.The whole time I was out on the street, the whole time I wasanywhere. I had been picked up once, and that was for a curfewviolation. The only reason I got picked up is because I decided notto run that time to see what he would do. I outran a fair number ofcops, picking them up first by throwing apples at their cars andhaving them chase us. That was our idea of fun. I would hate tosee a lot of kids picked up and locked up because they were run-
aways, because that wouldn't help anything.

Mr. KILDEE. The one time you were picked up by the police, didthey have any knowledge of that runaway hotline or the program,A Step Forward?
Mr. MONTOYA. The night I got picked up, I was out partying. Iwas still at home. My dad hadn't nailed my windows shut yet, but
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he did after that time. No, that time he took the door off the
hinges.

Ms. AVENT. In Los Angeles County, the Los Angeles Police De-
partment, the Hollywood Division is experimenting with something
I think is very radical for a police department. They are working
very closely with a program there, and rather than detain or even
do any paperwork on a youth when they pick him up for status of-
fenses, they w"' them directly to the shelter. This is a pro-
gram of Lieutenant Ed Hocking, and it seems to be working very
well. They have got two police officers in particular who deal with
this population.

I would agree, while lock-up is not the best idea, if we really
work to establishing closer relationships with the police depart-
ment, that service, I think we will do well both by the kids and by
the programs.

Mr. KILDEE. Carol, you mentioned in Grand Rapids a turnover in
staff because of the low wages. It just occurred to me, with the
mention of food restaurants, that you really pay more to those who
make a Big Mac than those who care for our children.

Ms. THOMAS-SMEDES. When I began my job two-and-a-half years
ago, the residential care staff, who had bachelor degrees, their
starting hourly wage was $4.50 an hour. You must remember in
that staff of 22 people right now, there are four full-time bachelor
degree mental health staff, those are the direct care staff, there are
two full-time master-level prepared counselors. Again, when I start-
ed there, they were making $17,000 a year, hardly a competitive
wage. And there is a full-time secretary, and the rest of the people
who work those shifts are .part-time, hourly people who work any-
where from maybe one shift eight hours a week to three shifts a
week.

They also must supplement, obviously, and they tend to work
either a full-time job in another child caring agency or work two
different part-time jobs to put together enough money to make
$10,000. I am seen as one of the best paid staffs, and I think that
that is pretty pathetic.

Mr. MONTOYA. Can I comment on that?
Mr. KILDEE. Sure.
Mr. MONTOYA. I sort of agree about the payment. It is really low.

I am just a bus boy, and I make $3.50 plus tips, so I make around
$4.50, and I don't even have a high school education, and that can
be sort of a deterrent to people, because, you know, if the money
isn't there, why go to school for it?

Mr. KILDEE. We find the same problem with child care, too, very
low wages in child care where the turnover is tremendous. We
need people knowledgeable of the care of children. It is a shame
our society has its priorities so turned around that we don't recog-
nize that those who care for our children should be considered val-
uable people in our communities. Hopefully, this subcommittee can
do some things to help that, and one of the best ways is the author-
ization, appropriations and budget process. That is where the prior-
ities start, right here. I think we have a moral obligation to do
that.

Tom.
Mr. SAWYER. Thanks, Mr. Chairman.
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Let me just comment on that. I don't think there is any question
that increasing the size of the pot is the most important task we
have to do. Debbie Shore mentioned something we had asked about
earlier, and that was the relative size of the pie that is distributed
for childrenyou mentioned 95 percent. Could the other two wit-
nesses comment on that?

Ms. THOMAS-SMEDES. I would agree with Debbie. I am fairly sen-
sitive to this having been cut by a fairly large margin. The only
reason I was able to keep the doors open that particular year was
the United Way Campaign and gave us help.

I guess I would like to highlight, I have a budget of a little over
$350,000 to run The Bridge. I feel fortunate, I am one of the larger
programs in the State of Michigan. Partly that is due to the fact
we are a metropolitan area, partly that is due to the fact I have
incredible community support. The Federal dollars received areonly 18 percent of my budget, and I receive terrific help from
United Way. I receive more money, $66,000, from my local United
Way than I receive from the Federal Government. I also have to
say I receive money from our State Department of Social Services,
OCYS, $176,000 at this point.

But what I guess I need to say is last year I received $175,000,
and my overall increase was $1,600 this year. And I can't depend
on an increase from a government source of $1,60C a year. And
that is why for me, I feel very fortunate that I can do fund-raising,
I can look to other places in my community, churches or individ-
uals, or whatever, but I want to really stress that if I was a rural
program or if I was a program in a city that didn't enjoy the eco-nomic gain that Grand Rapids has, I would be tough out of luck,
and those people are.

When I received my $1,600 increase, others received either that
amount or less or were cut, and people were laid off, and there are
programs that are substantially below where they need to be, be-
cause last year our State was not in very good shape, and we are
feeling the results of that.

Ms. AVENT. I would agree. I think there needs to be a hard lookat how those monies are allocated. Stepping Stone is fortunate be-
cause we have had a three-year grant. We are into our third year.However, it has been a static amount of money. In effect, we have
received what could be called a budget cut.

I think the other thing the members have to realize, for those of
us who are partially supported by a grant, it does mean extra fund-
raising. With that it means extra time, extra staff time and the
extra money it takes to do those types of activities. So we are talk-
ing about a very intense decrease of services. We end up cutting
into our own abilities to provide those services that we are granted
to do because the grants are not supplying us with the support that
is needed.

I am not quite sure how to do it. I don't know if it could be allo-
cated on the numbers of youth that have requested services. If so,LA County might get a lot more money. But I think this committee
and those of us in the field really do need to look at how to allocate
those funds at this point.

Ms. SHORE. I think it wouldn't be hard to look at the total run-away program as a way in which we function to keep our finger in
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the dike in a sense. We are able in most communities to work with
enough of the troubled family situations and stabilize them enough
so that in a sense the communities don't have to see what is bub-
bling under the surface.

I think what is bubbling under the surface is something we
should all be terribly concerned about. What is going on, we won't
see it as necessarily young people running away from home, but be-

havior that is more destructive. The drug involvement of young
people once they hit the street is unbelievable. It is beyond our wil-
dest dreams, I think.

So I think in looking to the future and what is going to happen,
if the runaway system gets too overloaded, you know, or isn't able
to even functionI mean, what we are talking about here is not
just maintaining with inflation and all the other things, but really
there are real reductions that have gone on in the past couple of
years because of the legitimate effort to try to reach out to more
young people. We are really talking about not being able to keep
ahead of what could be a very serious detrimental wave of losing a
generation of young peopletop trar ma.

Mr. SAWYER. We heard earlier "Pay now or pay later."
Ms. THOMAS-SMEDES. If I could say one thing, there has been talk

here about how to advertise services maybe is the best way to put
it. I just want to give you a striking example of what happened to
us last year when we in fact did that. I thought we needed to do
that in Grand Rapids. Okay? We have new people moving into the
community all the time, there are kids getting to be 10 years of
age, everybody needs to know about us.

We went out, raised some money, and we started advertising on
the sides of buses with a bus-board campaign, and our Local/State
Consolidated Gas Company was gracious enough to buy signs for
the insides of all city buses. We only advertised on 10 buses on the
outside, and we have 70, 80 or something in Grand Rapids, we did
that in March; and from April on, we had 45 kids a month, 47 kids
a month, we had an increase every month of another 18 percent.
We got to the point that my staff were so burned out, because we
were doubling and tripling the number of staff working, and I don't
have enough money to go hire more staff. So everybody was work-
ing overtime and going home for a few hours so they could come
back and do it again.

So we had 13 beds, we were at 1:1 There were even times we had
an extra kid sleeping on a couch. We were doing a lot more, we
were doing what we were meant to do, but we are not staffed in a
way to consistently be able to do that.

We have just started advertising again. We are starting to see
the same thing. The entire month of January we have had a mini-
mum of 11 kids there. So it is a fine line. We want to do that, but,
at the same time, if we don't get more money to do that, how are
we going to be able to continue?

Mr. SAWYER. Let me give you an opportunity to answer a ques-
tion Mr. Tauke asked earlier, all four of you, the question about
whether the availability of space doesn't encourage, as some would
suggest, children leaving home, or whether in fact what we are
confronting is simply an enormous unmet need, undefined perhaps,
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unrecognized as yet, and we haven't even begun to touch the realquestion how we are going to go about doing it.Mr. KILDEE. If I may interject here, we both recognize Mr. Taukeasked that question because it has been asked of us, it was not re-flecting necessarily his own views.
Mr. SAWYER. Of course.
Ms. THOMAS-SMEDES. I would like to say when we did our Federalgrant request last year, we always gather statistics from all ourarea police departments. They reported over 2,000 reported run-aways to them, and. as you well know, reported runaways don'tbegin to touch how many are really out there. We gave shelter to343 of them, that is all.

Ms. SHORE. I think, first of all, that we have really begun tomake a difference with this population, but I think before we caneven get to the point of considering whether we are creating de-pendency by the structures that we have, we have to recognize thatwe have a structure that is clearly working, by whatever measurewe have, and we don't have as proper a measure as we have, butwe do have some notions about how many kids are out there. Weare to such a minimal extent at this point responding to a percent-age of young people that I don't think we have that problem toworry about for a while.
Ms. THOMAS-SMEDES. It would be nice, wouldn't it?Ms. AVENT. I would agree. I don't think that increasing thenumber of beds is going to increase the number of kids runningaway from home. That number is already there. LA County, 70beds, looking at the data, the requests were over 6,000. LAPD re-ported over 5,000 missing juvenile reports. Those kids are alreadyaway from home. Why not provide them services? LA County shel-tered 16,000 kids last year. I don't think we have to worry aboutthat problem now.

Mr. MONTOYA. When I was still living at home, I had neverreally thought about going to a runaway shelter; for one, I didn'tknow about them, but, two, if I had known about them, I wouldn'thave wanted to have gone because I wouldn't have wanted them tocall my father.
At the point I did finally get to Step Forward, it doesn't matter,you know, I am already out here, he might as well know. It doesn'tmatter.
Mr. SAWYER. From what you have experienced in the street,have we even begun to touch the problem?
Mr. MONTOYA. No. I was lucky. I was real lucky when I firstchecked into the program. I don't know if it was filled up. All Iknow, I was put on the waiting list. When I came back the secondtime, they had an empty house, and I have seen maybe seven, inthe last two weeks, kids coming to the house for interviews, andthere is no room. We have been packed since last Tuesday.Ms. SHORE. Can I just say something? I just want to say, thismade me think about the issue of how to get to these young peopleand whether we could get to than. We don't have the capacitynow, but could we get to them is a question.If I try to think about if we had $1 million in the District toreach these 2,000 kids that we didn't have beforeI know that thekind of outreach work many of the runaway programs now do, but
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to such limited extent, really does wvrk to touch those young
people.

When Mike was talking about, you know, I was afraid, I didn't
know who it was, if somebody comes to you on the street and says,
"Hey, I am so and so", it becomes a personal touch with them. And
maybe the young person doesn't come in on the first day to a shel-
ter, but it becomes a link to a human being in a helping nets ork
that can make all the difference for really getting young people off
the street.

It is my overwhelming experience that young people that are out
there are seeking solutions to what they consider to be overwhelm-
ing problems. They just don't have what they thinkwhat the re-
sources are, the perspectives, contact with other people.

The isolation that you talked about I think is so great. I mean,
after all, we all learn about ourselves through the relationship
with other people. That is what we want to do as that primary
helper, is to try to build first a relationship with us that says, you
know, you can sort your stuff out, this is possible, there are lots of
ways that you can move toward the goals that you have in your
life. Again, we keep coming back to this, but the capacity I think
exists.

The issue is whether the opportunity will be created well enough
for us to begin to offer our services to young people.

Mr. KILDEE. Thank you, Tom.
Hubert Humphrey said, "The moral test of a government is how

they treat those in the dawn of life, the children; those who are in
the twilight of life, the elderly, and those who are in the shadows
of life, the sick, the needy and handicapped."

And that is the challenge of this subcommittee. We are really
charged with taking care of the needs of those who are the roost
vulnerable in our society: the young, the sick, the old, the needy
and handicapped, and it is a tremendous charge and tremendous
responsibility.

You have certainly helped us today in giving us the information
and the motivation that we need in carrying out that charge.

Mike, when I look at your personal growth, I am absolutely con-
vinced we have to reauthorize this program with more dollars to
serve more kids, and I really appreciate your testimony today. It
has been excellent.

Mr. MONTOYA. Thank you
Mr. KILDEE. Unless there are further questions, I would like to

Clunk. all the witnesses today. The record will stay open an addi-
tional two weeks for any further submissions.

Thank you very much. We stand adjourned.
[Whereupon, at 1:10 p.m., the subcommittee was adjourned sub-

ject to the call of the Chair.]
[Submissions for the record follow:1

. 1 0 7
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STATEMENT OF CONGRESS/AN MICKEY LELAND

HOUSE EDUCATION AND LABOR SUBCOMMITTEE ON HUMAN RESOURCES

JANUARY 29, 1988

Mr. Chairman. 1 appreciate being able to present remarks on H.R.1801, legislation to reauthorize the Juvenile Justice and DelinquencyPrevention Acc.

Given this opportunity, Mr. Chairman, I would like to direct mycomments to Title III, which reauthorizes
the Runaway and HomelessYouth Acc. As currently drafted, this portion of the bill providesgrants to: support the creation and maintenance of facilities toshelter and counsel runaway youths,

coordinate activities for shelter
networks; and, establish a national coil-free telephone hotline forrunaways. I commend the care given, and the services provided to
runaway youths through existing programs; however, I believe there isa critical need for more expansive services.

Runaway and homeless youth are among the most neglAcced and
vulnerable groups in the growing homeless population in this country.Based on a survey of 26 major cities, a report issued in December 1987by the U.S. Conference of Mayors cites chat unaccompanied youth, age18 years and younger, comprise at last four percent of the homeless
population. Five of the 26 cicie esponding to the survey reported
that unaccompanied youths compri ten percent or more of the homelesspopulation. In my own Cicy of ,aeon, Texas, is he been estimatedby The United Way that nearly e-third of those who are homeless areyouths.
Because mrny cities do nor inguish single youths from adults,
these calculations are like to be conservative.

These statistics reprise:lc young people in this country wha arealone and without resource,, and who are in critical need of
assistance co--in some instances -- assure their eery stb4iyal. While anumber of these individuals are fortunate enough to receive shelter,
food, clothing, and basic counseling through programs currently
sponsored under the Runway and Homeless Youth Act, there is a vitalneed for expanded support services. According to the U.S. Conference
of Mayors report, transition shelters with specialized counseling inareas of living skills and job training are among the most crucially
needed services identified by mayors and other administrators. Publicofficials also articulated the need for advocacy, mencol health,
pregnancy counseling, education, and outreach services.

Mr. Chairman, last year I introduced H.R. 178, the "Transition
Living Programs for Homeless Youth Acc of 1987." This legislation
authorizes the creation of transitional living programs for homelessyouth to encourage self-sufficiency and prevent long-term dependency
on social services. This year, I intend to propose a mo44ffed versionof this bill as an amendment to Title III of H.R. 1801, the bill onwhich hearings are being held today.

108



105

Some young people who are today on the streets and in temporary

shelters will reunite with their families. However, a large

percentage of those who are presently homeless will remain alone.

They need help to gain Independent living, to obtain job training and

skills; and, to deal with emotional trauma, since it is estimated that

many of these youths have suffered physical or sexual abuse. This

type of support and assistance will help them become productive

individuals in our society. I believe the modest revisions I will be

proposing will offer us a greater opportunity to achieve this go,I.
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Congress of the United eStates
tout of Ittprestatantts

i:Oashington, 33tE 20515

March 11, 1988

The Honorable Dale E. Kildee
Chairman

.Subcommittee or. Human Resources
Committee on Education and Labor
U.S. House of Representatives
Washington, D.C. 20515

Dear Mr. Chairman:
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I write with regard to the
Subcommittee's consideration of

legislation reauthorizing the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency
Prevention Act of 1974 (H.R. 1801). I ask that this letter and
t!e attached statement by Mr. Tony Champaco of Sanctuary, Inc. be
included in the record of the hearings.

My primary concern here focuses on Title III of the Act, the
"Runaway a-d Homeless Youth Act". Under Section 311 (a) program
funding among the states and territories is based upon the
"respective populations of youth under 18 years of ago."
While on the surface such language see s equitable, in practice
it has not been effective for small s and territories suchas Guam.

Like the rest of the nation, Guam has witnessed a dramatic
increase in the number of runaway, homeless, and beyond control
youth which has not been matched with a commensurate response in
services. Last year, Sanctuary Inc., the only provider of
comprehensive services to such youths for the past. 16 years, had
to close its doors for six months due to insufficient funding.In its last appropriation under the RYHA. Guam received only
S14,765, an amount barely sufficient to keep even one full-time
worker on staff on a 40-hour work week. The attached material
prepared by Sanctuary, Inc. better explains Guam's situation andneed for additional resource. I submit it for the Subcommittee's
information and consideration.

I.1 0
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Page Two
The Honorable Dale E. Kildee
March 11, 1988

I urge the Subcommittee to consider proposals for a minimum
allotment under the RYHA for small states and territories which
would adequately address the growing problems they face ire
regards to their youth. As always, I stand ready to work with
you and members of the Subcommittee on this important issue.

enclosure
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"Serving Tr Otibied Youths and thcir Families"

March 11, 1988

TO: HONORABLE BEN BLAI
CopgrittS q .

FROM: TONY C. Of ARMCO
Executive Director

RE: -SuPport frit- Increase in Appropriation of funds to
Guam provided for in the Runaway and Homeless Youth Act

PROBLEM STATEMENT/RAT)ONALE

The services for Runaways, Homeless, Beyond control and similar
troubled youths contiluelo-be quite limited and restricted on, Gum.
for over 16 years, Smictuary, Inc. has been the sole provider of am-
prehens Pie services tq such youths. .

In calendar yeas' 1986 alone, a total of 254 troubled youths sought
Sanctuary's services. Of these youths, 151 stayed at our shelter faciP-
ty and received Casiwdrk/Counseling and Advocacy services, This repre-
sents an increase of ever 37 percent as compared to the previous calendar ,
year. Of the total number -of youths who came to.5anctuary and received
comprehensive.services,oyer.51 percent fill into the category of Runaway
and Beyond.Control. This 51 percent of youths .carol to Sanctuary directly- '-

having to go 'through the Juvenile Justice System and adjudged as .
1Status Offenders. Si ilarly, in calendar year 1987, over 120 youths, fall -

ing intothe aforesen ioned categories, received services from Sanctuary
in an'eiglitinonth titillation, prior to the suspeniien of Sanctuary's shelter
services due.to lack of fUnds.

-

- AlthoUgh.ianctui
during 1986 and 1987,

has experienced a significant increase in referrals
ere 'continues to be an increasing number of runaways

'and similar youths`wh .are.referred.tothm Depirtment of Youth Affair's
:Detention facility 5,- he Family, court of Guam.. Although the Gifu Police
Department, Youth Divi ion has utilized Sanctuary 'services for thier runaway
and beyond control cases, More than haf of reported cases were referred to
other sources such as the Department of Youth Affairs. The youths not
referred to &A or Sanctuary are usually released, and left alone to deal
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_Problem Statement/Rationale Par

with unditirable situa1it1$ such as returning home to a negative

environment or living dr the streets.

Sanctuary continu to recognize the increasing mount of

troubled youths, inclu ing Runaways, beyond Controls, Hamlett and

similar youths in the Cemunity. With the increase in reported

cases if the aforemerit Onei population, the led of services and

funds to address thdnieds of these groups become more evident.

As 'mentioned previously{, Sinctuary,-the-sole provider of iervices

to these youths was folIced tosuipendAts shelter-services for.a

:period of. six months (gust 31,1987 through March 1, 1988), due

to its depletion of iulds. The funds provided by both the Office

of Juvenile Justice for' Delinquency Prevention and the Runaway and

Homeless Youth Act, Were not adequate enough to allow for the.provision

of coirprihensive services through the fiscal*.yeir:'
. .

The increase in the Department of Health and Human Services'

appropriation of Runai and Homeldss Youth Act funds to Guam, .

to commensurate with'the increasing number of Runaway-and Homeless

,youth is highly needed. The appropriation of $14,765.00 (last appro-

priation 20 Guam). Is not adequate to meet the needs of this population.

The increase in funds.will allow Guam to provide the necessary compre.;

hensive services to these youths. problems at a pre-

ventative level, only en can we insure that these youth do not enter

the juvenile justice s tem unnecessarily.
-

-

1 31.3°
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112ay.nAl nrym

Jahuart- Deeanber 1986

Year

1. TOTAL CASELOAD: 161 (Resident 11)

11. TOTALS:

a. Males: 44 (29.1)

b. Females:. 107 (70.9%)

111. BREAKDOWN BY AGE:

LS -Totil/%

11 or less
12 , 8 5.3%)

13 26' 17.2%
14 40 26.5%

Mean Age: 14.4 Years

Abe

15

16

17

18 or over

Tofil/%

22 14.6%
16 10.6%
1 .7%

IV. BREAKDOWN BY ETHNIC GROUP:

Ethnic Group 'Total

Chamorro 83 (55.0%)

Caucasian 21 (14.0 %).

Filipino 13 ( 8.6%)

Other 11 ( 7.3i)

Mixed 23 (15.2%)

BREAKDOWN BY VILLAGE:
.

Village Total Village Total/%

-:Agana
.

3 (2.0%) 'WM 5'(3.3%)

Agana Heights -1i (2.6% -Riti/H. Hill .... ,.., 3 12.0%)

Agat 8 (5.3% Santa Rita 1 ( .7 %)

Asan/Maina 5 (3.3% 5inajana 6 (4.0%)

Barrigada 3 (2.0% Talofoin/Ipan 6 4.0%)

Chn.Pago/Ordot 2 (1.3%) Tamuning/Tumon 9 (6.0%)

Dededo 36 (23.6) UMatac ' ..1 ( :7%)

1nirajan 11(7.3 %) No 138.6%)

liailgilap 12 (8.0%) ion' '7 (4.6%)

,Merizo 4. (2.4 military.Bases .,..:. 12 (8.0%)

..prA,,m..:-7i pronerm ilOrit.
1

a. Runaway 1

b. Beyond Control i

c. Child Abuse (P.A., 5.A., ;
Neglect) j

47
31

34

(31.1%)

(20.5%)

(22.5%)

1
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January iiecimaii 9%

VI. d. Family Problems

u 4.11.hut

VII. BREAKDOWN BY SERVICES PROVIkED:

a. Shelter 151

b. Counseling 100

c. Crisis Inter 44

4. Information 66

VIII: - BREAKDOWN BY REFERRAL SOURCE:

. a. G.P 0 24 j

b. C.P 5
c. Court

47
28

d. Self 28

17

. 22

e.

f.

16%)

18.5X
18.5%

(11.21)

04.6%)

Total Served

Referral

Aftercare

T.A.P,P.

342

18
57

6

5.3%)*

2.6%)

4%)'

4X)

o ai ServeG KIS.

and Non-res.) ...

,

e. Parents

I. lagol
g. 0..,er Agency

h Other

254

8

4.

6
6

:- -

IX. RECIDIVISM BREAKDOWN (number includes clients that returned more than once):

a. Total Returnees , 59 (39X of total caseload)

-b. C.P S 29 (49% of total returnees)

c. . Cases Where Most Recent Term- - .

I

ination Was Been Over IA

s Not

Year ... 3 (5X of total returnees)

d. Cases Where Sanctuary
The Primary Casemanager .13 (22X of total returnees) :.

e. Cases Where Sanctuary Is
The Primary Casemanager 14 (23% of total returnees)

f. Cases Where Sanctuary Was
Providing Aftercare 6 (10.5 of total returnees)

g. 'Actual Recidivism Rate 6 (10.6 X of total Aftercare cases - 57)

" -

X. SHELTER STAY BREAKDOWN: -.. - -

- a. Range .1: 2 -
b. Mean' '20.1. .%

Fl. 58 CLIENTS SERVED BY C.P.S.1
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i I. breakdown by services gersided: Total services -

Shelter 73
Counseling 0
C.I. 21

Reforrelfrai. )6,
. Aftercare S
T.A.P.P. 2

:
Twilut .54.4 021.4.4.4 / f p.....A.At....)

B. Breakdown by referral sources (ep i..,ce. p....)
, i/A- .

.

GPb 1y (11.0) punts- 1/x ( ?I s) ..
CPS . It (JO %) :Scnool 3 (.3 s) .

Court . ic 7 (Als). . tither agency /I( (G v
. . .. .r, .1 ot

Self : 27 .(;( T) Oiler ik (/W %)
0._ C1/4A,S ifd*` 4''Ztj""t9. Recidivism breakdown0..j)1.110.) --r,7.-f /2} - .-1-....

...-7 r (303')Total returnees: - 1

- , I I et . (0)CPS cases: -

Cases when S.1. is not the ?Hillary case:a:mayor: - _lS (IA)
Cases when case termination has been ovir a year: 0. (OZ
Cases where S.I. is the primary, caseseanager:

Actual recidivism rate:

O

116

4 a


